Public Document Pack

Agenda
Meeting: Pension Fund Committee
Venue:

Remote Meeting held via Microsoft Teams

Date:

Friday, 10 September 2021

Time:

11.00 am (Please note change of time of meeting)

Councillors:

John Weighell (Chairman),Helen Swiers, (Vice-Chair),
Patrick Mulligan, Mike Chambers, Cliff Lunn,
Don MacKay, Andy Solloway and Angus Thompson
Councillor Christian Vassie, City of York Council
Councillor Jim Clark, North Yorkshire District Councils
David Portlock - Chair of Pension Board (non-voting)
Brian Hazeldine, UNISON

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote
live-broadcast committee meetings should continue, with any formal decisions required being
taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after
consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any
views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach was reviewed by full Council at its July
meeting and will be subject to a further review at the County Council Meeting in November.
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link –
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also
available there.

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Stephen Loach Tel: 01609 532216
or e-mail stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk
OFFICIAL

Page 1

Business
1.

Exclusion of the Public and Press - To consider the exclusion of
the public and press from the meeting during consideration of
Appendix 1 of item 12, Asset Allocation, on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to
information)(Variation) Order 2006

2.

Welcome, introductions and apologies.

3.

Minutes of the Committee Meeting held on 2nd July 2021

4.

Declarations of Interest

5.

Public Questions or Statements
Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Steve Loach of
Democratic Services (contact details at the foot of page 1 of the Agenda sheet) by
midday on Tuesday 24th November 2020. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3
minutes on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to
speak:-

(Pages 5 - 8)

•
at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which
are not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes);
•
when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a
matter which is on the Agenda for this meeting.
If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to be recorded,
please inform the Chairman who will instruct those taking a recording to cease while you
speak.
6.

Request from Hambleton District Council to admit Broadacres
Housing Association into the North Yorkshire Pension Fund Report of the Treasurer

7(a)

Death Benefit - Mrs P - WITHDRAWN FOR CONSIDERATION AT A
SUBSEQUENT MEETING

7(b)

Death Benefit - Mrs R - WITHDRAWN FOR CONSIDERATION AT A
SUBSEQUENT MEETING

8.

Pensions Administration - Report of the Treasurer

9.

Budget/Statistics - Report of the Treasurer

10.

Performance of the Fund - Report of the Investment Consultants,
AON

(Pages 93 100)
(Pages 101 146)

11.

Pension Board - Minutes of Meeting held on 8th July 2021 and
draft Annual Report - Pension Board Chairman to report.

(Pages 147 166)

12.

Asset Allocation - Report of the Treasurer - CONFIDENTIAL ITEM (Pages 167 - 190)

Page 2
OFFICIAL

(Pages 9 - 20)

(Pages 21 - 92)

13.

Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman should,
by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of
urgency

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
Thursday, 2 September 2021 (Reissue)
For all enquiries relating to this agenda or to register to speak at the meeting, please contact
Stephen Loach, Democratic Services Officer on Tel: 01609 532216 or by e-mail at:
stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 3
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Fund Committee
Minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2021 held as a live broadcast meeting commencing at
10 am under the process described at Minute 211.
Present:County Councillors John Weighell OBE (Chairman), Michael Chambers MBE, Cliff Lunn, Don
Mackay, Patrick Mulligan, Helen Swiers and Angus Thompson.
Councillor Jim Clark - North Yorkshire District Councils.
Councillor Christian Vassie - City of York Council.
David Portlock - Chair of the Pension Board.
Brian Hazeldine – UNISON retired members
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor Andy Solloway

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book

221.

Welcome and Introduction
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the live broadcast meeting of the Pension Fund
Committee and announced that under his delegated decision making powers in the
Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer
has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the
Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of the Local
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority
and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which
allowed for committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at
its meeting on 5 May 2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings should
continue (as informal meetings of the Committee Members), with any formal decisions
required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision
making powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate
and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members. This
approach will be reviewed by full Council at its July meeting.

222.

Exclusion of the Public and Press
Resolved –
That on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006,
the public and press were excluded from the meeting during consideration of Minute
223: Confidential Minutes.

Page 5
OFFICIAL

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 2 July 2021/1

223.

Minutes
Resolved That the Minutes and Confidential Minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2021 were
confirmed and would be signed by the Chairman as a correct record at the first
available opportunity.

224.

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

225.

Public Questions or Statements
There were no questions or statements from the public.

226.

Governance Arrangements and NYPF Draft Statement of Final Accounts
Considered The report of the Treasurer requesting Members to review a range of governance
documents and for the Committee to approve or note the following documents, as
appropriate, and to provide Members with an update on the draft 2020/21
Statement of Accounts:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
m)
n)
o)
p)
q)

Investment Strategy Statement
Governance Compliance Statement
Funding Strategy Statement
Communications Policy
Admissions and Terminations Policy
Risk Register
Pensions Administration Strategy
Administering Authority Discretions Policy
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Guide
Governance Roles and Responsibilities
Charging Policy
Breaches Policy
GDPR Privacy Notice
GDPR Memorandum of Understanding
Training Policy
Cashflow Policy
Responsible Investment Policy

Details of the alterations made, if any, since the previous review of the documents,
were outlined by officers. Details of the NYPF draft Statement of Final Accounts were
provided for information.
Members discussed the documents and the following issues and points were raised:



It was clarified that the Asset Class (Summary) in the Funding Strategy
Statement (FSS) related to the investment strategy at the time of the 2019
Valuation, rather than that recently agreed by the Committee. The FSS will be
updated alongside the 2022 Valuation and will reflect the investment strategy
in place at that time..
A Member referred to the Responsible Investment Policy, recognising that the
approach to responsible investment was under continuous development, but

Page 6
OFFICIAL

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 2 July 2021/2



reflecting that the current relationship with BCPP gave a sense that this could
not be developed in the way he wished. He considered that the Pool’s approach
to responsible investment was limited, and felt there was a need for the Pool to
implement a more ambitious plan to represent the interests of those it was
investing on behalf of. He noted that BCPP’s approach to this issue differed
from that of the other Pools involved with LGPS Funds. He suggested that there
was a need to focus on climate change within the policy to demonstrate
fiduciary responsibility, and to protect the planet for future generations,
emphasising that some issues mattered more than generating money. He
emphasised that opportunities were available to address climate change and
make money for the Fund at the same time, and these should be explored for
the sake of the future and the Fund. The Chairman acknowledged the issues
raised by the Member, and emphasised that there were alternative viewpoints,
but welcomed the debate and discussion. He considered that it was of most
importance that the Fund’s investments increased the Fund’s assets to pay
pensions, and to reduce the burden on North Yorkshire Council Tax payers. He
noted that a workshop was to take place, following this meeting, where
responsible investment issues would be discussed further, and he would
welcome further discussion on the issues raised. The Member welcomed the
comments of the Chairman, but stated that he could not support the proposed
Responsible Investment Policy.
The Treasurer thanked the Committee, and all involved, for the tremendous
amount of work that had been undertaken over a very difficult year, on
responsible investment and on the new investment strategy.

Members were provided with details of the draft NYPF Statement of Final Accounts for
information. It was noted that details of the Final Accounts would be brought back to
the Committee following their approval by Audit Committee. Members welcomed the
excellent performance of the Fund over the previous year, which had seen substantial
growth in investments, resulting in the Fund being one of the best performers in the
country and being in a healthy solvency position.
Resolved –
(i)

that the changes made to the following governance documents be approved:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

(ii)

Investment Strategy Statement (Appendix 1)
Governance Compliance Statement (Appendix 2)
Communications Policy (Appendix 4)
Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy (Appendix 5)
Risk Register (Appendices 6 & 7)
Pension Administration Strategy (Appendix 8)
IDRP Guide (Appendix 10)
Charging Policy (Appendix 12)
Breaches Policy (Appendix 13)
GDPR Privacy Notice (Appendix 14)
Cashflow Policy (Appendix 17)
Responsible Investment Policy (Appendix 18)

that the following governance documents be noted:
•
•
•
•
•

Funding Strategy Statement (Appendix 3)
Administering Authority Discretions Policy (Appendix 9)
Governance Roles and Responsibilities (Appendix 11)
GDPR Memorandum of Understanding (Appendix 15)
Training Policy (Appendix 16)

Page 7
OFFICIAL

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 2 July 2021/3

(iii)

that the update on the 2020/21 NYPF Statement of Accounts be noted.

The meeting concluded at 10.35am.
SML

Page 8
OFFICIAL

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 2 July 2021/4

Agenda Item 6
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
10 September 2021
Request from Hambleton District Council to admit Broadacres Housing Association
into the North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Report of the Treasurer

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

Broadacres Housing Association wish to join the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF) and
for their assets and liabilities to be covered by a transfer agreement with Hambleton District
Council. Broadacres are currently members of the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA).

1.2

Such a proposal requires the agreement of the Board of Broadacres Housing Association;
Hambleton District Council; the North Yorkshire Pension Fund Committee; and then the
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities & Local Government (in that order). This report
seeks to determine whether NYPF wish to support the proposal.

2.0

Background

2.1

In 1993, around 80 employees from Hambleton District Council were transferred to the body
that subsequently became Broadacres Housing Association. These employees were entitled
to be active members of the LPFA within the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). It is
not clear why employees were members of the LPFA as opposed to NYPF given the
geography of the housing stock etc.

2.2

Broadacres closed access to the LGPS for new entrants in 2005 and, at the time of writing,
they have eight active employees within the LPFA. A cessation debt will become due to the
LPFA at the point when the last active employee leaves employment (including retirement).
This debt will need to be met from Broadacres and is likely to be a large enough sum
(estimated at £7.2m) to hamper their ambitions for delivering housing in their areas.

2.3

As a result, Broadacres have been seeking to find an alternative way to provide for their
pension liabilities whilst mitigating any cessation debt. This has culminated in a request to
“swap” membership of the LPFA for membership of NYPF and more details are set out below
as to how this could be constructed.

3.0

The Request from Hambleton District Council on behalf of Broadacres

3.1

Broadacres’ proposal is:
 that they close the LPFA and all of its assets and liabilities in relation to their
participation in the LPFA are transferred instead to the NYPF;
 those assets and liabilities are added to Hambleton District Council's own assets and
liabilities in the NYPF and as the LPFA liabilities are transferred out, when Broadacres
Housing Association’s cessation debt is calculated, it will be zero;
 that arrangements are made between Broadacres and Hambleton District Council to
provide adequate funding for the liabilities that transfer and an agreement is concluded
between Hambleton District Council and Broadacres.

Page 9
OFFICIAL

3.2

Such transfer agreements are not uncommon. This case and proposal from Broadacres /
Hambleton District Council is somewhat different, however, in that it involves the transfer of a
closed scheme – i.e. new starters within Broadacres are no longer able to join the LGPS. We
are not familiar with similar closed schemes being transferred into other Pension Funds but a
discussion has taken place with officials from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) and we have been assured that there have been similar examples
which have received the support of the Secretary of State. Officials advised that any request
for this transfer to be processed required the approval of NYPF and that MHCLG would then
consult with any affected bodies (effectively the NYPF and Hambleton District Council) before
any direction is made by the Secretary of State.

4.0

Alternatives Available to Broadacres

4.1

In September 2020 a change to LGPS legislation (Regulation 64) allowed admitted bodies to
negotiate deferred debt agreements. This is a new ability to defer an exit valuation. The
employer becomes a “deferred employer” and its assets, liabilities and secondary
contributions are reassessed at each valuation. No primary contributions are payable as
accrual of benefits has ceased. Alternatively, a new provision (Regulation 64B) has been
introduced enabling exit payments to be spread over a reasonable period (subject to this
being in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement / Admissions and Terminations Policy).

4.2

The Broadacres view is that Regulation 64 still leaves them open to ongoing liabilities ad
infinitum whilst Regulation 64B means that the debt still becomes crystallised. The view of
Broadacres is that they would rather not tie up their own resources in this manner at the
expense of investment on social housing in their locality.

4.3

Appendix A sets out the case submitted by Broadacres to secure the support from
Hambleton District Council. Appendix B is the report which was subsequently considered and
approved by Hambleton District Council.

5.0

Proposed Financial Arrangements between Broadacres and Hambleton District Council

5.1

Based on financial information provided at 30 September 2020, Broadacres had a surplus of
£0.3m (or £1.0m as per the report in Appendix B) on the LPFA's ongoing funding basis.
Following actuarial assessments of a transfer agreement with HDC the expectation is closer to
a break-even position for the former Broadacres liabilities alone (circa 15% of Hambleton
District Council’s liabilities in any NYPF post transfer).

5.2

The LPFA has provided an anticipated cessation debt for BHA’s element of the LGPS
managed by the LPFA. This has been calculated as £7.2m.

5.3

Broadacres acknowledges that Hambleton District Council will be taking on greater risk
associated with these additional liabilities in the NYPF. A financial arrangement has therefore
been proposed between Broadacres and Hambleton District Council.

5.4

Broadacres proposes to provide £2m to Hambleton District Council to support the increased
employers pension contribution. This is approximately sufficient to cover the remaining years
of contributions relating to the LPFA actives plus anticipated movements in the fund.
Additionally, they will provide a long term agreement for seven years, from the transfer date,
where a maximum of £3m will be made available in the event that potential risks occur that
could not have been foreseen - these assumptions have been detailed by AON acting as
actuarial advisers to Hambleton District Council.

5.5

BHA have further agreed that on the day of any transfer, should there be a deficit position on
their element of the LGPS fund, then this will be addressed so there is a ‘breakeven’ position
from the very start.

5.6

The approach proposed by Broadacres and Hambleton District Council effectively allows
Broadacres to enjoy the Hambleton District Council strength of covenant. The proposed sums
paid from Broadacres to Hambleton District Council, and the further arrangements set out in
paragraph 5.4 above, help to mitigate some of the additional risk that Hambleton District

Page 10
OFFICIAL

Council will be taking on but the value of the liabilities will only be truly known when no further
LGPS pension payments are due to former Broadacres employees.
5.7

Whilst a sum of £7.2m is significant, the impact on the overall position of NYPF will be
negligible given the overall assets and liabilities of the NYPF.

5.8

From a NYPF perspective the additional risk is met entirely by Hambleton District Council so
the Committee can take some comfort from that but the Committee should:

seek to assure itself that Hambleton District Council were sufficiently clear about the
additional risks inherited as part of the transfer agreement – see Appendix B.



appreciate that there may be an adverse financial impact upon the overall position for
NYPF which would then impact Hambleton District Council directly.



be clear on the basis by which it is prepared to grant the request, should that be the
case.



recognise that Hambleton District Council as a sovereign body can support this
request but the outcome will be binding upon the successor unitary council for North
Yorkshire should local government reorganisation take place as set out by the
Secretary of State on 21 July 2021.

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

The Fund’s external legal advisers have stated that they are unaware of any similar
arrangements having been carried out. They were not able to offer assurance that the
proposal was clearly in line with the Regulations and noted that the proposal does give rise to
substantial financial risks to which HDC would be exposed to. MHCLG officials have, on the
contrary, advised that they have permitted similar arrangements, albeit principally with
colleges rather than with councils / admission bodies.

6.2

It is also noted that NYPF and LPFA would need to negotiate and enter an agreement as to
the assets and liabilities that would transfer in the event the proposal is accepted (to avoid
being “short changed” in any negotiation after the direction order, or entering into a dispute).
NYPF and HDC would also have to negotiate and enter an agreement in relation to the
Broadacres liabilities being “subsumed” by HDC following transfer. It has been suggested that
these details are satisfactorily negotiated prior to any application to the Secretary of State
should the Committee agree to proceed. This is suggested as the Fund would lose control
after the application and may not secure the level of protections deemed appropriate.

6.3

Given the issues raised in paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 it is recommended that, in the event that
the proposal is approved, authority is delegated to the Treasurer of the Pension Fund to
further test out the approach with MHCLG (to ensure any wasted time is minimised if issues
are then identified) and to carry out negotiations with both LPFA and HDC as required (to
protect the interests of NYPF).

Page 11
OFFICIAL

7.0

Recommendation

7.1

The Committee is requested to:7.1.1

consider whether or not it supports admittance of Broadacres into the NYPF; and

7.1.2

should the Committee agree to the request, delegate authority to the Treasurer of
NYPF to:
i.

further test out the approach with MHCLG; and

ii.

conclude negotiations with the LPFA and HDC in order to protect the interests
of the NYPF; and

iii.

in the event of satisfactory progress to make the transfer request to the
Secretary of State and respond to any subsequent consultation.

Gary Fielding
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
NYCC
County Hall
Northallerton
10 September 2021

Page 12
OFFICIAL

Appendix A
1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

As a result of a Stock Transfer Agreement (STA) dated 29 April 1993, around 80 employees
from Hambleton District Council (Council) were transferred to the employment of what was
then known as Hambleton Housing Association Limited (now Broadacres Housing Association
(BHA)).

1.2

Prior to the transfer, these employees were eligible to be or perhaps were active members of
the London Pension Fund in the Local Government Pension Scheme (commonly referred to
as the LPFA). Given the location of all of the units transferred to BHA under the STA, it is not
entirely clear why the employees were members of the LPFA and not the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund (NYPF) in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS); this would have
been the fund that geographically matched the location of the housing stock and the staff
employed to maintain the housing stock and carry out other services ancillary to the provision
of the housing stock.

1.3

BHA’s LGPS was closed to new entrants in 2005 and there are currently eight BHA
employees who are active members of the LPFA (LPFA Actives). Their age profile is such
that there could be a number of retirements over the next few years; the youngest LPFA
Active might be expected to reach retirement age in the next 5-8 years. Continuing to
participate in the LPFA until the last LPFA Active leaves employment (as opposed to closing
the LPFA now) allows a build-up of further accrual and potentially a large Cessation Debt
(triggered as a result of ceasing to employ any LPFA Actives) becoming payable later.

1.4

In September 2020 a change to LGPS legislation (Regulation 64) allowed admitted bodies to
negotiate deferred debt agreements. This is a new ability to defer an exit valuation. The
employer becomes a “deferred employer” and its assets, liabilities and secondary
contributions are reassessed at each valuation. No primary contributions are payable as
accrual of benefits has ceased. This leaves BHA open to ongoing liabilities ad infinitum.
Alternatively, a new provision (Regulation 64B) has been introduced enabling exit payments to
be spread over a reasonable period (subject to this being in the Fund’s Funding Strategy
Statement). Under this approach the debt is still crystallised.

1.5

BHA has been reviewing its pension strategy since 2018, identifying areas of risk to BHA and
the sustainability of its long term goals. Even with a payment plan in place, tying up homes as
security to cover the costs of exiting a pension scheme, BHA will have to reprofile investment
spending on social housing to the detriment of the local community and wider regional area.

2.

PROPOSAL

2.1

Our proposal is:

2.2

2.1.1

that BHA closes the LPFA and all of its assets and liabilities in relation to BHA's
participation in the LPFA are transferred instead to the NYPF;

2.1.2

those assets and liabilities are added to Hambleton District Council's own assets
and liabilities in the NYPF and as the LPFA liabilities are transferred out, when
BHA's Cessation Debt is calculated, it will be zero. The funding implications for the
Council are discussed in Section 3 below.

The process described in paragraph 2.1 above, is commonly referred to by actuaries and
advisers familiar with the LGPS as 'subsumption'. This has occurred several times previously
within local authorities across the UK, including in 2019 between Watford Community Housing
Association, Watford Borough Council and Hertfordshire Pension Fund. It is not a defined
term in the LGPS Regulations. However, it is possible under the LGPS Regulations, because:
2.2.1

the administering authorities of each fund in the LGPS have significant discretion in
how to calculate an employer's contributions; and

2.2.2

members of the LGPS are assigned the appropriate administering authority for their
circumstances (i.e. BHA's LPFA Actives have been assigned to the LPFA). It is
possible to substitute a different administering authority (such as the NYPF) in

Page 13
OFFICIAL

LPFA's place, however this will require a direction from the Secretary of State. BHA
and Hambleton District Council will jointly need to apply for that direction to the
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government.
2.3

This solution would therefore require the consent and cooperation of Hambleton District
Council, North Yorkshire County Council, as administering authority of the NYPF, and the
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government.

3.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

3.1

Based on financial information we have previously been provided, at 30 September 2020,
BHA had a surplus of £0.3m on the LPFA's ongoing funding basis. Following the subsumption
of BHA's assets and liabilities by the Council and a transfer of these assets and liabilities from
the LPFA to the NYPF, utilising the different actuarial assumptions fund by fund, we would
expect the Council to be break-even in the NYPF in relation to the former BHA liabilities. The
former BHA liabilities would represent around 15% of the Council's liabilities in the NYPF post
transfer and would therefore have a relatively small impact on its overall long term risk profile.

3.2

The LPFA has provided an anticipated Cessation Debt for BHA’s element of the LGPS
managed by the LPFA. This has been calculated as £7.2m.

3.3

In agreeing to subsume the assets and liabilities of BHA, BHA acknowledges that Hambleton
District Council will be taking on the risk associated with these liabilities in the NYPF.
Hambleton District Council would need to acknowledge this as well. As is the volatile nature
of pension liabilities, there is always the possibility that there could be an increase in the size
of the former BHA liabilities in the future, which Hambleton District Council will be required to
fund. If there is an increase in the size of the former BHA liabilities due to changes in NYPF's
actuarial assumptions, it is likely that Hambleton District Council would witness an increase in
the size of its own liabilities in the NYPF too, of course. This is proposed to be mitigated by
BHA some-what as described in the next paragraph 3.4

3.4

BHA proposes to provide £2m to Hambleton District Council to support the increased
employers pension contribution. This is approximately sufficient to cover the remaining years
of contributions relating to the LPFA Actives plus anticipated movements in the fund.
Additionally, BHA will provide a long term agreement for seven years, from the transfer date,
where a maximum of £3m will be made available in the event that potential risks occur that
could not have been foreseen e.g. equity values fall by 25%, discount rate falls by 1%, Life
expectancy increase by 2 years. These assumptions have been detailed by AON, Hambleton
District Council’s actuarial advisers. In those seven years two triennial actuarial valuations will
have occurred and the position of NYPF will have changed due to assumptions in liabilities
and the value of the assets.

3.5

BHA have further agreed that on the day of any transfer, should there be a deficit position on
their element of the LGPS fund, then this will be addressed so there is a ‘breakeven’ position
from the very start.

4.

REACTIONS

4.1

Whilst technically not required, BHA would consult with the LPFA Actives in relation to its
decision to close the LPFA and transfer them to an alternative scheme for future accrual.
Their accrued benefits in the LPFA will be transferred to the NYPF (and funded by Hambleton
District Council going forward), but would otherwise be unchanged.

4.2

Additionally, there may be a small possibility that Hambleton District Council is criticised for
considering the subsumption of a third party's scheme (which is likely to become a matter of
public record given that these decisions will have to be consulted upon within Hambleton
District Council and minuted). The promise to make good any deficit at transfer, meet
contributions and underwrite any future assumption or market uncertainty will assure
taxpayers that a sound deal has been negotiated.

Page 14
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
Hambleton District Council
Report To:

Cabinet

Date:

6 July 2021

Subject:

Pension Fund

Portfolio Holder:

Economic Development and Finance
Councillor P R Wilkinson

Wards Affected:

All Wards

1.0

Purpose

1.1

For Cabinet to consider the pension fund transfer of Broadacres Housing
Association's Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities in the London Pension
Fund Authority (currently 7 Actives, - that will become pensioners or deferred - 44
Pensioners and 23 deferred pensioners) to Hambleton District Council, participating
in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund.

2.0

Background

2.1

On 29 April 1993, around 80 employees from Hambleton District Council were
transferred to the employment of what was then known as Hambleton Housing
Association Limited (now Broadacres Housing Association) as a result of the Large
Scale Voluntary Transfer (transfer of council houses to a housing association) Stock
Transfer Agreement.

2.2

Prior to the transfer, these employees were eligible to be or perhaps were active
members of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund in the Local Government Pension
Scheme. Given the location of all of the council houses transferred to Broadacres
Housing Association it is not entirely clear why the Broadacres Housing Association
employees became members of the London Pension Fund Authority Local
Government Pension Scheme and didn’t remain in the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund; this would have been the fund that geographically matched the location of the
housing stock and the staff employed to maintain the housing stock and carry out
other services ancillary to the provision of the housing stock.

2.3

Broadacres Housing Association’s admission agreement with the Local Government
Pension Scheme was closed to new entrants in 2005, which means that when all
London Pension Fund Authority active members retire or leave the London Pension
Fund Authority, no pension contributions will be paid to the London Pension Fund
Authority from either Broadacres Housing Association or employees (London
Pension Fund Authority active members), but the pensioners and deferred
pensioners (the ‘liabilities’ in the pension fund as an ongoing costs) will still receive
payments on an ongoing basis. Ceasing to employ active members in the London
Pension Fund Authority will result in all the future costs of the expected benefit
payments being crystallised at this specific moment in time and is expected to lead

Page 15
OFFICIAL

to a large cost payable by Broadacres Housing Association. This cost is calculated
by the actuary to the London Pension Fund Authority, Barnett Waddingham, and is
referred to as the cessation debt, or, exit payment. As at 30 September 2020
Barnett Waddingham estimated that the cessation debt was approximately £7.2m.
For many employers where continued participation in the Local Government
Pension Scheme is statutory, including Hambleton District Council, this cessation
debt would not be required as employees are continually joining so new members
and ongoing contributions from the employer continually support those retiring.
2.4

Broadacres Housing Association has approached Hambleton District Council to
consider this pension fund transfer in order to see if the expected costs of £7.2m to
Broadacres Housing Association can be reduced. The section below sets out the
proposal which is beneficial financially for Hambleton District Council and also
Broadacres Housing Association where funding would be available to support house
building in the District. Sowerby is the largest scheme at the moment with more
than 90 homes planned over the coming years. Plans are in place over the next
three years to develop in Hutton Rudby, more proposals for Huby, as well as
Northallerton and Stokesley. Hambleton District Council’s commitment to the longterm support of Broadacres Housing Association is already borne out from previous
investment where £35m has been provided to Broadacres Housing Association to
build affordable homes in the area since 2015.

3.0

Proposal

3.1

The proposal from Broadacres Housing Association to Hambleton District Council is
to exit the current scheme, where pensioners and deferred pensioners would
become the responsibility of Hambleton District Council and the assets and liabilities
in the London Pension Fund Authority would transfer to Hambleton District Council
in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund; Hambleton District Council would be the
guarantor. This arrangement would be drawn up in what is known as a
subsumption agreement. This has occurred several times previously within local
authorities across the UK, including in 2019 between Watford Community Housing
Association, Watford Borough Council and Hertfordshire Pension Fund.

3.2

The proposal also includes a separate legal agreement as follows:


Assets and Liabilities transferred - the assets and liabilities are added to
Hambleton District Council's own assets and liabilities in the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund and Hambleton District Council is compensated from
Broadacres Housing Association for doing this.



Actual transfer date of assets and liabilities - the London Pension Fund
Authority liabilities are transferred to Hambleton District Council in the North
Yorkshire Pension Fund at the date of cessation and if there is a deficit
position (liabilities are greater than the assets in the receiving scheme, the
North Yorkshire Pension Fund, as assessed by the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund Actuary) Broadacres Housing Association will cover this shortfall so
that on the transfer date there is a ‘breakeven’ position where assets equal
liabilities.

Page 16
OFFICIAL



Volatility - the position will be monitored by Hambleton District Council's
actuarial advisor with a long term agreement for 7 years between Hambleton
District Council and Broadacres Housing Association where funding will be
made available from Broadacres Housing Association to Hambleton District
Council in the event that potential risks occur that would lead to additional
funding strains (deficits emerging in respect of the transferring liabilities) e.g.
equity values fall, discount rates fall, Life expectancy increases. Examples of
the impact of such risks were provided by Hambleton District Council’s
actuarial advisers – Aon – in a report providing an understanding of the
liabilities and how to mitigate this risk.



Volatility detail on monitoring mechanism - The detail on the mechanism
for monitoring the volatility and triggering any additional top up payment will
be set out in the legal agreement and will cover, amongst other things, the
frequency of valuations (expected to be in line with regular LGPS funding
valuations with a final valuation taken at the 7 year point with any emerging
deficit at that time being made good by BHA); timing of additional payments
(where required subsequent to each valuation) payable directly to Hambleton
District Council; confirmation that any emerging surplus remains within the
Fund for Hambleton District Council's benefit. Any related advisory costs will
be met by Broadacres Housing Association.

3.3

The funding implications of paragraph 3.2 are detailed in financial implications
section 5.0 of the report below.

4.0

The Process

4.1

The subsumption agreement requires the consent and cooperation of Hambleton
District Council, North Yorkshire County Council, as administering authority of the
North Yorkshire Pension Fund, and the Secretary of State for Housing,
Communities and Local Government. Initial discussions between North Yorkshire
Pension Fund and Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) have indicated that this would be looked on favourably.

4.2

Approval is therefore sought from Hambleton District Council through this report in
July at Cabinet and Council, where subsequent approval will be confirmed at the
next meeting of North Yorkshire Pension Fund committee in September 2021 and
then the application for consent to the Secretary of State would proceed.
Agreement from Broadacres Housing Association’s Board has already been agreed.

4.3

It should be noted that in September 2020 there was a change to Local Government
Pension Scheme legislation which does provide alternative more flexible
arrangements which could potentially enable Broadacres Housing Association to
exit the LPFA without the payment of an immediate exit debt . However, such
flexibilities are at the discretion of the relevant administering authority, and could
result in a similar level of cost but spread over an extended period. In any case, it is
considered that that the option of Hambleton District Council ‘subsuming’
Broadacres Housing Association pensioners and deferred pensioners is the better
option financially for both organisations. Hambleton District Council benefits as
Broadacres Housing Association will be able to build and develop more housing in
the area and also Broadacres Housing Association are prepared to remunerate and

Page 17
OFFICIAL

support Hambleton District Council in this ‘subsumption’ agreement where further
information is in the Financial Implications section of this report.
5.0

Link to Council Priorities

5.1

Support will be provided to all four of the Council priorities and key corporate projects.

6.0

Risk Assessment

6.1

Risk in approving the recommendations

Risk

Implication

Prob Imp. Total Preventative Action

Reputational
Risk to the
Council

Council may
be criticised

3

4

12

Financial

The market is
volatile and
leads to
increased
costs

3

5

15

Net Net
Prob Impact
3
4

Broadacres Housing
Association are
providing financial
support as detailed in
section 7.0 Financial
Implications
Broadacres Housing 3
Association are
providing financial
support as detailed in
section 7.0 Financial
Implications and
which will be
included in a legal
agreement

3

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

The financial information included in this section is provided by the London Pension
Fund Authority actuary – Barnett Waddingham - and also the Council appointed
actuarial advisers – Aon – to support the understanding of the pension fund
transfer. The total costs of £7,000 incurred by the Council, have been paid in full by
Broadacres Housing Association. In addition, Broadacres Housing Association
have agreed to meet all costs in relation to the pension fund transfer for Hambleton
District Council and the North Yorkshire Pension Fund.

7.2

The London Pension Fund Authority has calculated the anticipated cessation debt
for Broadacres Housing Association’s element of the Local Government Pension
Scheme at £7.2m on 30 September 2020. This is the estimated amount that
Broadacres Housing Association would need to pay to London Pension Fund
Authority, subject to final changes in membership, assumptions, and fund
experience (eg investment returns) at the final exit date ,if Hambleton District
Council did not subsume the pensioners and deferred pensioners into the North
Yorkshire Pension Fund.

7.3

Assets and Liabilities transferred - In Hambleton District Council agreeing to
subsume the assets and liabilities of Broadacres Housing Association, Hambleton
District Council will be taking on the risk associated with these liabilities in the North
Yorkshire Pension Fund in future. Broadacres Housing Association proposes to

Page 18
OFFICIAL

Net
total
12

9

provide £2m to Hambleton District Council to go some way to support this and
mitigate the adverse risk.
7.4

Actual transfer date of assets and liabilities - Based on financial information we
have previously been provided, at 30 September 2020, Broadacres Housing
Association had a surplus of £1.0m on the London Pension Fund Authority's
ongoing funding basis. Following the subsumption of Broadacres Housing
Association’s assets and liabilities by the Hambleton District Council and a transfer
of these assets and liabilities from the London Pension Fund Authority to the North
Yorkshire Pension Fund utilising the different actuarial assumptions fund by fund,
the updated calculation at the time of transfer would expect Hambleton District
Council to be break-even in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund in relation to the
former Broadacres Housing Association liabilities. The former Broadacres Housing
Association liabilities would represent around 15% of the Hambleton District
Council's liabilities in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund post transfer and would
therefore have a relatively small impact on its overall long-term risk profile.
Broadacres Housing Association have further agreed that on the day of any
transfer, should there be a deficit position in respect of the transferring element of
the Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities measured on the basis applicable
to the North Yorkshire Pension Fund, then this will be addressed so there is a
‘breakeven’ position from the very start – i.e. there will be no funding deficit inherited
by Hambleton District Council at the point of transfer.

7.5

Volatility - The volatile nature of pension liabilities means there is always the
possibility that there could be an increase in the size of the former Broadacres
Housing Association liabilities in the future, which Hambleton District Council will be
required to fund. If there is an increase in the size of the former Broadacres
Housing Association liabilities due to changes in North Yorkshire Pension Fund's
actuarial assumptions, it is likely that Hambleton District Council would witness an
increase in the size of its own liabilities in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund too, of
course. This is proposed to be mitigated by Broadacres Housing Association somewhat where Broadacres Housing Association will provide a long term agreement for
seven years, from the transfer date being just over two triennial valuation cycles,
where a maximum of £3m will be made available in the event that potential risks
occur that lead to a detrimental impact on the funding position related to the
transferred assets and liabilities e.g. equity values fall, discount rates fall, Life
expectancy increases. Specific adverse risk scenarios have previously been
detailed by AON, Hambleton District Council’s actuarial advisers which have been
used to inform this proposed course of mitigation. In those seven years two triennial
actuarial valuations will have occurred and the position of North Yorkshire Pension
Fund will have changed due to changes in assumptions; membership experience
and value of the assets.

8.0

Legal Implications

8.1

The transfer of the pensioners and deferred pensions from Broadacres Housing
Association in the London Pension Fund Authority to the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund with regards to Hambleton District Council being the guarantor will be subject
to a ‘subsumption’ agreement.

Page 19
OFFICIAL

8.2

The transfer will also be subject to a legal agreement between Broadacres Housing
Association and Hambleton District Council, where more detailed information is
available in the Financial Implications section of the report under paragraph 7.0 and
will include:
 £2m from Broadacres Housing Association to partially mitigate the risks of
the transfer;
 If there is a deficit position on Broadacres Housing Association element of
their Local Government Pension Scheme fund, then this will be addressed so
there is a ‘breakeven’ position from the very start, this is in addition to the
£2m provided by Broadacres Housing Association as described above
 Up to £3m being made available from Broadacres Housing Association in the
event that potential risks occur that lead to a detrimental impact on the
funding position related to the transferred assets and liabilities for seven
years from the date of transfer; this is in addition to the two points described
above for the £2m and any payment required to ensure the ‘breakeven’
position. Where experience is favourable, any surplus in the Fund will be
retained in the North Yorkshire Pension Fund and will not be returned to
Broadacres Housing Association.

9.0

Equality/Diversity Issues

9.1

Equality and diversity issues have been considered however there are no issues
associated with this report.

10.0 Recommendation
10.1

That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council:
(1)

the transfer of Broadacres Housing Association pensioners and deferred
pensioners to Hambleton District Council from the London Pension Fund
Authority to North Yorkshire Pension Fund subject to a subsumption
agreement as described in paragraph 3.1;

(2)

the transfer of Broadacres Housing Association pensioners and deferred
pensioners to Hambleton District Council from the London Pension Fund
Authority to North Yorkshire Pension Fund subject to a legal agreement as
described in paragraph 8.2.

Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (151 Officer)
Background papers:
Author ref:
Contact:

None
LBW
Louise Branford-White
Director of Finance and Commercial (151 Officer)
Tel: 01609 767024

Page 20
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 8
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Fund Committee
10 September 2021
Administration Report
Report of the Treasurer
1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1. To provide Members with information relating to the administration of the Fund in the quarter and
to provide an update on key issues and initiatives which impact the administration team.
2.

Admission Agreements & New Academies

2.1. The latest position relating to admission agreements and academy conversions is shown in
Appendix 1.
3.

Administration

3.1. Membership Statistics
Membership Category
Active
Deferred
Pensioner
(incl spouse & dependant members)
Total

At 31/03/2021
+/- Change (%) At 30/06/2021
33,640
-4.79%
38,836
-0.27%
25,419
+1.27%
97,895

32,029
38,732
25,743
96,504

3.2. Throughput Statistics


Period from 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021

Case type
Transfer In quotes
Transfer Out quotes
Employer estimates
Employee estimates
Retirement quotes
Preserved benefits
Death in payment or in service
Refunds
Actual retirement procedure
Interfund transfers
Aggregate member records
Process GMP
Others
Total Cases


Cases
Cases
Outstanding
Cases
Outstanding at
at Start
New Cases Closed
End
9
46
54
1
28
176
172
32
18
82
98
2
37
177
203
11
57
802
793
66
107
340
365
82
39
84
80
43
27
407
401
33
497
1,219
1,074
642
207
198
273
132
211
680
704
187
2
0
1
1
214
395
358
251
1,453
4,606
4,576
1,483

Alongside the above cases, the Pensions team also handled 3,873 phone calls (average
102 per day) and 7,447 emails received via the Pensions Inbox (average 146 per day) in
the quarter to 30 June 2021.

Page 21
OFFICIAL

Performance Statistics


The performance figures for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 are as follows:

Performance Indicator
Measured work completed within target

Target in period
98%

Achieved
94%

Customers surveyed ranking service good or excellent

94%

87%

Increase numbers of registered self-service users by 700
per quarter (total registered users 30,642)

700

974






Both our output and work completed within target continue to be impacted by the
requirement for resource to be focussed on our major projects particularly as they near
completion.
Our satisfaction rating has been impacted by issues we have experienced with the service
Prudential has been providing in recent months. We also had issues with missed calls due
to high volumes and a small number of staff taking calls. This has been managed by
introducing voicemail and call back functionality.
Our priority continues to be to pay member benefits as promptly as we can.

3.3. Commendations and Complaints

This quarter the following commendations and complaints were received:
Commendations
Date Number Summary
Apr
0
May
1
Excellent manner and helpfulness were second to none
Jun
1
Thank you for taking the time in dealing with the matter
Complaints
Date Number
Apr
2
May

1

Jun

0


Summary
IHER – Complaint about tier of benefit awarded
Admin – Complaint about reduction to pension following reconciliation project
Admin - Complaint about delay in receiving benefits due to Prudential.
Subsequently withdrew complaint against NYPF

The complaint categories are:
a)
b)
c)

Admin - these can relate to errors in calculations, delays in processing and making
payment of benefits.
Regs - these relate to a complaint where regulations prevent the member being able
to do what they want to.
IHER - these are where members have been declined for early retirement on the
grounds of ill health and are appealing the decision through the Internal Disputes
Resolution Procedure.

Lessons Learned
Having reviewed the complaints received in the period there were no patterns identified requiring
further attention.
3.4. Annual Benefit Statements 2021
Deferred member statements have been produced for 99.78% of the deferred membership on 19
May 2021 (38,671 / 38,758 meaning 87 members have not received a statement yet and these are
being investigated).

Page 22
OFFICIAL

Active member statement templates have been updated and signed off. Year End processing is
well underway and we are preparing to run the actual calculations in mid August.
Files received - 197 (73 i-Connect (employer portal) & 124 year end submissions)
168 files/submissions were received on time, with 25 received in May (21,371 members, both
NYCC & CYC were received in May), 3 in June (23 members) and 1 in July (3 members). Of the
181 posted to date, 119 have been error free. This demonstrates a significant improvement in the
timeliness and quality of the data we are now receiving.
4.

Issues and Initiatives

4.1.

GMP and Pensioner Data Reconciliation
All work on this project has been paused to enable focus on the payroll project. Analysis and
reporting of the final position remains outstanding and this will be brought to a subsequent
meeting.

4.2.

Breaches Policy & Log
The North Yorkshire Pension Fund’s Breaches Log is included at Appendix 2 for review. There
are no new entries.

4.3.

Employer Charging
The vast majority of employers in the Fund are able to meet deadlines for contribution payments
and sending in the supporting documentations every month. In the past year however, there have
been a few incidences of “repeat offenders” who are persistent with either late or missing
payments and paperwork. The Fund has not been applying its charging policy for such infractions
since the start of the pandemic; however in August 2021 we wrote to all employers in the Fund to
remind them of the contribution due dates and to notify them that the charging policy will be
enforced from September 2021.

4.4.

Administration System Project
The delivery stage of this project and its various work streams is progressing well.
 On-boarding of employers to our online portal i-Connect has been paused to allow the
team to focus on Year End and benefit statements.
 This will be restarted in September with focus on our two largest employers, NYCC & CYC
as priority.
 Preparatory work was undertaken prior to year-end so we are hopeful the on-boarding for
these will be less time consuming or labour intensive when we get to that point.
 A revised completion date of 31 March 2022 has been agreed.
 Pensioners have been successfully paid from our interim payroll for March through to July.
 The system was merged into the Live database on 30 July and we have successfully paid
the first weekly payments from the new merged system.
 New processes have been developed and training provided to both administration and
payroll teams.
 Pensioners have been invited to register online to enable them to view payslips and P60s
and keep their data up to date. Those who do not wish to do this can opt out and continue
to receive paper documents.
 A small project is now underway to update all the records for those pensioners who have
opted out.
 The first payroll run is due on 31 August. Once this has been successfully completed this
workstream will be complete.
 The data reconciliation work will now be finalised.
 Website development is progressing slowly due to ensuring all requirements are captured
and all aspects of cyber security are included.

Page 23
OFFICIAL

4.5.

Other Key Projects

4.5.1

McCloud
Work has commenced on the data gathering phase of this project with Aquila Heywood already
contacting our employers with the data request. They have received 20 data files to date.
Aquila Heywood will collect, check, validate and load the corrected data into the system. They
are also currently developing the tools to enable all Funds to be able to recalculate benefits and
establish who is impacted and by how much. That part of the project will fall to the team to
complete.

5.

Outstanding Death Grant Case
There has been no further progress or information received for the outstanding death grant case
and therefore there is nothing further to consider at this time.

6.

Governance Documents

6.1

The Funding Strategy Statement and the Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy have
been amended. A description of the documents is included in the following paragraphs, together
with comments on the changes that have been made since they were last approved and any
actions that are required by the PFC. The changes that have been made to previously approved
versions can be seen in tracked changes in the appropriate appendix.

6.2

The Funding Strategy Statement, attached as Appendix 3 describes how employers’ pension
liabilities are to be met going forward, how employer contributions will be kept as stable as
possible, and a prudent long-term view of those liabilities. The policy has been reviewed by the
Fund’s actuary following MHCLG guidance on how to use new employer flexibilities. A general
review and update has also been carried out ahead of the 31 March 2022 triennial valuation of
the Fund. Members are asked to approve this document and, following consultation with
employers, delegate authority to the Treasurer of the Fund to respond to any comments and
feedback from employers.

6.3

The Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy, attached as Appendix 4 outlines the
Fund’s policy on admissions into the Fund and the methodology for assessing an exit payment
when an employer leaves the Fund. The policy has been reviewed by both the Fund’s actuary
and legal advisor following MHCLG guidance on how to use new employer flexibilities. A general
review and update has also been carried out including the position regarding entry and exit of
academies. Members are asked to approve this document and, following consultation with
employers, delegate authority to the Treasurer of the Fund to respond to any comments and
feedback from employers.

6.4

The Pensions Administration Strategy, attached as Appendix 5 sets out the administration
protocols between employers and the Fund. The policy has been updated to add a ‘Notifiable’
Events’ section for employers.

6.5

Each September a Business Plan Update is produced to enable the PFC to monitor and
measure progress against the 3 year NYPF business plan. This update will be brought to the
November meeting in future to enable a full 6 months of activity to be recorded each year.

7

Member Training

7.1

The Member Training Record showing the training undertaken to May 2021 is attached as
Appendix 6.

7.2

Responses to the CIPFA Skills Matrix are being collated and it is anticipated the results of the
assessment will be brought to a forthcoming meeting following delays due to competing
priorities. It is now proposed that this will be considered alongside the Fund’s business plan and
budget.

Page 24
OFFICIAL

7.3

Following the success of the “Introduction to the LGPS” in-house training session held on 25th
January 2021, consideration is being given to the possibility of arranging subsequent sessions
for Members on individual issues pertinent to the operation of the Fund. Members will be invited
to provide their input in respect of potential subjects for training sessions.

7.4

Upcoming courses, seminars and conferences available to Members are set out in the
schedule attached as Appendix 7. Please contact Kirsty Howes (01609 533298 or email
kirsty.howes@northyorks.gov.uk) for further information or to reserve a place on an event.
Events are limited currently due to the pandemic.

8

Meeting Timetable

8.1

The latest timetable for forthcoming meetings of the Committee and Investment Manager
meetings is attached as Appendix 8. Meetings will continue to be undertaken virtually until
further notice.

9

Recommendations

9.1

Members to note the contents of the report.

9.2

Members are asked to approve changes made to the Funding Strategy Statement and, following
consultation with employers, delegate authority to the Treasurer of NYPF to respond to any
comments and feedback from employers.

9.3

Members are asked to approve changes made to the Admissions and Terminations Funding
Policy and, following consultation with employers, delegate authority to the Treasurer of NYPF
to respond to any comments and feedback from employers.

9.4

Members are asked to approve changes made to the Pensions Administration Strategy and,
following consultation with employers, delegate authority to the Treasurer of NYPF to respond
to any comments and feedback from employers

Gary Fielding
Treasurer of North Yorkshire Pension Fund
NYCC
County Hall
Northallerton
02 September 2021

Page 25
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Academy Conversions – 13 ‘in progress’
Current Position

Wellspring Academy Trust

Target
Conversion Date
1.7.2021

NYCC

Yorkshire Causeway Schools Trust

1.8.2021

Complete

Malton Community Primary
School

NYCC

Hull Collaborative Academy Trust

1.9.2021

In progress but may be joining the East Riding Pension
Fund.

Alanbrooke Community Primary
School
St John Fisher Catholic High
School, Harrogate

NYCC

Elevate Multi Academy Trust

1.11.2021

In progress

NYCC

Bishop Wheeler Catholic Academy Trust

1.12.2021

Delayed from 1.9.2020. Will be progressed nearer the
time

St Joseph’s Catholic Primary
School, Tadcaster
Willow Tree Community Primary
School
Danesgate Community School

NYCC

Bishop Wheeler Catholic Academy Trust

1.1.2022

Delayed from 1.9.2020

Page 27

Name of School

Multi Academy Trust (MAT) Name

Forest Moor School

Local
Authority
NYCC

Skipton Parish CoE School

NYCC

Northern Star Academies Trust

Will be progressed nearer the time

COYC

South York Multi Academy Trust

1.1.2022
(tentative)
TBC

Barkston Ash RC Primary School

NYCC

Possibly with Bishop Wheeler Catholic
Academy Trust

TBC

Delayed from 1.9.2020

St Wilfrid’s Catholic Primary
School, Ripon

NYCC

Possibly with Bishop Wheeler Catholic
Academy Trust

TBC

Delayed from 1.9.2020

All Saints, York

COYC

St Margaret Clitherow Academy Trust

Not known

Delayed from 1.9.2019

Naburn CoE Primary School

COYC

South York Multi Academy Trust

Not known

Delayed from 1.10.2018

Lord Deramore’s Primary School

COYC

South York Multi Academy Trust

Not known

Delayed from 1.11.2018

Elvington CoE Primary School

COYC

South York Multi Academy Trust

Not known

Fishergate Primary School

COYC

South York Multi Academy Trust

Not known

Actuarial calculations provided based on conversion
date of 1.7.18. Conversion delayed, new date not yet
known
Delayed from 1.12.2018

OFFICIAL

Complete

Delayed from 1.9.2018

Admission Bodies - 20 ‘in progress’
Name of Contractor

Staff Transfer
Date

Current Position

NYCC
Ripon Grammar School

Absolutely Catering Limited

1.9.2020

Complete

STAR MAT
All schools in the Trust

Bulloughs Cleaning Services
Ltd

1.4.2021

Complete

Harrogate Borough Council
Security Contract at Harrogate Convention Centre

4 Site Security Services Ltd

1.6.2021

Complete

NYCC
New Teckal company created to deliver the operational
highway maintenance service

NY Highways Ltd

1.6.2021

Complete

Harrogate Borough Council

Brimhams Active Limited (a
local authority trading
company admitted as a
designated body)

1.8.2021

Complete

Pathfinder Multi Academy Trust
Hempland Primary School
Heworth CE Primary School
St Lawrence CE Primary School
Tang Hall Primary School
Clifton with Rawcliffe Primary (CWR) School
New Earswick Primary School
Rufforth Primary School

Hutchison Catering Limited

27.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
Bishopthorpe Infant School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
Carr Infant School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

Page 28

Name of Employer

OFFICIAL

Name of Contractor

Staff Transfer
Date

Current Position

City of York Council
Lord Deramore’s Primary School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
Poppleton Road Primary School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
Ralph Butterfield Primary School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
St Paul's Primary School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

City of York Council
Yearsley Grove Primary School

Mellors Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust
OLQM RC Primary School York
St George's RC Primary School, York
St Wilfrid's RC Primary School

Hutchison Catering Limited

28.7.2021

In progress

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust
Sacred Heart RC VA Primary School, Northallerton
St Augustine's RC Secondary School Scarborough
St Benedict's RC Primary School, Ampleforth
St George's RC Primary School, Scarborough
St Joseph's RC Primary School, Pickering
St Mary's RC Primary School, Malton
St Mary's RC Primary School, Richmond
St Peter's RC Primary School, Scarborough

Hutchison Catering Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

City of York Council
All Saints RC School, York

Hutchison Catering Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

Page 29

Name of Employer

OFFICIAL

Name of Contractor

Staff Transfer
Date

Current Position

Ebor Academy Trust
Haxby Road Primary Academy (catering contract)

Hutchison Catering Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

NYCC
Easingwold Primary School – catering contract

Taylor Shaw Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

NYCC
Moorside Primary School and Nursery – catering contract

Taylor Shaw Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

NYCC
Colburn Community Primary School – catering contract

Taylor Shaw Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

Elevate Multi Academy Trust
Catering contract at all schools in the Trust

Mellors Catering Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

Wellspring Academy Trust
The Forest School, Knaresborough
Springwell Harrogate Academy (was the Grove Academy)

Norse

1.9.2021

In progress

South Bank Multi Academy Trust
Woodthorpe Primary School
York High School

Dolce Limited

1.9.2021

In progress

Hope Learning Trust
Catering contracts at:Baldersby St James CoE Primary Academy
Burton Green Primary School
Forest of Galtres Anglican Methodist Primary School
Poppleton Ousebank Primary Academy
Skelton Primary School

Contractor not yet appointed 1.1.2022

Page 30

Name of Employer

OFFICIAL

Delayed from July 2020 due to Covid-19

Exited Employers – 18
Name of Employer

Date exited the Fund

OCS Group UK Limited

31.3.2017

Superclean Services Limited

16.7.2017

Joseph Rowntree Charitable Trust

31.12.2017

York Arts Education (Community Interest Company)

31.3.2018

Be Independent

31.7.2018

Housing & Care 21

31.8.2018

Consultant Cleaners

Page 31

31.10.2018 (voluntary liquidation)

The Wilberforce Trust

22.3.2019

Dolce Limited

14.4.2019

Schools Plus

30.4.2019

Sewells Facilities Management Limited

21.12.2020

Sheffield International Venues

31.1.2021

Caterservice Ltd

12.2.2021

Enterprise Managed Services Ltd (Amey)

28.2.2021

OFFICIAL

Name of Employer

Date exited the Fund

Taylor Shaw Limited

12.2.2021

RCCN Limited

31.3.2021

Streamline Taxis Limited

28.5.2021

Ringway Infrastructure Services Limited

31.5.2021

Page 32
OFFICIAL

Description of Breach
Date
Category
31/08/2017 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Regulation being
Cause of Breach
breached
Large backlog meant we were unable to Reg 89 of LGPS
establish which category members
Regs 2013
should fall into at statement date.
Year End queries still outstanding at
issue date.

Referred
Referred
Outcome of Referral
to PFC
to PB
to PFC & PB
14/09/2017 19/01/2018 Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
Creation of Breaches Log to
record position.

Reported to
Regulator
N

Statements issued immediately.
Process under review by team leader.
Checklist created and process will be audited in
2018 to ensure checklist being used and process
being robustly followed
As soon as realised payment was unauthorised,
informed member and reported to HMRC.
Awaiting confirmation of scheme tax liability.

22/02/2018 19/01/2018 PB - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
PFC - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.

N

22/02/2018 19/01/2018 PB - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
PFC - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.

NReported to
HMRC

Backlog has been reduced so in a better position
regarding correct eligibility for statements.
Significant year end queries (2,399) have
impacted statement production. Ers being chased
for response.
Continue to work through errors & queries & issue
ABS' when able to.
Viability of monthly returns being investigated

22/11/2018 11/10/2018 PB - noted the position, agreed
not to report this time but will in
2019.
PFC - noted position, agreed
not to report this time.

N

Effect of Breach & Wider Implications
85.88% of Active members received a
statement = 14.12% did not
94.51% of Deferred members received a
statement = 5.49% did not

Response to Breach
Large backlog means we do not yet know actual
total eligible for a statement.
Continue to reduce the backlog with targetted
initiatives. Target is to have a controlled work
throughput by end 2018.
Continue to work through errors & queries & issue
ABS' when able to.
Introduce monthly returns for our 2 largest
employers by end of 2018 so that errors can be
identifed in real time rather than at year end.

2 members received statements after the
6/10/2017 deadline.
192 manual calculations undertaken and 56
statements issued.
3.5% of members affected
Member received benefits he wasn't entitled
to. No other member affected.
Payment is an unauthorised payment &
must be reported to HMRC, resulting in tax
liability at 55% for the member & additional
tax for the scheme.
86.52% of Active members received a
statement = 13.48% did not
99.76% of Deferred members received a
statement = 0.24% did not

Reported to
DPO
DPO
outcome

Human error

18/12/2017 Administration Incorrectly paid trivial commutation to a
member who has benefits with another fund
and had not commuted those benefits

Human error

31/08/2018 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
issue date.

31/08/2019 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
Reg 89 of LGPS
issue date.
Regs 2013
Clarification on members not worked in
year still outstanding at issue date.
Manual calculation of Annual Allowance
figures still outstanding at issue date.

100% of Deferred members received a
statement.
95.69% of Active members received a
statement. (1,342 members did not)

Analysis of the 1,342 unissued statements
undertaken to identify and isolate reasons. Each
group being worked through to identify what is
required to enable statement to be produced.
Number reduced to 329 as at 9 October, work will
continue until end of year to further reduce
number unissued. Final position: 329 unissued

22/11/2019 03/10/2019 PB - discussed position, noted
improvement from 2018,
requested further analysis by
employer to identify whether an
issue exists at individual
employer level.
Following provision of above
information both PFC & PB
agreed not to report this time.

N

09/04/2020 Administration A member's leaver statement was incorrectly
sent to the wrong member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

15/05/2020 Administration A member's letter was incorrectly sent to the
wrong member along with their own letter.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

15/05/2020 Administration A member's calculation print was incorrectly
sent to the wrong member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

26/05/2020 Administration A pensioner received a payslip which
belonged to another pensioner.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

27/05/2020 Administration A member received a letter meant for a
solicitor dealing with the death of another
member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

31/08/2020 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
Reg 89 of LGPS
issue date.
Regs 2013
Manual calculation of Annual Allowance
figures still outstanding at issue date.
Issues with data quality, suppressed
statements until data corrected and
accurate statments can be issued.

11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
27/11/2020 29/10/2020 PB - Oct meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - Nove meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.

N

11/05/2020 Administration A member's retirement statement was
incorrectly sent to the wrong member.

Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Analysis of the 1,784 unissued statements
undertaken to identify and isolate reasons. Each
group being worked through to identify what is
required to enable statement to be produced.
Number reduced to 274 as at 20 October, work
will continue until end of year to further reduce
number unissued.

Page 33

08/11/2017 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing Personal
Savings Statements not met for all members

Reg 89 of LGPS
Regs 2013

100% of Deferred members received a
statement.
94.21% of Active members received a
statement. (1,784 members did not)

#

OFFICIAL

N

N

N

N

N

N

Description of Breach
Date
Category
30/11/2020 Administration A member contacted us to advise she had
received the starter pack for another member
but with her address on it. The member also
advised there were 2 other members affected.

05/10/2020 Administration Failure to issue 3 members with annual
Pension Saving Statements (PSS) in the
relevant years. One member was missing a
PSS for the 18/19 year, one was missing a
PSS for 16/17 and one was missing a PSS for
16/17, 17/18, 18/19 & 19/20.

Regulation being
Cause of Breach
breached
Employer submitted starter file and the Data Protection Act
data has been mixed up for a number of 2018
members, address 26 records, date of
birth 11 records, payroll no 21 records,
date joined 8 records and school name
18 wrong

There are two main causes as follows:
missing data and staff not realising a
statement should have been issued
when the record was recalculated.

Finance Act 2004

Effect of Breach & Wider Implications
Accidental disclosure of personal data for a
number of members to another member. It
is highly likely that the receipient knows the
person whose information was disclosed.
The 3 original members had discussed it.

Response to Breach
Reported to Veritau. They assessed it as Low risk
level and did not need to be reported to the ICO.
Data sent back to employer to provide corrected
information. Employer advised we have reported
the data breach and we've asked for clarification
of what process changes they have made to
prevent it recurring.
Replacement starter packs issued with correct
details on and covering letter advising reason for
disclosure and contact details for employer.

When the member receives a PSS they
have to declare the tax liability to HMRC via
an annual tax return. They can elect to
either pay the tax charge via a Scheme
Pays option or directly to HMRC. Because
the PSS haven't been issued members are
now late submitting to HMRC.

We have issued the relevant PSS to all 3
members and have had discussions with them
regarding the actions they now need to take.

We are aware of members who have
ignored the information we have sent for a
number of years, when they do contact
HMRC they are advised to just pay what is
due. There appear to be no penalties
applied.

Page 34

Member of staff on post duty that day
Data Protection Act
05/02/2021 Administration A member contacted us to advise she had
received a transfer letter addressed to another did not follow the agreed process put in 2018
member enclosed with her own letter.
place to prevent breaches from
happening.

N

We have reviewed our internal processes and are
taking steps to educate the wider team and
address some of the issues at source rather than
waiting until year end.
A targetted working group will be established in
the summer to address the backlog of changes
we get each year. This will involve training a small
number of staff on the whole Annual Allowance
process, what it is, why it's important, teh impact
on affected members and how to update and
maintain records correctly.

A penalty of up to £300 for failure to provide
the required information on time may be
levied on NYPF when we resubmit our
annual returns for the relevant years.

This taskforce will take responsibility for updating
member records. Once knowledge is established
and embedded further staff will be trained until the
whole team knows what is expected.

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

Recipient was asked to destroy the information.
Process and working practice was reviewed to
ensure it remained relevant.
Staff were reminded of the correct process.
Individual member of staff was spoken to
personally to stress importance of following the
correct process.

OFFICIAL

Referred
Referred
Outcome of Referral
Reported to
to PFC
to PB
to PFC & PB
Regulator
05/03/2021 14/01/2021 PB - Recognised the issue was
N
an employer one rather than a
Fund one.
PFC - Recommended no report
required

05/03/2021 14/01/2021 PB - Require further information
on mitigating actions taken to
prevent recurrance before
reaching a decision about
reporting to tPR. Confirmed by
email 01/03/2021 no need to
report to tPR.
PFC - Recommended no report
required

We have struggled to establish how to report the
breach to HMRC but will resubmit the annual
HMRC returns for the relevant years. We will then
respond to HMRC accordingly.

Because we haven't advised members at
the correct time they have been unable to
take action to mitigate the impact in
subsequent years. Members in this position
often switch to the 50/50 section to reduce
their pension accrual.

#

Reported to
DPO
DPO
outcome

05/02/2021

Score of 04/06/2021 08/04/2021 PB - April meeting, noted
4 - low
position, agreed not to report.
no further
PFC - June meeting, noted
action
position, agreed not to report.

N

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

202119 Funding Strategy Statement
(FSS)

If you require this information in an alternative language or another format such as large type, audio
cassette or Braille, please contact the Pensions Help & Information
Line on 01609 536335

Page 35
0

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This Statement has been prepared by North Yorkshire County Council (the Administering Authority) to set
out the funding strategy for the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (the NYPF), in accordance with Regulation 58
of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and the 2016 guidance issued by
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Pensions Panel.

1. Introduction
The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) (“the Regulations”) provide the
statutory framework from which the Administering Authority is required to prepare a FSS. The key
requirements for preparing the FSS can be summarised as follows:


After consultation with all relevant interested parties involved with the Fund, the Administering
Authority will prepare and publish their funding strategy.



In preparing the FSS, the Administering Authority must have regard to: -



the guidance issued by CIPFA for this purpose; and



the supplementary statutory guidance issued by MHCLG: Guidance on preparing and maintaining
policies on review of employer contributions, employer exit payments and deferred debt
agreements; and



the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) for the NYPF published under Regulation 7 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (as
amended);



The FSS must be revised and published whenever there is a material change in either the policy on
the matters set out in the FSS or the ISS.

The Administering Authority has also considered the Scheme Advisory Board's Guide to Employer
Flexibilities for Administering Authorities and Employers in developing the FSS with details on the Fund’s
policy on these flexibilities set out in the Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy.
Benefits payable under the NYPF are guaranteed by statute and thereby the pensions promise is secure.
The FSS addresses the issue of managing the need to fund those benefits over the long term, whilst at the
same time, facilitating scrutiny and accountability through improved transparency and disclosure.
The Scheme is a defined benefit arrangement with principally final salary related benefits for contributing
members up to 1 April 2014 and Career Averaged Revalued Earnings (“CARE”) benefits earned thereafter.
There is also a “50:50 Scheme Option”, where members can elect to accrue 50% of the full scheme benefits
and pay 50% of the normal member contribution rate.
The benefits provided by the NYPF are specified in the governing legislation (the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014) and the Regulations referred
to above. The required levels of employee contributions are also specified in the Regulations.
Employer contributions are determined in accordance with the Regulations which require that an actuarial
valuation is completed every three years by the actuary, including a rates and adjustments certificate.
Contributions to the NYPF should be set so as to “secure its solvency” and to "ensure long-term cost
efficiency", whilst the actuary must also have regard to the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a
primary rate of contribution as possible. The actuary must have regard to the FSS in carrying out the
valuation.

Page 36
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

2. Purpose of the FSS in Policy Terms
Funding is the making of advance provision to meet the cost of accruing benefit promises. Decisions taken
regarding the approach to funding will therefore determine the rate or pace at which this advance
provision is made. Although the Regulations specify the fundamental principles on which funding
contributions should be assessed, implementation of the funding strategy is the responsibility of the
Administering Authority, acting on the professional advice provided by the actuary.
The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is:


to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers'
pension liabilities are best met going forward;



to support the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary contribution rate as possible;



to ensure the regulatory requirements to set contributions so as to ensure the solvency and longterm cost-efficiency of the fund are met; and



to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities

The intention is for this strategy to be both cohesive and comprehensive for the NYPF as a whole,
recognising that there will be conflicting objectives which need to be balanced and reconciled. Whilst the
position of individual employers must be reflected in the statement, it must remain a single strategy for the
Administering Authority to implement and maintain.

3. Aims and Purpose of the NYPF
The aims of the Fund are to:


enable primary contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible and (subject to the
Administering Authority not taking undue risks) at reasonable cost to the taxpayers, scheduled,
resolution and admitted bodies, whilst achieving and maintaining fund solvency and long-term cost
efficiency, which should be assessed in light of the risk profile of the fund and employers, and the
risk appetite of the Administering Authority and employers alike



manage employers’ liabilities effectively



ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due, and



seek returns on investments within reasonable risk parameters.

The purpose of the Fund is to:


receive monies in respect of contributions, transfer values and investment income,



and pay out monies in respect of scheme benefits, transfer values, costs, charges and expenses as
defined in the Regulations and in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

4. Responsibilities of Key Parties
The Administering Authority should:


operate a pension fund



collect employer and employee contributions, investment income and other amounts due to the
pension fund as stipulated in LGPS Regulations



pay from the pension fund the relevant entitlements as stipulated in LGPS Regulations



invest surplus monies in accordance with the Regulations



ensure that cash is available to meet liabilities as and when they fall due



manage the valuation process in consultation with the NYPF’s actuary

Page 37

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021



prepare and maintain an FSS and an ISS, both after proper consultation with interested parties,
monitor all aspects of the NYPF’s performance and funding and amend the FSS/ISS accordingly



effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as both fund
administrator and scheme employer



enable the local pension board to review the valuation process as set out in their terms of
reference.



determine the amount of any exit credit following the exit of an individual employer from the Fund
in accordance with the Fund's Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy.



ensure consistent use of policies relating to revising employer contributions between formal
valuations, entering into deferred debt arrangements and spreading exit payments and ensure the
process of applying those policies is clear and transparent to all fund employers.

The Individual Employer should:


deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly after determining the appropriate employee
contribution rate (in accordance with the Regulations)



pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date



develop a policy on certain discretions and exercise those discretions as permitted within the
regulatory framework



make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for example,
augmentation of scheme benefits and early retirement strain notify the Administering Authority
promptly of all changes to membership or, as may be proposed, which affect future funding



pay any exit payments on ceasing participation in the NYPF



notify the Administering Authority of any material change in financial circumstances for the
employer

The Fund actuary should:


prepare valuations including the setting of employers’ contribution rates at a level to ensure fund
solvency and long-term cost efficiency after agreeing assumptions with the Administering Authority
and having regard to the FSS and the LGPS Regulations



prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and the funding aspects of
individual benefit-related matters such as pension strain costs, ill health retirement costs,
compensatory added years costs etc,



provide advice and valuations on the exiting of employers from the NYPF



provide advice to the Administering Authority on bonds or other forms of security against the
financial effect on the fund of employer default



assist the Administering Authority in assessing whether employer contributions need to be revised
between valuations as permitted or required by the Regulations, in particular in relation to any
review of contributions between triennial valuations under Regulation 64A



provide views in relation to any decision by the Administering Authority to spread an exit payment
under Regulation 64B



ensure that the Administering Authority is aware of any professional guidance or other professional
requirements that may be of relevance to his or her role in advising the NYPF



advise on funding strategy, the preparation of the FSS, and the inter-relationship between the FSS
and the ISS.

Page 38
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

5. Solvency Issues and Target Funding Levels
Funding Objective
To meet the requirements of the Regulations the Administering Authority’s long term funding objective is
for the Fund to achieve and then maintain sufficient assets to cover 100% of projected accrued liabilities
(the” funding target”) assessed on an ongoing past service basis including allowance for projected final pay
in relation to pre-2014 benefits or where the underpin applies. In the long term, the employer rate would
ultimately revert to the Primary Contribution Rate (also known as the Future Service Rate).
Determination of the Funding Target and Recovery Period
The principal method and assumptions to be used in the calculation of the funding target as at 31 March
2019 are set out in Appendix 1.
Underlying these assumptions are the following two principles:


that the Scheme is expected to continue for the foreseeable future; and



favourable investment performance can play a valuable role in achieving adequate funding over the
longer term.

This allows us to take a longer term view when assessing the contribution requirements for certain
employers. As part of this valuation when looking to avoid material, and potentially unaffordable,
increases in employer contribution requirements we will consider whether we can build into the funding
plan the following: 

stepping in of contribution rate changes for employers where the orphan funding target is adopted
or where the intermediate funding target is being introduced (as defined later in this statement).
For the 2019 valuation, the Administering Authority’s default approach is to step any contribution
increases over a period of 3 years, although in certain circumstances a longer period may be
considered, after consultation with the Actuary.



a longer deficit recovery period than the average future working lifetime, particularly where there
are a number of younger active members.

In considering this the Administering Authority, based on the advice of the Actuary, will consider if this
results in a reasonable likelihood that the funding plan will be successful.
As part of each valuation separate employer contribution rates are assessed by the actuary for each
participating employer or group of employers. These rates are assessed taking into account the
experience and circumstances of each employer, following a principle of no cross-subsidy between
the distinct employers in the Scheme, other than where grouping of employers has been agreed in
line with the policy set out in the Fund's Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy.
In attributing the overall investment performance obtained on the assets of the Scheme to each employer
a pro-rata principle is adopted. This approach is effectively one of applying a notional individual employer
investment strategy identical to that adopted for the Scheme as a whole (except where an employer
adopts a bespoke investment strategy – see below).
The Administering Authority, following consultation with the participating employers, has adopted the
following objectives for setting the individual employer contribution rates arising from the 2019 actuarial
valuation:


A default recovery period of 15 years will apply for employers that are assessed to have a deficit.



In addition, at the discretion of the Administering authority, a maximum deficit recovery period of
21 years will apply. Employers will have the freedom to adopt a recovery plan on the basis of a
shorter period if they so wish. A shorter period may be applied in respect of particular employers
where the Administering Authority considers this to be warranted (see Deficit Recovery Plan
below).

Page 39
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021



As a general rule, the Fund does not believe it appropriate for contribution reductions to apply
compared to the 2016 funding plan for those employers where substantial deficits remain.



For any open employers assessed to be in surplus, their individual contribution requirements will be
adjusted at the 2019 valuation as follows:
- Where the funding level is 100-110% employers will pay the future service rate only.
- Where the funding level is over 110% the default approach for Scheduled Bodies and Admission
Bodies with no subsumption commitment from a Scheduled Body in the Fund (as defined in
Appendix 1) will be to remove any surplus in excess of 10% over a maximum period of 21 years.
- Where the funding level is over 110% the default approach for Admission Bodies with a
subsumption commitment from a Scheduled Body in the Fund will be to remove any surplus in
excess of 10% over the recovery period adopted by that Scheduled Body at the 2019 valuation.
- If surpluses are sufficiently large, contribution requirements will be set to a minimum nil total
amount.
- The current level of contributions will be stepped down as appropriate, consistent with the
approach of stepping contribution increases where appropriate.

For the avoidance of doubt, for practical purposes where employers are in surplus and contributions are to
be set below the cost of future accrual this will be implemented via a reduction in the percentage of
pensionable pay rate rather than via a negative monetary amount.
For any closed employers assessed to be in surplus, the above approach will generally be followed but the
Administering Authority will consider the specific circumstances of the employer in setting an appropriate
period to remove the surplus.
The employer contributions will be expressed and certified as two separate elements:


a percentage of pensionable payroll in respect of the future accrual of benefit (less allowance for
surplus as appropriate)



a schedule of lump sum amounts over 2020/23 in respect of the past service deficit subject to the
review from April 2023 based on the results of the 2022 actuarial valuation.

On the cessation of an employer’s participation in the Fund, the actuary will be asked to make a
termination assessment. Any deficit in the Fund in respect of the employer will be due to the Fund as a
termination contribution, unless it is agreed by the Administering Authority and the other parties involved
that the assets and liabilities relating to the employer will transfer within the Fund to another participating
employer.
However, the Administering Authority has ultimate discretion where the particular circumstances of any
given Employer warrant a variation from these objectives. A period of consultation will take place once
employers have been issued with their draft contribution rates.
In determining the above objectives, the Administering Authority has had regard to:


the responses made to the consultation with employers on the FSS principles



relevant guidance issued by the CIPFA Pensions Panel



the need to balance a desire to attain the target as soon as possible against the short-term cash
requirements which a shorter period would impose, and



the Administering Authority’s views on the strength of the participating employers’ covenants in
achieving the objective.

Page 40
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Deficit Recovery Plan
If the assets of the scheme relating to an employer are less than the funding target at the effective date of
any actuarial valuation, a recovery plan will be put in place, which requires additional contributions from
the employer to meet the shortfall.
Additional contributions will be expressed as annual monetary lump sums, subject to review based on the
results of each actuarial valuation.
In determining the actual recovery period, and other aspects of the funding strategy, to apply for any
particular employer or employer grouping, the Administering Authority may take into account some or all
of the following factors:


the size of the funding shortfall;



the business plans of the employer;



the assessment of the financial covenant of the Employer; and the security of future income
streams



any contingent security available to the Fund or offered by the Employer such as guarantor or bond
arrangements, charge over assets, etc.



length of expected period of participation in the Fund.

It is acknowledged by the Administering Authority that, whilst posing a relatively low risk to the Fund as a
whole, it is possible that some smaller employers may be faced with contributions that could seriously
affect their ability to function in the future. The Administering Authority therefore, after specific
agreement has been obtained by Fund Officers from the North Yorkshire Pension Fund Committee, would
be willing to use its discretion to negotiate an evidence based affordable level of contributions for the
organisation for the three years 2020/2023. Any application of this option is at the ultimate discretion of
the Administering Authority and will only be considered after the provision of the appropriate evidence and
on the basis that it is not inconsistent with the requirements to set employer contributions so as to ensure
the solvency and long-term cost efficiency of the NYPF.
The Primary Contribution Rate (Future Service Contribution Rate)
In addition to any contributions required to rectify a shortfall of assets below the funding target,
contributions will be required to meet the cost of future accrual of benefits for members after the valuation
date (the “primary rate”). The method and assumptions for assessing these contributions are set out in
Appendix 1.
Amending of contributions between triennial valuations
The Administering Authority may also amend contributions between valuations as permitted by
Regulations 64 and 64A. Further details of the Administering Authority's policy in relation to Regulation 64A
is set out in the Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy.

6. Link to Investment Policy set out in the Investment Strategy Statement
In assessing the value of the NYPF’s liabilities in the valuation, allowance is made for a long-term
investment return assumption as set out below, taking into account the investment strategy adopted by
the NYPF, as set out in the ISS.
It is not possible to construct a portfolio of investments which produces a stream of income exactly
matching the expected liability outgo. However, it is possible to construct a portfolio which closely
matches expected future benefit payments and represents the least risk investment position. Such a
portfolio would consist of a mixture of long-term index-linked and fixed interest gilts. Investment of the
NYPF’s assets in line with the least risk portfolio would minimise fluctuations in the NYPF’s ongoing funding
level between successive actuarial valuations.

Page 41
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Departure from a least risk investment strategy, in particular to include equity type investments, gives the
prospect that out-performance by the assets will, over time, reduce the contribution requirements. The
funding target might in practice therefore be achieved by a range of combinations of funding plan,
investment strategy and investment performance.
The current benchmark investment strategy, as set out in the ISS dated July 2021, is:

Asset Class (Summary)

%

Equities
BondsInfrastructure
AlternativesProperty
Private Credit
Multi Asset Credit
Corporate Bonds
Government Bonds
TOTAL

40 -6550
15-3010
20-307.5
5
5
7.5
15
100

The funding strategy adopted for the 2019 valuation2021 investment strategy review is was based on an
assumed long-term investment return assumption of 4.20% per annum. This is below the Administering
Authority's view of the best estimate long-term return assumption of 6.25.6% as at the valuation date of
the investment strategy review.
Bespoke Investment Strategy for individual employers
The Investment Strategy adopted by NYPF is determined for the Fund as a whole. This Strategy takes into
account the characteristics of NYPF as a whole, and therefore those of the constituent employers as an
aggregated entity - it does not seek to distinguish between the individual liability profiles of different
employers. The Strategy adopted to date, as reflected in the current ISS, is to invest a significant
proportion of the assets in equities. Such investments offer a higher expected return, but also carry a
higher level of risk.
NYPF is prepared to consider offering any employer the opportunity to adopt a lower risk Bespoke
Investment Strategy (e.g. 100% government bonds). However, to the extent that any Bespoke Investment
Strategy will necessitate different investment return assumptions to those used by the Actuary for NYPF
overall, there may be a consequential material impact on the contribution rate calculated for that
employer.
In addition, if an employer opts for a Bespoke Investment Strategy, NYPF reserves the right to determine
the most appropriate way of arranging for the investment of the relevant share of the assets according to
that Bespoke Strategy. Employers should be aware that they will be required to meet any costs associated
with the design and implementation of a Bespoke Investment Strategy

7. Identification of Risks and Counter Measures
The funding of defined benefits is by its nature uncertain. Funding of the NYPF is based on both financial
and demographic assumptions. These assumptions are specified in the Appendices and the actuarial
valuation report. When actual experience is not in line with the assumptions adopted a surplus or shortfall
will emerge at the next actuarial assessment and will require a subsequent contribution adjustment to
bring the funding back into line with the target.
The Administering Authority has been advised by the actuary that the greatest risk to the NYPF’s funding is
the investment risk inherent in the predominantly equity (or return seeking) based strategy, so that actual
asset performance between successive valuations could diverge significantly from the overall performance
assumed in the long term.
The Administering Authority keeps, and regularly reviews, a risk register to identify and monitor the risks to
the Fund and will, wherever possible, take appropriate action to limit the impact of these both before and
after they emerge.
Page 42
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

What are the Risks?
Whilst the activity of managing the Fund exposes the Administering Authority to a wide range of risks,
those most likely to impact on the funding strategy are investment risk, liability risk, liquidity/maturity risk,
regulatory/compliance risk, employer risk and governance risk.
Investment risk
The risk of investments not performing (income) or increasing in value (growth) as forecast. Examples of
specific risks would be:
–
–
–
–
–

assets not delivering the required return (for whatever reason, including manager
underperformance)
systemic risk with the possibility of interlinked and simultaneous financial market volatility
insufficient funds to meet liabilities as they fall due
inadequate, inappropriate or incomplete investment and actuarial advice is taken and acted upon
counterparty failure

The specific risks associated with assets and asset classes are:
–
–
–
–
–
–

equities – industry, country, size and stock risks
fixed income - yield curve, credit risks, duration risks and market risks
alternative assets – liquidity risks, property risk, alpha risk
money market – credit risk and liquidity risk
currency risk
macroeconomic risks

The Fund mitigates these risks through diversification, permitting investment in a wide variety of markets
and assets, and through the use of specialist managers with differing mandates.
The majority of the Fund’s investments are in pooled investment vehicles and the Fund is therefore directly
exposed to credit risk in relation to the instruments it holds in the pooled investment vehicles. Direct credit
risk arising from pooled investment vehicles is mitigated by the underlying assets of the pooled
arrangements being ring-fenced from the pooled manager, the regulatory environments in which the
pooled managers operate and diversification of investments amongst a number of pooled arrangements.
The Committee carries out due diligence checks on the appointment of new pooled investment managers
and on an ongoing basis monitors any changes to the operating environment of the pooled manager.
In addition, the Fund holds assets in the LGPS pooling arrangement with Border to Coast Pension
Partnership (‘BCPP’) and will transition further assets to BCPP in the future. Through this arrangement the
Fund is exposed to the risk of failing to transition effectively to new pooling arrangements resulting in
poorer value for money; lower investment returns; and inability to effectively execute investment
strategy.”
Employer risk
Those risks that arise from the ever-changing mix of employers, from short-term and ceasing employers,
and the potential for orphaned liabilities and/or a shortfall in payments and/or orphaned liabilities where
employers are unable to meet their obligations to the Scheme. The response to the COVID-19 pandemic is a
specific current risk which may have adverse consequences in relation to employers' finances and their
ability to make contributions. The Administering Authority monitors employer payments and expects
employers in financial difficulty to engage with the Fund where their financial circumstances have changed,
noting that contributions can be reviewed between formal valuations if the conditions in Regulation 64A
and the terms of the Administering Authority's policy as set out in the Admissions and Terminations
Funding Policy are met. .
The Administering Authority maintains a knowledge base on its employers, their basis of participation and
their legal status (e.g. charities, companies limited by guarantee, group/subsidiary arrangements) and uses
this information to inform the FSS.
Page 43
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

The Administering Authority monitors the active membership of closed employers and considers what
action to take when the number of active members falls below 10, such as commissioning a valuation under
Regulation 64(4).
The Administering Authority have also commissioned the Fund Actuary to carry out a high level risk analysis
of employers in the Fund to assist the Administering Authority in setting the funding strategy for employers
at the 2019 valuation of the Fund.
Liquidity/Maturity risk
This is the risk of a reduction in cash flows into the Fund, or an increase in cash flows out of the Fund, or
both, which can be linked to changes in the membership and, in particular, a shift in the balance from
contributing members to members drawing their pensions. Changes within the public sector and to the
LGPS itself may affect the maturity profile of the LGPS and have potential cash flow implications. For
example,
–
–
–
–

The implications of budget cuts and headcount reductions could reduce the active (contributing)
membership and increase the number of pensioners through early retirements;
An increased emphasis on outsourcing and other alternative models for service delivery may
result in falling active membership (e.g. where new admissions are closed),
Public sector reorganisations may lead to a transfer of responsibility between different public
sector bodies, (e.g. to bodies which do not participate in the LGPS),
Scheme changes and higher member contributions in particular may lead to increased opt-outs;

The Administering Authority seeks to maintain regular contact with employers to mitigate against the risk
of unexpected or unforeseen changes in maturity leading to cashflow or liquidity issues.
Climate Risk
The systemic risks posed by climate change and the policies implemented to tackle them will fundamentally
change economic, political and social systems and the global financial system. They will impact every asset
class, sector, industry and market in varying ways and at different times, creating both risks and
opportunities for investors. The Administering Authority keeps the effect of climate change on future
investment returns under review and will commission advice from the Fund actuary on the potential effect
on funding as required.
Liability risk
The main risks include inflation, life expectancy and other demographic changes, and interest rate and pay
inflation, which will all impact upon future liabilities.
The Administering Authority will ensure that the Fund Actuary investigates these matters at each valuation
and reports on developments. The Administering Authority will agree with the Fund Actuary any changes
which are necessary to the assumptions underlying the measure of solvency to allow for observed or
anticipated changes.
The Fund Actuary will also provide quarterly funding updates to assist the Administering Authority in its
monitoring of the financial liability risks. The Administering Authority will, as far as practical, monitor
changes in the age profile of the Fund membership early retirements, redundancies and ill health early
retirements and, if any changes are considered to be material, ask the Fund Actuary to report on their
effect on the funding position.
If significant liability changes become apparent between valuations, the Administering Authority will notify
all participating employers of the anticipated impact on costs that will emerge at the next valuation and
consider whether to require the review the bonds that are in place for Admission Bodies.

Page 44
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Where it appears likely to the Administering Authority that for an employer the amount of the liabilities
arising or likely to arise has changed significantly since the last valuation, the Administering Authority may
consider revising an employer's contributions as permitted by Regulation 64A.
Regulatory and compliance risk
Regulatory risks to the scheme arise from changes to general and LGPS specific regulations, taxation,
national changes to pension requirements, or employment law.
The Administering Authority keeps abreast of all the changes to the LGPS and will normally respond to
consultations on matters which have an impact on the administration of the Fund.
There are a number of uncertainties associated with the benefit structure at the current time including:


How Government will address the issues of GMP indexation and equalisation for the LGPS beyond
expiry of the current interim solution from 6 April 2021



The timing of any regulations in relation to the remedy to compensate members for illegal age
discrimination following the outcome of the McCloud/Sargeant cases. Whilst the Government's
application for leave to appeal has been denied there is currently still uncertainty relating to the
remedy and exactly how this will apply to the LGPS



The outcome of the cost management process as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2020, noting and
whether the agreement reached in relation to the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) process for
member contributions to be reduced and benefits enhanced to achieve an additional cost of 0.9%,
before the process was paused due to the of pay will change as a result of the McCloud/Sargeant
ruling



The Goodwin case in which an Employment Tribunal ruled (in relation to the Teachers' Pension
Scheme) that the less favourable provisions for survivor's benefits of a female member in an
opposite sex marriage compared to a female in a same sex marriage or civil partnership amounts to
direct discrimination on grounds of sexual orientation. Following a written ministerial statement by
the chief secretary to the Treasury on 20 July 2020 it is expected that changes will be made to the
LGPS Regulations to reflect the ruling, but no changes have yet been proposed.

In determining how these uncertainties should be allowed for in employer contributions the Administering
Authority will have regard to guidance issued by the SAB, taking account of the Fund Actuary's advice. The
Fund's policy for allowing for the possible cost of the McCloud judgement / Cost Management process and
GMP equalisation / indexation for new employers joining the Fund and employers exiting the Fund is set
out in the Fund's Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy.
In addition, a consultation document was issued by MHCLG entitled "Local Government Pension Scheme:
Changes to the Local Valuation Cycle and the Management of Employer Risk" dated May 2019. This
included a proposal to change the LGPS local fund valuations to quadrennial cycles. The Administering
Authority will have regard to any changes in the Regulations as a result of this consultation and consider
any actions required at the 2019 valuation or subsequent valuations, taking account of the Fund Actuary's
advice.

8. Monitoring and Review
The Administering Authority has taken advice from the actuary in preparing this Statement, and has also
consulted with employing organisations.
A full review of this Statement will occur no less frequently than every three years, to coincide with
completion of a full actuarial valuation. Any review will take account of then current economic conditions
and will also reflect any legislative changes.
The Administering Authority will monitor the progress of the funding strategy between full actuarial
valuations. If considered appropriate, the funding strategy will be reviewed (other than as part of the
triennial valuation process), for example:


if there has been significant market volatility



if there have been significant changes to the NYPF membership and/or maturity profile

Page 45

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021



if there have been changes to the number, type or individual circumstances of any of the employing
authorities to such an extent that they impact on the funding strategy e.g. closure to new entrants



where employers wish to make additional (voluntary) contributions to the NYPF



if there has been a material change in the affordability of contributions and/or employer financial
covenant strength



to reflect significant changes to the benefit structure / Regulations

Page 46
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

APPENDIX 1
North Yorkshire County Council
as Administering Authority for the North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2019
Method and assumptions used in calculating the funding target

Risk Based Approach
The Administering Authority adopts a risk based approach to funding strategy. In particular the discount
rate (for most employers) has been set on the basis of the assessed likelihood of meeting the funding
objectives. The Administering Authority has considered 3 key decisions in setting the discount rate:
–
–
–

the long-term Solvency Target (i.e. the funding objective - where the Administering Authority wants
the Fund to get to);
the Trajectory Period (how quickly the Administering Authority wants the Fund to get there), and
the Probability of Funding Success (how likely the Administering Authority wants it to be now that
the Fund will actually achieve the Solvency Target by the end of the Trajectory Period).

These three choices, supported by complex (stochastic) risk modelling carried out by the Fund Actuary,
define the discount rate (investment return assumption) to be adopted and, by extension, the appropriate
employer contributions payable. Together they measure the riskiness (and hence also the degree of
prudence) of the funding strategy. These are considered in more detail below.

Solvency Target
The Administering Authority's primary aim is the long-term solvency of the Fund. Accordingly, employers’
contributions will be set to ensure that 100% of the liabilities can be met over the long term using
appropriate actuarial assumptions.
The Administering Authority believes that its funding strategy will ensure the solvency of the Fund because
employers collectively have the financial capacity to increase employer contributions should future
circumstances require, in order to continue to target a funding level of 100%.
For most Scheduled Bodies and Admission Bodies where a Scheme Employer of sound covenant has agreed
to subsume the Admission Body's assets and liabilities in the NYPF following its exit, the Solvency Target is
set:
–
–

at a level advised by the Fund Actuary as a prudent long-term funding objective for the Fund to
achieve at the end of the Trajectory Period,
based on continued investment in a mix of growth and matching assets intended to deliver a return
above the rate of increases to pensions and pension accounts (CPI).

As at 31 March 2019 the long-term rate of CPI is assumed to be 2% p.a. and a prudent long-term
investment return of 2% above CPI is assumed.
This then defines the Solvency Target. As at 31 March 2019 this equates to a solvency discount rate of 4%
p.a.
For Admission Bodies and other bodies whose liabilities are expected to be orphaned following cessation, a
more prudent approach will be taken. The Solvency Target will be set by considering the valuation basis
which would be adopted should the body leave the Fund. For most such bodies, the Solvency Target will be
set commensurate with assumed investment in Government bonds after exit.

Page 47
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Probability of Funding Success
The Administering Authority considers funding success to have been achieved if the Fund, at the end of the
Trajectory Period, has achieved the Solvency Target. The Probability of Funding Success is the assessed
chance of this happening based on asset-liability modelling carried out by the Fund Actuary.
With effect from 31 March 2019 the discount rate, and hence the overall required level of employer
contributions, has been set such that the Fund Actuary estimates there is a 80% chance that the Fund
would reach or exceed its Solvency Target after 25 years (the Trajectory Period)

Funding Target
The Funding Target is the amount of assets which the Fund needs to hold at the valuation date to pay the
liabilities at that date as indicated by the chosen valuation method and assumptions and the valuation data.
The valuation calculations, including the primary contribution rates and adjustment for the surplus or
deficiency, set the level of contributions payable and dictate the chance of achieving the Solvency Target at
the end of the Trajectory Period. The key assumptions used for assessing the Funding Target are
summarised below.
Consistent with the aim of enabling the primary rate of employers' contribution rates to be kept as nearly
constant as possible, contribution rates are set by use of the Projected Unit valuation method for most
employers. The Projected Unit method is used in the actuarial valuation to determine the cost of benefits
accruing to the Fund as a whole and for employers who continue to admit new members. This means that
the contribution rate is derived as the cost of benefits accruing to employee members over the year
following the valuation date expressed as a percentage of members’ pensionable pay over that period. The
future service rate will be stable if the profile of the membership (age, gender etc) is stable.
For employers who no longer admit new members, the Attained Age valuation method is normally used.
This means that the contribution rate is derived as the average cost of benefits accruing to members over
the period until they die, leave the Fund or retire. This approach should lead to more stable employer
contribution rates than adoption of the Projected Unit method for closed employers.

Funding Targets and assumptions regarding future investment strategy
For Scheduled Bodies whose participation in the Fund is considered by the Administering Authority to be
indefinite and Admission Bodies with a subsumption commitment from such Scheduled Bodies, the
Administering Authority assumes indefinite investment in a broad range of assets of higher risk than risk
free assets.
Academies are currently considered to qualify as indefinite participants in the Fund with full taxpayers
backing, as they have a guarantee from the Department for Education. The liabilities and future service
(primary) contributions will therefore generally be calculated using the scheduled and subsumption body
funding target. However, this guarantee is subject to review and where the Administering Authority
believes the guarantee is no longer sufficient to cover the risks posed by the number of academies in the
Fund, the Administering Authority will review the approach taken to set the funding target for academies
and any admission bodies for which an academy provides a subsumption commitment as well asnd also the
default approach taken to the notional assets transferred to academies upon conversion.
For other Scheduled Bodies, in particular the Colleges and Universities whose participation is not
considered to be indefinite, the Administering Authority may without limitation, take into account the
following factors when setting the funding target for such bodies:
–
–
–
–

the type/group of the employer
the business plans of the employer;
an assessment of the financial covenant of the employer;
any contingent security available to the Fund or offered by the employer such as a
bond arrangements, charge over assets,
etc. 48
Page

guarantor or

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

For Admission Bodies and other bodies whose liabilities are expected to be orphaned on exit (with the
exception of the universities where a different approach will be adopted at the 2019 valuation as set out
below), the Administering Authority will have regard to the potential for participation to cease (or for the
body to have no contributing members), the potential timing of such exit, and any likely change in notional
or actual investment strategy as regards the assets held in respect of the body's liabilities at the date of exit
(i.e. whether the liabilities will become 'orphaned' or a guarantor exists to subsume the notional assets and
liabilities).

Colleges and Universities
Due to concerns about the covenant strength of Colleges and Universities, the Administering Authority will,
from the 2019 valuation onwards, adopt a Funding Target for Colleges and Universities which reflects the
Administering Authority's views of the sector. This includes the two universities that are Admission Bodies
in the Fund where there is no subsumption commitment, but which continue to admit new members to the
Fund.
Whilst the Administering Authority will adopt a general approach of assuming indefinite investment in a
broad range of assets of higher risk than Government bonds, a reduction will be made to the discount rate
used for the long-term secure scheduled bodies to reflect concerns about the covenant strength of Colleges
and Universities. This is known as the Intermediate Funding Target.
The Administering Authority may also adopt the Intermediate Funding Target for other employers where
there are concerns about the covenant strength of the employer. At the 2019 valuation this decision will be
informed by the high-level risk analysis of employers within the Fund carried out by the Fund Actuary. The
Administering Authority will generally also adopt the Intermediate Funding Target for admission bodies
that have an appropriate subsumption commitment provided by a suitable Scheme employer that is subject
to the intermediate funding target.
The Fund is deemed to be fully funded when the assets are equal to or greater than 100% of the Funding
Target, where the funding target is assessed based on the sum of the appropriate funding targets across all
the employers/groups of employers.

Financial assumptions
Investment return (discount rate)
The discount rate for the 2019 valuation is as follows:


4.2% p.a. for employers where the Scheduled body / subsumption funding target applies



3.8% p.a. for employers where the Intermediate funding target applies



3.3% in service (equivalent to the yield on long-dated fixed interest gilts at a duration appropriate
for the Fund's liabilities plus an asset out-performance assumption of 2% p.a.) and 1.6% left service
(which is intended to be equivalent to the yield on long-dated fixed interest gilts at the valuation
date but which has, in the interests of affordability and stability of employer contributions, been
increased by 0.3% p.a. to take account of market expectations of future increases in gilt yields after
the valuation date), for employers where the Ongoing orphan funding target applies.

Inflation (Consumer Prices Index)
The CPI inflation assumption is taken to be the long-term (30 year) Capital Market Assumption at the
valuation date as produced by Aon HewittSolutions UK Limited. In formulating the Capital Market
Assumption, both consensus forecasts and the inflation risk premium are considered.
Salary increases
The assumption for real salary increases (salary increases in excess of price inflation) in the long term will
be determined by an allowance of 1.25% p.a. over the inflation assumption as described above plus an
allowance for promotional increases.

Page 49

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Pension increases/Indexation of CARE benefits
Increases to pensions are assumed to be in line with the inflation (CPI) assumption described above. This is
modified appropriately to reflect any benefits which are not fully indexed in line with the CPI (e.g.
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions in respect of service prior to April 1997).

Demographic assumptions
Post-retirement Mortality
Base Rates
Normal Health: Standard SAPS S2N tables, year of birth base rates, adjusted by a scaling factor.
Ill-health: Standard SAPS S2 Ill-health tables, year of birth base rates adjusted by a scaling factor.
Scaling Factors
Rates adjusted by scaling factors as dictated by Fund experience
Males (normal health)
Females (normal health)

105%
105%

Males (ill-health)
Females (ill-health)

105%
115%

Future improvement to base rates
An allowance for improvements in line with the CMI 2018, for men or women as appropriate, with a long
term rate of improvement of 1.50% p.a., sk of 7.5 and parameter A of 0.0.
Pre-retirement mortality
Males:
As for normal health retirements but with a 40% scaling factor
Females: As for normal health retirements but with a 30% scaling factor
Retirement age
The assumed retirement age is dependent on the Group of the member and also the member's Rule of 85
age (Ro85 age).
Assumed age at retirement
63
63
65
65
State Pension Age
Any part of a members' pension payable from a later age than the assumed retirement age will assumed to
be reduced using factors issued by GAD / MHCLG in force on the valuation date.
Withdrawals
Allowance is made for withdrawals from service. On withdrawal, members are assumed to leave a deferred
pension in the Fund and are not assumed to exercise their option to take a transfer value.

Page 50
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

Retirement due to ill health
Allowance is made for retirements due to ill health. Proportions assumed to fall into the different benefit
tiers applicable after 1 April 2008 are:
Tier 1 (upper tier)
Tier 2 (middle tier)
Tier 3 (lower tier)

90%
5%
5%

Family details
A man is assumed to be 3 years older than his spouse, civil partner or cohabitee. A woman is assumed to be
3 years younger than her spouse, civil partner or cohabite.
80% of non-pensioners are assumed to be married / cohabitating at retirement or earlier death.
80% of pensioners are assumed to be married / cohabitating at age 65.
Commutation
Each member is assumed to take cash such that the total cash received (including statutory 3N/80 lump
sum) is 75% of the permitted maximum amount permitted of their past service pension entitlements.
Take up of 50/50 scheme
All members are assumed to remain in the scheme they are in at the date of the valuation.
Promotional salary increases
Allowance is made for age-related promotional increases.
Expenses
0.5% of Pensionable Pay added to the cost of future benefit accrual.
Summary of key whole Fund assumptions used for calculating funding target and cost of future accrual
(the “primary contribution rate”) for the 2019 actuarial valuation
Investment return / Discount Rate (secure scheduled bodies
and admission bodies with a subsumption commitment from
a secure scheduled body)

4.2% p.a.

Investment return / Discount Rate (intermediate funding
target)

3.8% p.a.

Investment Return / Discount Rate for orphan bodies
In service

3.3% p.a.

Left service

1.6% p.a.

CPI price inflation

2.1% p.a.

Long Term Salary increases

3.35% p.a.

Pension increases/indexation of CARE benefits

2.1% p.a.

Please note that the discount rate shown above was that used as at the actuarial valuation as at 31 March
2019. The Fund has subsequentially updated its investment strategycarried out an investment strategy
review which was based on a would lead to a discount rate assumption of 4.0% p.a. as at 31 December
2020the date of carrying out the investment strategy
review.
Page
51
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
August 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Admissions and Terminations Funding
Policy

If you require this information in an alternative language or another format such as large type, audio
cassette or Braille, please contact the Pensions Help & Information Line on 01609 536335

OFFICIAL

Page 53

1 Introduction
1.1

This document details the North Yorkshire Pension Fund’s (Fund) policy on admissions and
other new employers commencing participation into the Fund and the methodology for
assessment of a deficit or surplus payment on the exit of an employer’s participation in the
Fund. It supplements the general funding policy of the Fund as set out in the 1Funding Strategy
Statement (FSS).

2 Admissions to the Fund
2.1

Admission bodies are a specific type of employer under the Regulations that do not
automatically qualify for admission into the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scheme) and
must satisfy certain criteria set out in the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
(as amended) (Regulations). Admission bodies are required to have an ‘admission agreement’
with the Fund. In conjunction with the Regulations, the admission agreement sets out the
conditions of participation of the admission body including which employees (or categories of
employees) are eligible to be members of the Fund.

2.2

North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) as the Administering Authority for the Fund will decide
which bodies can become an admission body in the Fund. The Fund will enter into an admission
agreement that is ‘open’ or ‘closed’ to new employees depending on the circumstance of the
admission. Whether the admission is ‘open’ or ‘closed’ is generally at the option of the
applicable transferring employer (if any) and admission body, but there might be an impact on
the rate of contributions payable.

2.3

In general paragraph 1(d) admission bodies will be admitted on a ‘fully funded’ basis i.e. a
funding shortfall or surplus will not be passed to the admission body unless the transferring
employer requests that a proportion of (or all of) the funding shortfall or surplus is passed to
the admission body.

2.4

All actuarial and legal fees will be recharged to the transferring employer or the admission
body. The Administering Authority will ask for confirmation of who is paying the fee before the
invoice is issued.

3

Subsumption, guarantor or bond requirements for entry

3.1

The Regulations require the admission body to carry out (to the satisfaction of the Fund and
where applicable the transferring employer) an assessment, taking account of actuarial advice,
of the level of risk arising on premature termination of the provision of service or assets by
reason of insolvency, winding up, or liquidation of the admission body. The Regulations further
require that where the level of risk identified by the assessment is such as to require it, the
admission body shall enter into an indemnity or bond in a form approved by the Fund with a
third party financial services organisation. If for any reason a bond is not desirable the
Regulations require that the admission body secures a guarantee in a form acceptable to the
Fund.

1

The FSS can be found on the Fund's website at www.nypf.org.uk > Pension Fund / Investments > Policies and Strategies.
OFFICIAL
2
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 54

3.2

Whilst each application is assessed on its own merits under the above criteria, the
Administering Authority wishes to limit the risk to the Fund and to other employers arising
from any proposed admission. The Administering Authority's expectation is that in the
substantial majority of all admissions it will require the admission body to provide either a
qualifying bond or guarantee. The Administering Authority further considers that the costs
inherent in the provision of a third party bond by the admission body is sufficient reason why it
may not be desirable for the admission body to secure a bond. Therefore, the Administering
Authority will in most cases be prepared to accept that the admission instead proceeds on the
basis of a guarantor being offered. This is most often the transferring employer.

3.3

Further, when considering applications for admission body status the Administering Authority’s
clear preference is that there should be a subsumption commitment from a suitable Scheme
employer (as well as a guarantor from within the Fund). However, where there is no suitable
party willing to give a subsumption commitment and/ or where there is no suitable and willing
guarantor, the Administering Authority will still consider applications on a case-by-case basis.

3.4

A subsumption commitment means that a Scheme employer in the Fund (usually the
transferring employer) agrees that they will take on responsibility for the future funding of the
liabilities of the admission body once they have exited the Fund, and (where relevant) the
admission body has paid any exit payment as determined by the actuary.

3.5

A guarantor provides a commitment to meet any obligation or liability of the admission body
under the admission agreement.

3.6

The guarantor must be a party permitted to give such a guarantee under the Regulations and
must be acceptable to the Administering Authority. Usually, this is the transferring employer.

3.7

The Administering Authority will, if it deems appropriate, accept an admission where there is
no guarantee or subsumption commitment offered. This acceptance may be subject to
additional conditions. Such conditions will often include the following:

3.8



the Fund’s actuary will be asked to use the low risk funding target or the ongoing orphan
funding target to assess contribution requirements; and/or



the admission body must have a bond or indemnity from an appropriate third party in
place. Any bond amount will be subject to review on a regular basis in line with the
Regulations; and



the admission body may be subject to any other requirements, such as monitoring
specific factors, as the Administering Authority may decide.

Some relevant factors that the Administering Authority may consider when deciding whether
to apply any of the conditions above, in the absence of a guarantor or subsumption
commitment, are:


uncertainty over the security of the organisation’s funding sources e.g. the admission
body relies on voluntary or charitable sources of income or has no external funding
guarantee/reserves;



if the admission body has an expected limited lifespan of participation in the Fund;



the general trading risk of the proposed admission body and their financial record;



the average age of employees to be admitted and whether the admission is closed to
new joiners.
Admission bodies formerly known as Transferee Admission Bodies (TABs)
OFFICIAL
3
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 55

3.9

The most frequent category of admission body is those admitted under paragraph 1(d)(i) of
Part 3 to Schedule 2 of the Regulations, namely that the proposed admission body is providing
(or will provide) a service or assets in connection with the exercise of a function of a Scheme
employer as a result of the transfer of the service or assets by means of a contract or other
arrangement.

3.10

The settlement of commercial terms between the transferring employer and the proposed
admission body (including any mitigations that might be offered to the proposed admission
body in respect of the usual costs of participation as an employer in the Scheme) are a
commercial matter which the Administering Authority will not be involved in.

3.11

Deficit recovery periods for these admission bodies will be set in line with the Fund’s general
policy as set out in the FSS.

Admission bodies formerly known as Community Admission Bodies (CABs)
3.12

Where a body believes that it is eligible for admission other than under paragraph 1(d)(i) of
Part 3 to Schedule 2 of the Regulations and requests admission into the Fund, the
Administering Authority will consider each application on a case-by-case basis.

Town and Parish Councils
3.13

3.14

New town and parish councils entering the Fund will be treated as follows:


If there is a subsumption commitment from a suitable Scheme employer, then the
participation will be approved with the valuation funding basis used for the termination
assessment and calculation of ongoing contribution requirements.



If there is no subsumption commitment from a suitable Scheme employer, then the
town or parish council must pre-fund for termination with contribution requirements
assessed using the low risk funding target or ongoing orphan funding target.

Deficit recovery periods will be determined consistent with the policy set out in the FSS.
Alternatively, the Administering Authority may determine an employer specific deficit recovery
period will apply.

Grouped bodies
3.15

3.16

The Fund generally groups the following types of employers for setting contribution rates.


Grouped Scheduled Bodies (Town and Parish Councils admitted prior to 1 April 2008,
Drainage and Burial Boards).



Local Management of Schools (LMS) Pools (NYCC LMS pool and the City of York Council
(CoYC) LMS pool) admitted prior to 1 April 2019.

The LMS pool refers to the grouping of a number of transferee admission bodies relating to
catering and cleaning contracts within schools who were admitted to the Fund prior to 1 April
2019. Employers in the LMS pool pay the same aggregate total contribution rate as that
payable by NYCC or the CoYC depending on which pool they are in.

OFFICIAL
4
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 56

3.17

At each triennial valuation, the actuary will pool together the assets and liabilities of the council
with the other employers within the appropriate LMS pool to determine the employer
contribution rate.

3.18

The standard approach to setting employer contributions is to not group employers together
other than in the cases set out above,. However, Aat the absolute discretion of the
Administering anAuthority, an employer (either an existing employer in the Fund or a new
employer joining the Fund) may be grouped with an appropriate council or other employer in
the Fund for the purpose of setting contribution rates, subject to the agreement of all relevant
parties. All relevant parties should also be aware that grouping gives rise to cross subsidies
from one employer to another over time. This arises from different membership profiles of the
different employers and from different experience. In general, we would not expect grouping
to be permitted for employers whose participation in the Fund is for a fixed period of time.

Other scheduled bodies
3.19

New academies will be treated as indefinite participants in the Fund with full taxpayer backing,
as they have a guarantee from the Department for Education. The funding target used to assess
contributions will therefore generally be the Scheduled and subsumption body funding target.
However, as the Department for Education guarantee is subject to review, where the
Administering Authority believes the guarantee is no longer sufficient to cover the risks posed
by the number of academies in the Fund, the Administering Authority will review the approach
taken to the Funding Target for new academies and any admission bodies for which an
academy provides a subsumption commitment, as well as the default approach taken to the
notional assets transferred to academies upon conversion.

3.2013 For any other new scheduled bodies joining the Fund, the Administering Authority may,
without limitation, take into account the following factors when setting the funding target for
such bodies:


the type/group of the employer;



the business plans of the employer;



an assessment of the financial covenant of the employer;



whether the employer is a part 1 Schedule 2 or Part 2 Schedule 2 employer and if the
latter., Tthe likelihood of new members joining the Fund; and



any contingent security available to the Fund or offered by the employer such as guarantor
or bond arrangements, charge over assets, etc.

OFFICIAL
5
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 57

4

Employer contributions, initial notional asset transfer and funding targets

4.1

The Fund’s actuary will calculate the employer contributions payable from the start of the
admission agreementemployer's participation in the Fund.

4.2

These will consist of the future service rate (FSR) or primary contribution rate, additional
(secondary) contributions required to remove any funding shortfall, and an allowance for the
possible cost of the McCloud judgement / Cost Management process as set out in paragraphs
4.25 to 4.28. Where the admission bodyemployer transfers on a fully funded basis (i.e. the level
of notional assets is set to be equal to the full value of the transferring liabilities using the
appropriate funding target described below) then the initial contribution rate will be equal to
the FSR plus the McCloud judgement / Cost Management process allowance. This would
generally be the case in an outsourcing of a service or function from a Scheme employer.

4.3

The FSR is net of employee contributions but includes an allowance for the lump sum death
benefit payable on death in service and administration costs.

4.4

The actuary will also calculate the funding position of the admission bodyemployer at the
commencement date. This shows the notional assets attributable to the admission
bodyemployer, along with the value of liabilities using the appropriate funding target. This is
needed even when the admission bodyemployer starts fully funded since any accounting
figures or calculations at future triennial valuations will use the assets and liabilities at
commencement as their starting point. In some cases the asset transfer may need to be recalculated if the commencement date or data on transferring members is different to that used
by the actuary in their initial calculations.

4.5

If the transferring employer is providing a subsumption commitment, the subsumption funding
target will be used by the actuary when calculating the FSR and the value of liabilities. The low
risk funding target can be used where explicitly requested by the transferring employer. The
appropriate funding target to be adopted depends on what will happen to the liabilities of the
admission bodyemployer once the contract ends or it has otherwise exited the Fund (e.g. when
the last active member has left or, for admission bodies, the contract has ended).

4.6

Unless specific instruction to adopt a different approach is received in relation to a new
academy and the agreement is reflected in the Commercial Transfer Agreement, the
Administering Authority will determine the notional asset transfer from the ceding Council to
the new academy using a 'Share of Shortfall' approach. Under this approach any shortfall in
respect of the transferring members transfers to the new academy in the same proportion as
the payroll of the transferring members compared with the payroll of the ceding Council. If the
ceding Council is estimated to have no shortfall at the commencement date of the new
academy, the assets transferring to the new academy will be capped at 100% of the
transferring liabilities.

4.7

Where a new academy is set up as a multi-academy trust (MAT), the new MAT may elect to join
the Fund under two different approaches which are set out below. When a new academy joins
an existing MAT, the approach will be the same as the existing MAT.:
i)

Each academy within the MAT is treated as a separate employer in the Fund. Each
academy within the MAT has a separate contribution rate and shortfall amount
calculated at the commencement date of the new academy.

OFFICIAL
6
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 58

ii)

The MAT is treated as a single employer in the Fund. At the commencement date of the
MAT, the MAT will be treated as a single employer and contributions will be calculated
at that date consisting of a future service (primary) rate and shortfall contributions. For
any new academies joining in an inter-valuation period, the contributions for the new
academy would generally be set in line with the employer contributions of the MAT
calculated at the preceding triennial valuation of the Fund (or commencement date of
the MAT if later).

4.8

Historically, the Administering Authority have also allowed MATs to adopt an alternative
approach to the two approaches set out above, which is for academies within the MAT to be
pooled together for the purpose of setting their future service (primary) contribution rate but
then any shortfall contribution amounts are based on the position of each individual academy
within the MAT. This approach is no longer available for any new MATs joining the Fund.

4.9

For new standalone academies the future service (primary) rate on commencement of
participation will be expressed as a percentage of pay and any shortfall contributions are
generally expressed as monetary amounts. The recovery period used to set any shortfall
contributions on commencement will generally be set equal to that used for the ceding Council
at the preceding triennial valuation of the Fund.

Scheduled and subsumption body funding target
4.106 This approach can be used for new long term secure scheduled bodies and academies, where
the participation is assumed to be of indefinite duration, and for admission bodies that have a
'subsumption commitment' from a suitable secure Scheme employer (usually the transferring
employer). It is used to calculate the initial assets allocated to the admission bodyemployer and
its contributions as well as for the exit valuation (updated to allow for financial market
conditions at the exit date). This approach results in the same assumptions being used to set
contributions for the admission bodyemployer as apply to the Scheme employer letting the
contract in the case of an admission body (although the assumptions are updated to allow for
financial market conditions at the calculation date, whether that is the date of commencement
or exit).
4.117 The assumptions used under the scheduled and subsumption body funding target assume
investment in assets that are the same as the long term investment strategy of the Fund as a
whole.
4.128 Therefore the potential outperformance over low risk investment in government bonds (gilts) is
factored in, giving a lower contribution rate but also there is exposure to the volatility of equity
based investments and the risk of the expected outperformance not being achieved and the
impact on the contributions.
4.139 This funding target gives a lower contribution rate but less certainty that the liabilities are being
fully covered compared with a new employer on the low risk funding target (see below) with
assumed notional investment in government bonds, and can therefore lead to volatility in the
FSR over the life of the admission agreementemployer's participation in the Fund and increases
the risk of a shortfall or surplus emerging over the period of participation of the admission
bodyemployer in the Fund.

OFFICIAL
7
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 59

Intermediate funding target
4.140 This approach is used for certain employers that are considered by the Administering Authority
to be less financially secure than the long-term tax raising Scheduled Bodies.
4.151 This approach would also be used to set contributions and at exit for admission
bodiesemployers that have an appropriate subsumption commitment provided by a suitable
Scheme employer that is subject to the intermediate funding target.
4.162 This funding target is set with reference to government bond yields but includes an allowance
to reflect the expected out-performance above government bonds of the Fund's assets. This
allowance will generally be reviewed at each triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund.
Ongoing orphan funding target
4.173 This approach is used where the transferring employer or another secure long-term employer
in the Fund is not prepared to offer a subsumption commitment in relation to the admission
bodyemployer. This means that no other employer exists in the Fund that would be prepared to
take on future responsibility of the liabilities of the admission bodyemployer once the
admission bodyemployer has exited the Fund.
4.184 On the exit of the admission bodyemployer, its liabilities will become 'orphan liabilities' in the
Fund. This means that should a shortfall arise in respect of these liabilities after the admission
bodyemployer has exited the Fund, all remaining employers in the Fund would be required to
pay additional contributions to pay off this shortfall.
4.195 In that case, the exit valuation of the admission bodyemployer would be carried out on the low
risk funding target in order to protect the other employers in the Fund. This assumes that after
the exit of the admission bodyemployer the Administering Authority would wish to back the
orphan liabilities with low risk investments such as government bonds.
4.2016 The assumptions used under the ongoing orphan funding target are broadly designed to target
the low risk funding target at exit of the admission bodyemployer but reflect the fact that exit
of the admission bodyemployer will occur at some point in the future and allow for the
possibility of the expected return on government bonds changing before the exit date.
4.217 Prior to the exit date it is still assumed that the assets of the admission bodyemployer are
invested in line with the long term investment strategy of the Fund as a whole and this is
reflected in the "in-service" discount rate adopted as part of the ongoing orphan funding
target.
4.228 This funding target would generally result in a higher initial contribution rate than if a
subsumption commitment existed (where the subsumption funding target would be adopted),
but a lower initial contribution rate than if the low risk funding target is adopted (see below),
although unlike the matched approach described below investment risk underlying the Fund's
investment strategy is retained under this approach.

OFFICIAL
8
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 60

Low risk funding target
4.2319 This approach is used to reduce the risk of an uncertain and potentially large shortfall being due
to the Fund at the exit of the admission bodyemployer.
4.240 The low risk approach assumes a notional investment in government bonds for the admission
bodyemployer. Under this approach the investment risk is substantially reduced and it is
expected that the assets and liabilities of the admission bodyemployer would move broadly in
line with either other. It does not eliminate investment risk and other funding risks remain, but
it gives more certainty that the employer rate is providing funding to ‘match’ the liabilities.
However, it gives a substantially higher contribution rate as no allowance for any expected
outperformance of the Fund's assets over the low risk funding target is factored in.
Allowance for McCloud judgement / Cost Management process and GMP equalisation / indexation
4.251 For employers commencing participation in the Fund on or after 1 April 2019 allowance will be
included in the employer contribution rate for the potential additional costs arising due to the
McCloud judgement / Cost Management process equal to 0.9% of Pensionable Pay.
This figure was determined by the Fund actuary based on calculations carried out as part of the
2019 valuation across the Fund as a whole on the scheduled and subsumption body funding
target based on information available when this was calculated.
The McCloud consultations for the LGPS (in England and Wales) were published on 16 July
2020, which set out the following key proposals:


Compensation will apply to members who were in the LGPS on 31 March 2012 and who
have active membership of the Scheme on or after 1 April 2014



Benefits will be the better of those accrued in the 2014 Scheme (up to 31 March 2022) and
those accrued in the 2008 Scheme, backdated to 1 April 2014 (i.e. an ‘underpin’ approach)



Compensation will apply to members who leave with a deferred benefit and those who
retire from active service with immediate pension benefits, through voluntary age
retirement, ill health retirement, flexible retirement or redundancy



The remedy will apply to deaths in service



The remedy will apply to spouses’ and dependants’ benefits

Whilst there are some differences between the proposals set out in the consultation and the
assumptions made at the time of calculating the potential additional costs arising due to the
McCloud judgement / Cost Management process as part of the 2019 valuation and set out
above, given the uncertainty associated with any cost management changes and that employer
contributions will be reviewed from 1 April 2023 as part of the next triennial valuation of the
Fund, for pragmatic reasons the allowance to be included in the employer contribution rate will
be equal to 0.9% of Pensionable Pay. The same allowance will generally be made for any new
employer, irrespective of their membership and funding target.

OFFICIAL
9
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 61

4.262 When determining the notional level of assets to be allocated to the new employer no
allowance will generally be made for the potential past service liabilities arising due to the
McCloud judgement / Cost Management process.
4.273 When determining the notional level of assets to be allocated to a new employer commencing
participation in the Fund on or after 23 March 2021, the Fund actuary will allow for full
inflationary increases on GMPs for those reaching State Pension Age on or after 6 April 2016.
4.284 In determining the approach set out above, the Administering Authority has had regard to the
advice of the Fund actuary. It will be kept under regular review as further information on the
McCloud judgement and Cost Management process becomes available. In exceptional
circumstances any future change in approach may be backdated if considered necessary in light
of the specific circumstances of a particular employer. However, no changes are envisaged to
asset transfers for employers that commenced participation before 1 April 2019.
Review of Employer Contribution Rates
4.295 The Regulations require a triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund. As part of each actuarial
valuation separate employer contribution rates are assessed by the actuary for each
participating employer or group of employers. The Administering Authority also monitors the
position and may amend contributions between valuations as permitted by Regulations 64(4)
and 64A.
4.3026 The Administering Authority will consider reviewing employer contributions between formal
valuations in the following circumstances:


it appears likely to the Administering Authority that the amount of the liabilities arising or
likely to arise has changed significantly since the last valuation;



it appears likely to the Administering Authority that there has been a significant change in
the ability of the Scheme employer or employers to meet the obligations of employers in
the Scheme;



it appears likely to the Administering Authority the Scheme employer will become an exiting
employer; or



the Scheme employer or employers have requested a review of Scheme employer
contributions and have undertaken to meet the costs of that review.

4.3127 For the avoidance of doubt, the Administering Authority will not consider a review of
contributions under Regulation 64A purely on the grounds of a change in market conditions
affecting the value of assets and/or liabilities.
4.3228 In determining whether a review should take place under Regulation 64A, the Administering
Authority will consider the following factors (noting that this is not an exhaustive list):


the circumstances leading to the change in liabilities arising or likely to arise, for example
due to the restructuring of an employer, a significant outsourcing or transfer of staff, the
loss of a significant contract, closure to new entrants, material redundancies, significant pay
awards, or other significant changes to the membership due to ill-health retirements or
voluntary withdrawals

OFFICIAL
10
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 62



the materiality of any change in the employer's membership or liabilities, taking account of
the Fund Aactuary's view of how this might affect its funding position, primary or secondary
contribution rate;



whether, having taken advice from the Fund actuary, the Administering Authority believes a
change in funding target or deficit recovery period would be justified, e.g. on provision or
removal of any security, subsumption commitment, bond, guarantee, risk-sharing
arrangement, or other form of indemnity in relation to the employer's liabilities in the Fund;



the materiality of any change in the employer's financial strength or longer-term financial
outlook, based on information supplied by the employer and supported by a financial risk
assessment or more detailed covenant review carried out by the Fund actuary or other
covenant adviser to the Fund;



the general level of engagement from the employer and its adherence to its legal
obligations as set out in the Pensions Administration Strategy and elsewhere, including the
nature and frequency of any breaches such as failure to pay contributions on time.

4.3329 For an employer where contributions may be reviewed under Regulation 64(4), the following
circumstances may trigger a review, which may be informal as well as a full interim valuation
(this is not intended to be a comprehensive list) onsiderations will apply:


whether a review has been requested by the relevant guarantor or subsuming employer, or
for transferee and Schedule 2 Part 3 (1)(d) admission bodies the relevant scheme employer;



a material change in circumstances, such as the date of exit becoming known, material
membership movements or material financial information coming to light may cause the
Administering Authority to informally review the situation and subsequently formally
request an interim valuation;

4.340 For an employer whose participation is due to cease within the next 3 years, the Administering
Authority will monitor developments and may see fit to request an interim valuation at any
time.
4.351 Notwithstanding the above guidelines, the Administering Authority reserves the right to
request an interim valuation of any employer at any time if Regulation 64(4) or 64A applies
which may lead to a revised contribution schedule for the employer.
4.362 Where contributions are being reviewed for an employer with links to another employer in the
Fund, particularly where this is a formal organisational or contractual link, e.g. a formal
guarantee, subsumption commitment or risk sharing arrangement is in place, the Administering
Authority will consider the potential risk and impact of the contribution review on those other
employer(s), taking advice from the Fund Aactuary as required.
In other cases information will be required from the employer, e.g. in relation to its financial
position and business plans which could be the catalyst for informing the employer that a
review is being proposed. In all cases, the Administering Authority will advise the employer
that a review is being carried out and share the results of the review and any risk or covenant
assessment as appropriate. It should be noted that the fact of a review being carried out does
not automatically mean that contributions will be amended (up or down) since that will depend
upon the materiality of the changes and other factors such as the outcome of discussions with
the employer and any related employer in the Fund and the proximity to the next formal
valuation.
OFFICIAL
11
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 63

Where, following representations from the employer, the Administering Authority is
considering not increasing the employer's contributions following a review, despite there being
good reason to do so from a funding and actuarial perspective, e.g. if it would precipitate the
failure of the employer or otherwise seriously impair the employer's ability to deliver its
organisational objectives or it is expected that the employer's financial position will improve
significantly in the near-term, the Administering Authority will consult with any related
employers with a view to seeking their agreement to this approach.
4.373 It is expected that in most cases the employer will be aware of the proposed review of their
contributions since this will be triggered by an employer's action and employers should be
aware of the need to engage with the Fund in relation to any activity which could materially
affect their liabilities or ability to meet those liabilities.

4.384 The Administering Authority will consult with the employer on the timing of any contribution
changes and there will be a minimum of 4 weeks’ notice given of any contribution increases. In
determining whether, and when, any contribution changes are to take effect the Administering
Authority will also consider the timing of contribution changes following the next formal
valuation. As a result, contribution reviews are unlikely to be carried out during the 12 month
period from the valuation date although if there were any material changes to the expected
amount of liabilities arising or the ability of the employer to meet those liabilities during that
period, this should be taken into account when finalising the Rates and Adjustments Certificate
as part of the valuation.

4.395 Where the request for a review comes from the employer, before submitting their request, the
employer should consider the regulatory requirements and the Fund's policy as set out above
and satisfy themselves that there has been a relevant change in the expected amount of
liabilities or their ability to meet those liabilities. The employer should contact the
Administering Authority and complete the necessary information requirements for submission
to the Administering Authority in support of their application.
4.4036 The Administering Authority will consider the employer's request and may ask for further
information or supporting documentation/evidence as required. If the Administering Authority,
having taken actuarial advice as required, is of the opinion that a review is justified, it will
advise the employer and provide an indicative cost. In addition, employers should adhere to the
notifiable events framework as set out in the Pensions Administration Strategy. Employers
should be aware that all advisory fees, including actuarial, legal and any other costs incurred by
the Fund associated with a contribution review request, whether or not this results in
contributions being amended, will be recharged to the employer.

OFFICIAL
12
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 64

5

Termination of an employer

Exit events
5.1

In accordance with Regulation 64 the LGPS Regulations 2013, when an employer (including an
admission body) leaves the Fund, an exit valuation is carried out by the Fund’s actuary to
determine the level of any surplus or deficit in the outgoing employer's share of the Fund. All
actuarial and legal fees relating to the exit will be passed on to the exiting employer unless a
prior agreement is in place with the transferring employer.

5.2

There are a number of events that will trigger an exit:

5.3



when a contract comes to an end;



when a contract is terminated early;



when the employer no longer has any active members in the Fund;



when the admission body is in breach of its obligations under the admission agreement, or
the admission agreement is otherwise terminated by one of the parties;



the insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the admission body



the withdrawal of approval by HMRC to continue as a Scheme employer; or



the admission body fails to pay any sums due in a timely manner.

When an admission agreement comes to an end or a scheduled body exits the Fund, any active
employees may transfer to another employer, either within the Fund or elsewhere. If this is not
the case the employees will retain pension rights within the Fund i.e. either deferred benefits
or immediate retirement benefits.

Basis of exit valuations
5.4

An exit valuation is carried out to value the liabilities of the employer at the date of exit. The
basis used to calculate the liabilities depends on the circumstances of the exit and in particular
who takes responsibility of any future liabilities. The Fund’s policy is outlined below; however,
each exit will be assessed on a case by case basis.

5.5

If the employer has a subsumption commitment in place from a suitable Scheme employer
within the Fund, the appropriate subsumption funding target will be used as the basis of the
exit valuation unless otherwise indicated below. If the transferring employer requested that the
low risk funding target was adopted on admission to the Fund, the same funding target will be
used as the basis of the exit valuation. The subsuming employer will, following any termination
payment made by the employer, be responsible for any future liabilities that arise in relation to
the former employees of the exiting employer. Any liabilities formally attributable to the exiting
employer will be assessed at each Triennial Valuation and the subsuming employer’s
contribution rates will be adjusted to reflect this.

5.6

For all other exiting employers where there is no subsumption commitment in place, the Fund's
policy is to use the low risk funding target as the basis of the exit calculation. This is to protect
the other employers in the Fund who will become responsible for any future ‘orphan liabilities’
that arise in relation to the former employees of the exiting employer post exit.

OFFICIAL
13
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 65

5.7

Where the active members transfer to a new employer in the Fund on a fully funded basis, any
shortfall between the value of the liabilities assessed on the funding target of the exiting
employer and the funding target for the receiving employer will be met by the appropriate
letting body. Any changes to the default position must be agreed, prior to transfer, by all
relevant parties including the Administering Authority.

Grouped Scheduled Bodies - Town and Parish Councils admitted prior to 31 March 2008
5.8

On termination of participation within the grouped scheduled bodies, the exit valuation is
based on a simplified share of the group deficit amount, which is calculated on the Scheduled
and subsumption body funding target. This involves calculating the notional deficit share, as at
the last triennial valuation, based on the proportion of payroll that body has within the group.
An adjustment to the date of exit will normally be made in line with the assumptions adopted
as at the last triennial valuation unless the actuary and Administering Authority consider that
the circumstances warrant a different treatment, for example, to allow for actual investment
returns over the period from the last actuarial valuation to exit. Any liability that cannot be
reclaimed from the exiting employer will be underwritten by the group and not all employers in
the Fund.

5.9

Following the termination of the grouped body, any residual assets and liabilities will be
subsumed by any guarantor body for the group, or in the absence of a guarantor, subsumed by
the Fund as a whole.

Grouped Bodies - LMS Pools admitted prior to 1 April 2019
5.10

On termination of an admission body within the LMS pool, a termination valuation will
generally be calculated on the Scheduled and subsumption body funding target. The assets and
liabilities relating to the active employees will, assuming there is a subsumption commitment in
place in the admission agreement relating to that admission body, be subsumed by NYCC or the
CoYC depending on which pool they are in. If there is no subsumption commitment in place,
the parties will be offered the opportunity to put one in place on exit. If this option is not taken
then the low risk funding target will be used to calculate the exit position.

Academies
5.11

In some cases, different academies within a multi-academy trust (MAT) will be (at the request
of the MAT) treated by the Fund as if they were separate employers for the purposes of
assessing contribution rates in respect of employees at those academies. However, even where
this is the case, in the event that a single academy ceases to participate in the Fund in
circumstances where other academies within the same MAT continue to participate, this will
not be treated as an exit or partial exit by the MAT and no exit valuation will be commissioned.
Rather, any liabilities attributed to an academy as a notionally separate employer will fall to be
funded by the MAT as a whole. The impact of this on the MAT's employer contributions will
generally be allowed for at the subsequent triennial valuation of the Fund. However, the
Administering Authority may direct the Fund actuary to take the cessation into account straight
away and adjust the contributions payable by the MAT if the event is considered material and
the circumstances meet the criteria for a review of contributions under Regulation 64A - see
paragraphs 4.29 to 4.40 above for details of the Administering Authority's policy in this area.

Where an employer within a multi-academy trust (MAT) fails, unless that academy is being
OFFICIAL
14
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 66

treated as an employer in its own right, there is no power wit

Where employers within a MAT are treated as individual scheme employers for the purpose of the Regulations, and an academy within the MAT leave
Rather than requiring a lump sum payment, the Administering Authority will consider allowing
the remaining academies within the MAT to subsume the assets and liabilitiesmay instead act
on the assumption that the remaining MAT employers

have

provided

a

subsumption

commitment, which includes subsumption of the unpaid deficit which would then fall to be
recovered from ongoing contributions. In that case, the Administering Authority will instruct
the Fund Actuary to allocate the assets and liabilities of the outgoing academy across the
remaining employers in the MAT.
Allowance for McCloud judgement / Cost Management process and GMP equalisation / indexation
5.12

For employers exiting the Fund on or after 1 April 2019 the Fund actuary will add 1% to the
value of the exiting employer's liabilities as a prudent margin given the possibility of additional
liabilities arising due to the McCloud judgement / Cost Management process and covering the
potential costs of GMP equalisation / indexation.
However, the Administering Authority will not seek to recalculate the exit liabilities for exits on
or after 1 April 2019 where the exit deficit (or credit) has already been paid as at the date this
policy comes into effect.

5.13

In determining this margin, the Administering Authority has had regard to guidance prepared
by the Scheme Advisory Board and the advice of the Fund's actuary. It will be kept under
regular review as further information on the McCloud judgment / Cost Management process
becomes available.

Notification of termination
5.14

In many cases termination of an admission agreement can be predicted, for example, because
the admission body wishes to terminate their contract. In this case admission bodies are
required to notify the Fund of their intention as soon as possible. The Fund requires a minimum
of 3 months’ written notice for early termination of an admission agreement.

5.15

Where termination is disclosed in advance or in the opinion of the Administering Authority
there are circumstances which make it likely that an employer will become an exiting employer,
the Fund may request a revised certificate from the Actuary that specifies the amount that the
rates should be adjusted by prior to exit in line with Regulation 64(4) of the Regulations.

5.16

A valuation under Regulation 64 will assess the assets held as at the exit date in the Fund in
respect of the exiting employer, as compared to the liabilities of the Fund in respect of benefits
attributable to the exiting employer's current and former employees. The exit valuation will
usually show that there is either:


a deficit, in that the liabilities have a higher value than the assets. In this situation
paragraphs 5.197 to 5.32978 below will apply; or



a surplus, in that the assets have a higher value than the liabilities. In this situation
paragraphs 5.340289 to 5.438 79 below will apply.

OFFICIAL
15
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 67

5.17

In the event that a valuation under Regulation 64 results in there being no deficit or surplus,
then no further payments will be due from or to the exiting employer (save for any unpaid
liability arising before the exit valuation).

5.18

It should be noted that existence of a subsumption commitment or other agreement entered in
relation to any liabilities of the exiting employer does not mean that the exit valuation does not
need to be carried out.

Payment of exit debt
5.19

If the Fund actuary has calculated a deficit at the exit date the exiting employer is liable for
payment of that deficit under the Regulations. The Administering Authority will usually require
a lump sum payment from the exiting employer in the first instance, although the
Administering Authority may allow phased payments as permitted under Regulation 64B.
Where an exit payment cannot be met in full or in part by the exiting employer the
Administering Authority will attempt to recover any outstanding payment from a bond or
alternative indemnity that may be in place.

5.20

Following the use of any bonds or indemnities (if any), any remaining debt will be recovered in
a lump sum payment from the guarantor (if there is one). However, where the terms of the
guarantee allow it, the Administering Authority reserves the right to demand payment of any
exit debt from the guarantor as a primary liability (i.e. without first seeking payment from the
exiting employer)

5.21

If there is no guarantor any outstanding debt will be recovered from any related employer in
the case of a Schedule 2, Part 3, 1(d)(i) body. The Administering Authority may request a lump
sum payment or it may be agreed, if the related employer is a contributing employer of the
Fund, that the rates and adjustment certificate be revised to allow for the recovery of the
remaining debt over a reasonable period of time, as determined by the Administering
Authority.

5.22

In any other case the debt will be subsumed by all other employers in the Fund. The rates and
adjustment certificate for all contributing employers will be revised to allow for the recovery of
any remaining exit debt over a reasonable period of time, determined by the Administering
Authority, at the next triennial valuation following exit.

5.23

Any lump sum payments will be required within 30 days following the issue of the revised rates
and adjustment certificate showing the exit payment due unless another period is specified by
the Administering Authority. Any late payments will incur charges in accordance with the
Fund’s Charging Policy.

5.22

In exceptional circumstances the Administering Authority may consider allowing an exiting
employer to pay an exit payment over an agreed period of time, where it is not considered to
pose a material risk to the solvency of the Fund and the Administering Authority is satisfied that
the exiting employer is able to make the agreed payments.

Suspending payment of exit amounts
5.243 At the absolute discretion of the Administering Authority, a suspension notice may be awarded
to an exiting employer under Regulation 64(2A) of the Regulations. This can be for a period of
up to three years after the exit date (the maximum period permitted by the Regulations).

OFFICIAL
16
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 68

Commented [SC1]: Have removed this wording as a formal
policy on spreading of exit debt is now included below.

5.254 Any application for the Administering Authority to grant a suspension notice will normally only
be considered if the following criteria apply:;


the employer can provide evidence that it is likely to admit one or more new active
members to the Fund within the period of the suspension notice;



the employer is not a ‘closed’ Admitted Bodyemployer (no new active members are
permitted to join the Fund); and



any application for the Administering Authority to grant a suspension notice is made within
three months of the exit date.

5.265 The Administering Authority reserves the right to withdraw a suspension notice if the terms of
the agreement to award a suspension notice are not being upheld by the employer.
5.276 If a suspension notice is awarded, the exit valuation will be deferred until the earlier of:


the end of suspension period;, or,;



the point at which the suspension notice is withdrawn (for any reason).

5.287 If one or more new active members are admitted to the Fund the employer’s full participation
in the Fund will resume.
5.298 During the period of any suspension notice, the employer must continue to make contributions
to the Fund as certified in the rates and adjustments certificate.
Spreading of exit payments
5.30

The starting position of the Administering Authority is that an exiting employer will be required
to meet any exit liability owed as a single lump sum payment. However, the Administering
Authority may allow phased exit payments as permitted under Regulation 64B.

5.31

It is envisaged that spreading of exit payments will only be considered at the request of an
employer. The Administering Authority will then engage with the employer to consider itsthe
application and determine whether spreading the exit payment is appropriate, and the terms
which should apply.

5.32

In determining whether to permit an exit payment to be spread, the Administering Authority
will consider factors including, but not limited to:

5.33



tThe ability of the employer to make a single capital payment;



whether any security is in place, including a charge over assets, bond, guarantee or other
indemnity;



whether the overall recovery to the Fund is likely to be higher if spreading the exit payment
is permitted.

In determining the employer's ability to make a single payment the Administering Authority will
seek actuarial, covenant or legal advice as required. Where the Administering Authority
considers that the employer is financially able to make a single capital payment, this will
normally weigh against the Administering Authority allowing the payment to be spread it will
not normally be appropriate for the exit payment to be spread.
OFFICIAL
17
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 69

5.34

The employer will be required to provide details of its financial position, business plans and
financial forecasts and such other information as required by the Administering Authority in
order for it to make a decision on whether or not to permit the exit payment to be spread. This
information must be provided within 2 months of request.

5.35

In determining the appropriate length of time for an exit payment to be spread, the
Administering Authority will consider the affordability of the instalments using different
spreading periods for the employer. The default spreading period will be up to 3 years but
longer periods may be considered where the Administering Authority is satisfied that this
doesn't pose undue risk to the Fund in relation to the employer's ability to continue to make
payments over the period.

5.36

Whilst the Administering Authority's preference would be for an employer to request spreading
of any exit payment in advance of the exit date, it is acknowledged that this may not be
possible until after the employer has exited the Fundthe request may not be able to be made
until the results of the exit valuation are known. Where there is a guarantor or subsuming
employer, the guarantor/subsuming employer will also be consulted and any agreement to
spread the exit deficit may be conditional on the guarantee (or where there is one in place prior
to exit, a bond) continuing in force during the spreading period.

5.37

The amount of the instalments due under an exit deficit spreading agreement will generally be
calculated as levelequal annual amounts allowing for interest over the spreading period in line
with the discount rate used to calculate the exit liabilities. Alternatively, monthly payments may
be required, or the Administering Authority may require a higher initial payment with lower
annual payments thereafter to reduce the risk to the Fund. Alternative payment arrangements
may be made in exceptional circumstances as long as the Administering Authority is satisfied
that they don't materially increase the risk to the Fund.

5.38

Where it has been agreed to spread an exit payment the Administering Authority will advise the
employer in writing of the arrangement, including the spreading period, the annual payments
due, any other costs payable including actuarial and legal costs and the responsibilities of the
employer during the spreading period. Where a request to spread an exit payment has been
denied the Administering Authority will advise the employer in writing and provide a brief
explanation of the rationale for the decision.

5.39

The Administering Authority will take actuarial, covenant, legal and other advice as considered
necessary. In addition, employers will be expected to engage with the Administering Authority
during the spreading period and adhere to the notifiable events framework as set out in the
Pensions Administration Strategy. If the Administering Authority has reason to believe the
employer's circumstances have changed such that a review of the spreading period (and hence
the payment amounts) is appropriate, it will consult with the employer and a revised payment
schedule may be implemented. Whilst this review may also consider the frequency of
payments, it should be noted that it is not envisaged that any review will consider changes to
the original exit amount nor interest rate applicable. An employer will be able to discharge its
obligations under the spreading arrangement by paying off all future instalments at its
discretion. The Administering Authority will seek actuarial advice in relation to whether there
should be a discount for early payment given interest will have been added in line with the
discount rate used for the exit valuation.

OFFICIAL
18
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 70

Surplus on Exit
5.409 As soon as is practicable after the production of the applicable exit valuation, the Administering
Authority will notify the exiting employer and, where the exiting employer has been admitted
to the fund as an admission body:


any party that has given a guarantee under paragraph 8 of Part 3 to Schedule 2 to the
Regulations; and



(in respect of admissions under paragraph (1)(d) of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the Regulations)
any scheme employer who was providing a service or assets in connection with the
exercise of a function of the exiting employer

of the fact that the exit valuation shows a surplus, that the Administering Authority intends to
make a determination of whether this surplus should be passed in whole or in part to the
exiting employer, and to request that each party , within 14 days, provides their written
representations to the Administering Authority in relation to any factors which, in their view,
would influence such a decision and make the payment of a surplus to the exiting employer
more or less appropriate. When requesting the representations of the parties, the Authority
will set a time period for responses that it considers reasonable in the circumstances, but which
shall not be less than 14 days in duration. Except in cases where the amount of the surplus in
question would make the process disproportionate, the Authority would usually offer each
party consulted a separate opportunity to respond in writing to the representations of the
other party (if any have been made).
5.4130 The representations of the parties mentioned in paragraph 5.29 above may (but need not)
detail any risk sharing arrangement agreed between the parties as regards the participation of
the exiting employer in the Fund.
5.4231 The Administering Authority will make a determination of the amount of the exit credit (if any)
payable to the exiting employer. In reaching this decision the Administering Authority will have
regard to the following factors:
a)

the amount of the surplus in questionextent to which there is a surplus;

b)

the proportion of the excess of assets which has arisen because of the value of the
exiting employer's contribution;

c)

the representations received by the parties under paragraph 5.29 above;

d)

the date on which the admission and/or commercial arrangements between the exiting
employer and scheme employer came into effect, and whether therefore the parties
had the opportunity to deal with the chance of an exit credit in their contractual
arrangements; whether the surplus arises in whole or in part because of any agreement
by another scheme employer to subsume the liabilities of the exiting employer;

e)

(where the Administering Authority is aware of the same) whether or not the exiting
employer has been exposed to the full financial risk of participation in the Fund and the
existence of any risk-sharing arrangements in place with third parties;

e)f)

where part or all of the surplus relates to an increase in the value of the assets of the
Fund as at the exit date due to better-than-expected investment growth or returns, the
extent to which that increase in asset value can be regarded as a stable and long-term
value increase, or alternatively the extent that the asset value might have been affected
by a temporary rise due to unusual or exceptional market conditions;
OFFICIAL
19
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 71

f)g)

any other relevant factors.

5.433 2
No single factor will be conclusive and the Administering Authority will consider all the
circumstances in the round in coming to its decision on the correct level of an exit payment. In
order to help the parties in formulating their representations, the Administering Authority sets
out below the factors it may consider, and some guidance as to the usual implication of those
factors:
Factor
The Administering Authority's view on how this
may influence the determination
The extent to which there is a surplus
Will not ofitself influence the determination in
favour or against the exit credit, but the
Administering Authority may decide to truncate
the determination process where the surplus is so
small as to make the full process administratively
disproportionate;
The proportion of the excess of assets
In general, the Administering Authority considers
which has arisen because of the value
that where the surplus exceeds the total employer
of the exiting employer's contributions contributions received over the course of the
admission (plus a reasonable allowance for interest
where this might be appropriate), this would weigh
against the payment of the full surplus as an exit
credit;
The representations received from the Dependent on their content;
parties
The date on which the admission
In general, the Authority considers that where the
and/or commercial arrangements
arrangements pre-date the introduction into the
between the exiting employer and
Regulations of the concept of exit credits, and
scheme employer came into effect, and therefore the parties did not anticipate the
whether therefore the parties had the
existence of an exit credit in their negotiations or
opportunity to deal with the chance of contractual arrangements, this will weigh against
an exit credit in their contractual
the payment of an exit credit (either in full or in
arrangements
part dependent on the circumstances), and where
the arrangements post-date the concept of exit
credits, this will weigh in favour of the payment of
an exit credit (either in full or in part dependent on
the circumstances);
Whether or not the exiting employer
In general, the Administering Authority considers
has been exposed to the full financial
that where the exiting employer has not been
risk of participation in the Fund and the exposed to the usual financial risks associated with
existence of any risk-sharing
admission by reason of its commercial
arrangements in place with third
arrangements with third parties (for example the
parties
scheme employer), this would weigh against the
payment of an exit credit (either in full or in part
dependent on the circumstances of the
arrangement in question). Such a risk sharing
arrangement might include for example:
 an agreement whereby the exiting employer
will be protected from, or reimbursed in
respect of, any deficit which arises under
Regulation 64 of the Regulations, either in
whole or to a material extent; and/or


an agreement which protects the exiting

OFFICIAL
20
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 72

employer from variation in respect of the level
of its ongoing employer contributions to the
Fund, either in absolute terms, or within a
defined range (often referred to as a "cap and
collar" arrangement).
The Authority also considers that where a scheme
employer has given a subsumption commitment in
respect of an exiting employer, this would qualify
as a risk sharing arrangement, as the practical
effect would be to transfer contingent risks that
would usually rest with the exiting employer to the
subsuming employer, thus reducing the risk to
which the exiting employer is exposed. Where the
Administering Authority is aware that a
subsumption commitment has been given, it will
prepare and will submit to the parties exit
valuations prepared on both the subsumption basis
and discounting the subsumption commitment, in
order to more clearly demonstrate the impact of
the subsumption and to enable the parties to make
informed representations on the impact of the
subsumption commitment on the exit surplus;
Where part or all of the surplus relates
to an increase in the value of the assets
of the Fund as at exit date due to
better-than-expected investment
growth or returns, the extent to which
that increase in asset value can be
regarded as a stable and long-term
value increase;

Any other relevant factors.

In general, the Administering Authority considers
that where the exit took place at a time when the
value of assets held by the Fund were
unexpectedly high, and subsequently declined, or
appear to the Administering Authority reasonably
likely to decline in the short or medium term, then
this will weigh against the payment of an exit credit
(either in full or in part dependent on the
circumstances). Where the Authority relies on this
factor in making a determination, it will provide
the parties with details of why it considers that is
the case; and
Dependent on the factor in question.

Whilst the Administering Authority reserves its discretion to come to a different determination where
circumstances indicate this might be reasonable, it expects that in the majority of cases, it will
apply the following principles in making a determination:
in respect of paragraph 5.31(b), that the value of any surplus returned to the exiting employer will be
capped at one hundred per cent (100%) of the total value of employer contributions made by
the exiting employer during the course of its relevant participation in the Fund (and subject to
further adjustment by reference to other factors). For the avoidance of doubt, the relevant sum
will be limited to employer (and not employee) contributions, and without any investment
return or interest on those contributions;
in respect of paragraph 5.31(d), where the surplus arises wholly or in part due to favourable actuarial
assumptions arising from the existence of an enforceable subsumption commitment from
OFFICIAL
21
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 73

another scheme employer, the Administering Authority will not normally pay the surplus to the
exiting employer (and will instead retain the same within the Fund).
Where an exit valuation has been prepared on the basis that a subsumption commitment exists and
this shows a surplus, the exiting employer will be offered the option, at its own cost, to have
the exit valuation undertaken again on the low risk funding target. In cases where a surplus
would still exist where calculated on the low risk funding target, the total available for
distribution to the exiting employer will be capped at the surplus when calculated on the low
risk funding target (and subject to further adjustment by reference to other factors); and
in respect of paragraph 5.31(e), the Administering Authority may (but is not required to) request
additional information or documentation in support of any claim by either party that a risk
sharing arrangement exists. Where the Administering Authority reasonably believes that an
exiting employer has not been exposed to a material extent to the usual financial risks
associated with participation in the Fund by reason of a risk sharing arrangement with a third
party, then in general no surplus will be distributed to the exiting employer. Examples of
relevant "risk sharing" arrangements might include, but are not limited to:
an agreement whereby the exiting employer will be protected from, or reimbursed in respect of, any
deficit which arises under Regulation 64 of the Regulations, either in whole or to a material
extent; and/or
an agreement which protects the exiting employer from variation in respect of the level of its ongoing
employer contributions to the Fund, either in absolute terms, or within a defined range (often
referred to as a "cap and collar" arrangement).
5.4343 In making a determination under paragraph 5.31, the Administering Authority will take such
legal, actuarial and investment advice as it considers appropriate.
5.4354 The Administering Authority will notify each of the parties identified in paragraph 5.29 of the
amount of any surplus which it has determined should be returned to the exiting employer, if
any (the "exit credit").

OFFICIAL
22
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 74

5.4365 Where the Administering Authority has determined that an exit credit will be paid, the
Administering Authority will make the payment to the exiting employer: by the later of:


six months after the date of the exit event; or



six months after the date on which the Administering Authority is provided with
information needed to carry out the exit valuation; or



such later date as the Administering Authority and the exiting employer may agree.

5.4376 The Administering Authority's ability to meet the payment deadlines mandated by the
Regulations is dependent on the parties providing the information needed as part of the exit
process in a timely fashionmanner.
5.48

Payment will be made by BACS in the absence of a compelling reason why this is not
appropriate. If there are any sums due from the exiting employer connected to their
participation in, or exit from, the Fund, then these sums will be deducted from any exit credit
due to the exiting employer before payment.

5.43987
If the scheme employer and admission body wish to change the default position on the
payment of an exit credit then they should include suitable provisions in any service agreement
between themselves. Where the Administering Authority determines that an exit credit is to be
paid, this will in all circumstances be paid to the exiting employer and not to any other party
(even where, for example, the exiting employer requests it or the exiting employer has already
agreed to pass that payment to a third party).
5.439508
When an exit credit payment is made, or if the Administering Authority determines that
no exit credit is due, no further payments are due from the Administering Authority in respect
of any surplus assets relating to the benefits of any current or former employees of the exiting
employer.
Deferred Debt Agreements (DDAs)
5.5109 Under Regulation 64(7A) of the Regulations, an administering authority may enter into a
written agreement with an exiting employer for that employer to defer their obligation to make
an exit payment and continue to make contributions at the secondary rate.
5.5215049
The Administering Authority’s current policy is that Deferred Debt Agreements will
generally not be permitted.

OFFICIAL
23
V3.5_June August 2021

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Pensions Administration Strategy
Augustpril 2021

If you require this information in an alternative language or another format such as
large type, audio cassette or Braille, please contact the Pensions Help & Information
Line on 01609 536335

Page 77
OFFICIAL

Index

Section

Content

1

Purpose of Strategy

2

Regulatory Background

3

Review of the Strategy

4

Performance Levels

5

Responsibilities and Duties of the Employer

6

Responsibilities and Duties of NYPF

7

Contribution Rates and Administration Costs

8

Communications

9

Notifying Employers of a Change in Policy

Page 78
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

Pensions Administration Strategy
1.0

Purpose of Strategy
This Strategy sets out the administration protocols between employers and the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund (NYPF). The protocols aim to ensure the cost effective running of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the best service possible for LGPS members. The protocols ensure that
the statutory requirements and timescales imposed upon both employers and the NYPF can be met
and therefore must be followed at all times.
For the purpose of this Strategy no practical distinction is drawn between the statutory role of North
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) as the Administering Authority for the NYPF, its Pension Fund
Committee, the Pension Administration Section or other sections of the Central Services Directorate
all of whom play a role in the administration of the NYPF. The term NYPF is used collectively to reflect
all of the above roles within NYCC. The Pension Board also exists to assist the Administering
Authority in ensuring that the NYPF is managed and administered effectively and efficiently and
complies with pensions’ legislation and requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator.

2.0

Regulatory Background
The protocols cannot override any provision or requirement in the regulations outlined below or in
any other relevant legislation.
This Strategy is made under regulation 59 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013. The principal regulations underpinning this document are:




















the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment)
Regulations 2014
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions)
Regulations 2007 (and any amendments thereto)
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2007
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2007
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 1997 (and any
amendments thereto)
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (and any amendments thereto)
the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2000 (and any amendments thereto)
the Occupational Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 1996 (and any
amendments thereto)
the Occupational Pension Schemes (Preservation of Benefit) Regulations 1991
the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations
2013 (“the
Disclosure Regulations”)
the Pensions Act 1995
the Pensions Act 2004
the Pensions Act 2008
the General Data Protection Regulation 2018
the Finance Act 2004
the Automatic Enrolment (Miscellaneous Amendment) Regulations 2013
the Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations
2014 including amendments to any of these Regulations

Page 79
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

3.0

Review of the Strategy
This Strategy will be kept under review by the NYPF.
Employers may make suggestions to improve any aspect of this Strategy at any time.
The Pension Fund Committee and the Pension Board will be asked by the NYPF to formally review
and approve the Strategy on an annual basis.

4.0

Performance Levels
Performance level agreements are set out in this document for both employers and the NYPF. These
will be reviewed annually and employers will be consulted regarding any material changes.
This Strategy is the agreement between the NYPF and employers about the levels of performance
and associated matters to ensure that the statutory requirements and timescales can be met at all
times.
Performance is monitored and reported quarterly to the Pension Fund Committee. Performance of
both employers and the NYPF will also be reported in the pension fund annual report and accounts.

5.0

Responsibilities and Duties of the Employer

5.1

Contact Person
The employer will provide a primary contact and will notify the NYPF management team who that
person is. The employer will promptly notify the NYPF of any changes to the nominated person.

5.2

Authorised Signatories
Each employer must provide a list of nominated officers to act as authorised signatories whose
names and specimen signatures are held by the NYPF. In signing a document an authorised officer is
certifying that the form comes from their organisation and the information being provided has been
checked and is correct. Consequently, if an authorised officer is certifying information that someone
else has completed, they should be satisfied that the correct validation process has been followed
and the information is correct.
It is the employer’s responsibility to ensure that details of the nominated contact and authorised
signatories are correct. Any changes must be notified to the NYPF immediately. Failure to update
authorised signatories will delay payment of pension benefits.

5.3

Disclosure and The Pensions Regulator’s Requirements
The Pensions Regulator details specific requirements for public sector pension schemes set out in the
‘Code of Practice No.14’. Paragraphs 128 – 130 refer to the need for employers to understand and
comply with the scheme manager’s processes to ensure that the statutory requirements and
timescales can be met at all times.
From time to time, the NYPF’s auditors may request member data. They may also request an
employer site visit to carry out audits such as ensuring that correct and accurate pay calculations
have been carried out. Employers are asked to co-operate with these requests.
Any fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator will be passed on to the employer where that
employer’s actions caused the fine. Examples of this would be, failure to provide leaver details on
time or failure to provide sufficient and accurate year end information leading to delays in issuing
Annual Benefit Statements and Pensions Saving Statements.

Page 80
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

5.4

Employee’s Guide
Under the Occupational Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013 the employer
must ensure that all new employees eligible to join the LGPS receive a copy of the Employees' Guide
to the scheme as follows:

Where you have received jobholder information, the guide must be given within one month
of the date that information was received.

Where you have not received jobholder information, the guide must be given within two
months of the date the person became an active member of the scheme.
The guide is available on the NYPF website at www.nypf.org.uk where you can signpost new
members to view and/or download it. Email and paper communications are also acceptable.

5.5

Member details – Employer performance levels
The NYPF expects all employers to fully utilise i-Connect for the provision of member information on
a monthly basis. Failure to do so will result in charges being applied as detailed in the NYPF Employer
Charging Policy.
The employer must submit notifications to the NYPF as follows:
Event

Timescale for employer notifying the NYPF

New starters

Within one month of starting employment

Change in member’s details

Within six weeks of the event

Leavers

Within six weeks of the date of leaving

Advanced Notification of Retirement
(ADNOT form)

As early as possible but at least 30 days before
the last day of employment

Retirements

No later than one month following retirement
Disclosure regulations require that when a
retirement takes place before Normal Pension
Age (NPA) the NYPF receives the leaver
information no later than one month after the
date of retirement.
Where a retirement takes place on or after
NPA, the NYPF receives the leaver information
no more than 20 days after the date of
retirement.
Within three working days of the employer
being notified of the death of the member

Death in Service

5.6

Year end information
The employer (or their payroll contractor/agency for which the employer is responsible) shall provide
the NYPF with final salary (where applicable) and Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) year end
information as at 31 March each year in a notified format (provided by the NYPF) no later than 30
April or the next working day. The employer will certify that the appropriate checks for accuracy and
completeness have been carried out before submitting to the NYPF.
NYCC’s Integrated Finance team also requires separate information. After completion of the March
contribution sheets, employers are required to review their full year contribution summary
(contained within the same Excel document). All contributions for the year should be reconciled back
to the organisational payroll and the relevant declaration is to be signed and dated before being
returned to pension.contributions@northyorks.gov.uk.

Page 81
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

5.7

Contribution deductions
The employer will ensure that member and employer contributions are deducted at the correct rate.
This includes contributions due on leave of absence with reduced or no pay, maternity, paternity and
adoption leave and any additional contributions that the NYPF request the employer to collect.

5.8

Payment of contributions to the NYPF
Contributions (but not Prudential Additional Voluntary Contributions) should be paid by BACS each
month to the NYPF.
The deadline for all pension contributions to be cleared in the NYPF bank account is the 19th of the
month (or the last working day before, where the 19th is not a working day) following the month the
contributions relate to. This is in line with the requirements of the Pensions Act 1995. Any employers
who currently pay by cheque must therefore ensure the cheque is received by the NYPF by the 14th
of the month (or the last working day before, where the 14th is not a working day).
The employer must email a monthly return to pension.contributions@northyorks.gov.uk in advance
of their payment. The monthly return is in a prescribed format and is provided by the Integrated
Finance team. The return must include the following information:









employer’s name and reference number
pay period
total pensionable pay
total amount of employee contributions
total amount of employer future service contributions
total amount of employer past service deficit contributions (if applicable)
added years contributions, additional regular contributions, additional pension contributions (if
applicable)
any other payroll related adjustments

The following charges will apply for any employer who fails to meet the deadlines above.
Late payment of contributions

Late submission of monthly return

£100 will be charged for each full month a
payment is delayed beyond its due date

£100 will be charged for each full month a
monthly return is delayed beyond its due date

Plus
A daily interest charge of 1% above the bank
base rate for each day the payment is overdue.
This charge will only be triggered when payment
is overdue by one month or more
For persistent breaches the employer will, as a matter of last resort, be reported to the Pensions
Regulator. Any fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator will be passed on to the employer where
that employer’s actions caused the fine.
5.9

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
The employer will pay additional voluntary contributions to the AVC Provider, Prudential, within one
week of them being deducted. Under the Pensions Act 2004, we can notify the Pensions Regulator if
contributions are not received by the 19th of the month following the month the contributions relate
to. The employer will submit the schedule of AVCs in an agreed format directly to Prudential ahead
of the actual remittance.
Any fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator will be passed on to the employer where that
employer’s actions caused the fine.

Page 82
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

5.10

Discretionary Powers
It is a mandatory requirement that each employer has a published discretions policy to enable them
to exercise the discretionary powers given to them by the regulations. The regulations also require
that a copy of the policy is lodged with the NYPF. Any subsequent changes to the policy must be
published and copied to the NYPF within one month of the change.
Employers will be responsible for responding to member complaints where a failure to maintain
relevant employer policies results in a dispute case. This will include complying with the Internal
Dispute Resolution procedure, where appropriate, and paying the associated fees for appointing a
specified person.

5.11

Employer Decisions
Certain aspects of the regulations require an employer decision. The employer is responsible for
implementing such areas correctly, (e.g. deduction of contributions at the correct rate, notifying the
member when the rate changes and their right to appeal).

5.12

Independent Registered Medical Practitioner
The employer is responsible for determining and employing their own appropriately qualified
independent registered medical practitioner (IRMP) and providing details of those practitioners to
the NYPF (see also paragraph 6.4). See the Pensions Ombudsman Service newsletter for useful
information on the role of the IRMP.

5.13

Employer responsibility for information provided to the NYPF
The NYPF is not responsible for verifying the accuracy of any information provided by the employer
(including year end data) for the purpose of calculating benefits under the provisions of the LGPS and
the Discretionary Payments Regulations. The employer is solely responsible for ensuring that
information has been checked and is correct. Failure to provide accurate and up to date information
will delay payment of pension benefits.
Any over payment made by the NYPF resulting from inaccurate information supplied by the employer
will be recovered by the NYPF from the employer.
The employer is responsible for any work carried out on its behalf by another section of their
organisation or by a contractor appointed by them (e.g. payroll provider or HR team).

5.14

General Data Protection Regulation
Under the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), the employer will protect from improper
disclosure any information about a member included (where applicable) on any item sent from the
NYPF. It will also only use information supplied or made available by the NYPF for the operation of
the LGPS. Any data the employer shares with the NYPF must be adequately protected in line with the
requirements of the GDPR.

5.15

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure
The employer must identify a ‘specified person’ for any instances where an Internal Dispute
Resolution Procedure (IDRP) application is submitted against the employer and meet the associated
costs. The NYPF has an independent specified person who is available for employers to refer cases to.

5.16

Fines imposed on the NYPF
Any fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator, the Pensions Ombudsman, HMRC or other
organisation, will be passed on to the relevant employer where that employer's action or inaction
(e.g. the failure to notify a retirement within the time limits described above), caused the fine.

Page 83
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

5.17

Charges to the employer
The NYPF will, under certain circumstances, consider giving written notice to employers under
regulation 70 on account of the employer’s unsatisfactory performance in carrying out its scheme
functions when measured against levels of performance established under paragraph 5.5 above. The
written notice may include charges imposed by the NYPF for chasing employers for outstanding
information as detailed in the NYPF Employer Charging Policy.

5.18

Notifiable Events
The fund monitors employer covenant to ensure the Fund and its employers are not exposed to
unnecessary risk. Employers must therefore notify the Fund of any events which could materially
affect their liabilities of their ability to meet those liabilities. These include, but are not limited to, the
following:










A decision which will restrict the employer’s active membership in the Fund in the future
A material change in membership of the Fund which would significantly reduce the LGPS
pensionable pay
A change in the employer’s legal status or constitution which may change the qualification as a
Scheme employer under the LGPS Regulations
Any restructuring or other event that could materially affect the employer’s membership.
Confirmation of involvement in wrongful trading
Conviction of senior personnel, particularly where the conviction is in relation to the employer’s
business
A decision to cease business
Breach of banking covenant
Details of any improvement notice (or equivalent) served by an appropriate body or regulator

Employers should provide this information in advance of the event occurring (where possible) or as
soon as possible after.

6.0

Responsibilities and Duties of the NYPF

6.1

Regulatory Issues
The NYPF will administer the pension fund in accordance with the LGPS regulations and any
overriding legislation including employer discretions.
The NYPF will issue a membership certificate to new members; this provides notification to members
that they have joined the NYPF.
The NYPF is responsible for exercising the discretionary powers given to it by the regulations. The
NYPF is also responsible for publishing its policy in respect of the key discretions as required by the
regulations.

6.2

NYPF Performance Levels
The NYPF agrees to meet the following performance targets in relation to the day to day
administration of the fund:
Letter detailing transfer in
Letter detailing quote of transfer out value
Letter notifying estimated retirement benefit amount
Letter notifying actual retirement benefit amount

Page 84
OFFICIAL

10 days
10 days
10 days
10 days

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

6.3

Support to Employers
The NYPF will support employers in running the LGPS by:





providing a dedicated employer relationship manager
providing information, advice and assistance on the scheme and its administration
distributing regular technical information
arranging North Yorkshire Pension Fund Officers Group (NYPFOG) meetings/training sessions as
required
 delivering adhoc training sessions
 maintaining an up to date and comprehensive website
See the Communications Policy for full details.
6.4

Independent Registered Medical Practitioner
The NYPF will verify that the individuals nominated by the employer (in accordance with paragraph
5.12) as independent registered medical practitioners are appropriately qualified to deal with ill
health retirement cases.

6.5

Services to Members
The NYPF will produce benefit statements for members each year where the employer has submitted
useable and accurate year end financial data.
The NYPF will provide a service to members that meets the requirements of the Occupational
Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013.
In addition, the NYPF will communicate with members through appropriate media and encourage at
all times the use of member self-service facilities. Full details are provided in the Communications
Policy.

6.6

Multiple Language Literature
The process for providing multiple language literature has been established and all documents have
been amended to include reference on how to obtain an alternative version.

6.7

Data Protection Act 2018
Under the Data Protection Act 2018, the NYPF will protect from improper disclosure any information
held about a member. Information held will only be used by the NYPF for the operation of the LGPS.
Any data shared by the NYPF will be adequately protected in line with the requirements of the act.

6.8

Internal Dispute Resolution
The NYPF has identified a ‘specified person’ for any Internal Dispute Resolution (IDRP) application
that is submitted against the Administering Authority.

7.0

Contribution Rates and Administration Costs
The members’ contribution rates are fixed within bands by the regulations. The NYPF will notify
employers of these rates each year.
Employers’ contribution rates are determined by a triennial valuation process. Employers are
required to pay contributions to secure the solvency of their part of the Fund and meet their
liabilities over an agreed term.
The NYPF is valued every three years by the Fund actuary. The actuary balances the assets and
liabilities in respect of each employer and assesses the contribution rate and, where applicable, the
deficit amount for each employer. Employer contribution rates and, where applicable, the deficit
amounts apply for three years. Some admission agreements may determine that reassessment
should take place on a more frequent basis.

Page 85
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

The administrative costs of running the NYPF are charged by NYCC directly to the Fund and the
actuary considers these costs when assessing the employer contribution rate.
If the NYPF undertakes work specifically on behalf of an employer, the employer will be charged
directly for the cost of that work as detailed in the NYPF Employer Charging Policy.

8.0

Communications
In accordance with the Fund’s Communications Policy, the NYPF will work with employers to
communicate relevant information to members.

9.0

Notifying Employers of a Change in Policy
The NYPF maintains a list of key contacts at each employer. The Pensions Administration Strategy
will be shared with the key contacts when any material changes are made.

Page 86
OFFICIAL

V1.34_Aprilugust 2021

11-13 March 2020
21 May 2020
2 July 2020

Page 87

10 September 2020
2 October 2020
12 October 2020
26 November 2020
28 January 2021
12 February 2021
4 March 2021

13 May 2021
18-19 May 2021
3 June 2021
1 July 2021

PLSA Conference
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
PLSA Local Authority
Conference
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
















  













  

























  













  













  














































 














  













  













  













  

















































  

























*City Of York Council Members – Ian Gillies/Chris Steward (Sub) - May 2017 to May 2019 /
Ian Cuthbertson – May 2019 – May 2020 / Christian Vassie – May 2020 - present

OFFICIAL










































































































































C. Vassie

*I Cuthbertson

*C Steward

*I Gillies

D. Mackay

C Lunn

A Thompson

  

A Solloway

Clark J



Portlock D

Weighell J



Unison
(Vacancy)

20 February 2020



Unison
(Vacancy)

21 November 2019

BCPP Conference
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
PLSA Investments
Conference,
Edinburgh
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
Investment Strategy
Workshop
BCPP Conference

Swiers H

10-11 October 2019

Title or Nature of
Course

Mulligan P

Date

M Chambers

Appendix 6





































































This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 7
UPCOMING TRAINING AVAILABLE TO MEMBERS
Course /
Provider Conference
Title

PLSA

Annual
Conference

Date(s)

12 – 14
October
2021

Location

Digital event

Themes / Subjects Covered
The UK’s number one pensions conference, welcoming
1,000 pension professionals to a three‐day online
extravaganza of world‐class keynotes, educational sessions,
topic deep‐dives and digital networking. Explores the latest
ideas, developments and challenges. Provides practical tools
and fresh opinion, and enables networking with new and old
contacts alike.

Page 89

This event will be provided digitally
Registration open now

PLSA

Trustee
Conference

30 Nov – 1
Dec 2021

An exclusive two-day digital event designed for trustees to
help keep up-to-date on the latest changes affecting
pensions. Whether a non-professional or professional
trustee, at the beginning of your trustee career or an
experienced veteran, there will be something to suit your
needs.
Digital event

The PLSA Trustee Conference 2021 will offer sessions
covering a wide variety of ideas, case studies, practical
guidance and interactive participation.
This event will be provided digitally
Registration open late Summer

OFFICIAL

The conference is aimed at elected members and others who
attend pension committees/panels and local pension boards.
Past delegates include elected members, trades union
representatives, member and employer representatives, as
well as a variety officers who attend and support committees.
Issues to be considered:Scheme Advisory Board Update
LGA

LGPS
Governance
Conference

20 - 21 Jan
2022

Marriott Highcliffe Hotel,
Bournemouth
or
online

Divest now?
The scheme member’s view
Valuation 2022 - a panel of experts

Page 90

Cyber security and pension scams
McCloud judgment
Legal update
The Regulators
Investment outlook
PLSA

Local
Authority
Conference

16-18 May
2022

TBC

Details - TBC
Registration - TBC

OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 8

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE TIMETABLE FOR MEETINGS IN 2021/22

Meeting Date

Time & Venue

Event

Page 91

9 September 2021

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Workshop

10 September 2021

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Committee

25 November 2021

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Workshop

26 November 2021

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Committee

3 March 2022

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Workshop

4 March 2022

10am, TBC

Pension Fund Committee

OFFICIAL

Fund Managers
Representative of BCPP
Fund Manager TBC

Representative of BCPP
Fund Manager TBC

Representative of BCPP
Fund Manager TBC

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
10 September 2021
BUDGET / STATISTICS
Report of the Treasurer

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To report on the following:
(a) the 2020/21 budget and the cost of running the Fund

(see section 2)

(b) the 2021/22 budget and the cost of running the Fund

(see section 3)

(c) the 3 year cashflow projection for the Fund

(see section 4)

(d) the pooling costs and savings analysis (2021)

(see section 5)

2.0

2020/21 BUDGET - THE COST OF RUNNING THE FUND

2.1

The budget and outturn position for 2020/21 is presented in Appendix 1. The total
running costs of the Fund in 2020/21 were £31.4m against a budget of £30m. The
overspend of £1.4m is mainly due to an increase against budgeted costs for investment
management fees, which have arisen as they are based on the values of the Fund’s
assets and these have increased well above our original expectations.

2.2

The outturn is in line with the Fund’s Q3 forecast i.e. a forecasted overspend of £1.4m,
which was reported to the Committee in March 2021. There are a number of small
changes for individual budget lines, though these mostly offset each other leaving only
a minor total net change of £20k.

3.0

2021/22 BUDGET - THE COST OF RUNNING THE FUND

3.1

The latest forecast outturn position against the 2021/22 budget is presented in
Appendix 2. It shows an estimated total running cost of £34.1m for the Fund against
a budget of £33.9m, as at the end of June 2021 (Q2). The expected £0.2m overspend
is mainly due to an increase in the operational overhead charges from Border to Coast
as a result of the Fund’s gradual shift of its assets into the pooling arrangement, which
in turn attracts a greater share of the pool’s overhead (from 5.9% to 6.3%), alongside
an increase in the pool’s overall operational costs (from £12m to £14m) this year.

3.2

The current forecast has not included any potential project cost from Border to Coast’s
proposal for additional resource commitment from each Partner Fund to continue
development of its property sub-fund, beyond its design stage. Details of this proposal
can be found in the Asset Allocation report for this Committee meeting.

Page 93
OFFICIAL

4.0

3 YEAR CASHFLOW PROJECTION

4.1

The cash position of the Fund is presented in Appendix 3. The table shows the actual
cashflow in 2020/21 along with the projected cashflows of the Fund over the next 2
years. This cashflow includes the contribution income and benefits payable, the main
inflow and outflow of the Fund, which are the two key determining factors for when
the Fund will turn cashflow negative (deficit).

4.2

The forecast for pension benefits payments is based on revised assumptions (3.5%
annual increase in pensioner numbers and 2.1% annual inflation uplift). These are
indicative and will need to monitored and reviewed closely during 2021/22.

4.3

The forecast for contribution income is based on the assumption that the higher
elective contribution rate for the employer NYCC will continue in 2022/23.

4.4

The overall cashflow position is a surplus for 2020/21, which is also projected for
2021/22 and 2022/23. However due to the volatile nature of some of the income and
expenditure incurred by the Fund, an element of fluctuation is to be expected.

4.5

In this revised version of the cashflow projection, the cashflow position also includes
cashflows arising from the Fund’s investment activities, including bringing the cash
balance to be within 0.5% of the value of the Fund. However please note that this
version does not yet factor in private market investment activities; these will depend
on the final decision on the Listed Alternatives investment by the Committee, after
which more modelling work will be needed to further refine the forecast.

5.0

POOLING COSTS AND SAVINGS

5.1

At the time the Committee decided to join the Border to Coast arrangement, forecasts
of costs and investment fee savings were made as part of a cost benefit analysis.
This analysis also considered less tangible benefits, such as the ability to invest in
parts of the investment market otherwise out of reach, and the potential for
improvements in investment performance. However, the focus of the analysis was
on the forecasts of costs and savings and the estimated payback period.

5.2

Cumulative net costs were forecast to peak at £3.3 million in 2018/19 and a net saving
position was forecast to be reached in 2022/23, with a forecast saving of £1.1 million
by March 2024. However, these 2016 forecasts were made before Border to Coast
Pensions Partnership Limited was created and included a range of assumptions
including the number of investment funds to be launched, the cost of transition
arrangements, and external manager fees.

5.3

Five years later, a thorough review has been carried out. This was led by Border to
Coast, who have the responsibility of reporting collective savings to MHCLG, and
involved officers at each of the eleven partner funds. This review was on an individual
partner fund basis and looked at the actual costs and savings up to the end of March
2021 as well as forecast costs and savings and is attached as Appendix 4.

5.4

The outcome of the 2021 review is surprisingly close to that of the 2016 review, given
the very many assumptions made in 2016. Net cost peaked at £1.9 million in 2019/20.
The payback period is forecast to be reached during the 2022/23 financial year. By

Page 94
OFFICIAL

the end of March 2024, just under 3 years from now, cumulative savings are forecast
to be £4.4 million.
5.5

Within setup and operational costs are one-off costs incurred in establishing Border
to Coast, the cost of company shares, and ongoing governance costs. These costs
are equally shared between the partner funds. The governance costs are central
costs which are not related to the value of investments being managed, such as board
members’ salary costs.

5.6

All other costs relate to investments, so are apportioned pro rata to each partner fund
based on the value of their investments being managed by Border to Coast. These
costs are netted off against the investment management fee savings, to either show
a net saving or a net cost.

5.7

The NYPF fee savings are the result of fee negotiations outside of Border to Coast.
Border to Coast fee savings in public and private markets are from reduced manager
fees as a result of economies of scale.

5.8

Transition costs in relation to the transfer of equities and government bonds have
been included as they represent costs that may not have been incurred were it not
for pooling. Transition costs relating to corporate bonds, multi asset credit and listed
alternatives have not been included as these asset classes are new to the strategy
and would have been incurred anyway.

5.9

Although it is encouraging to see that significant savings are being made, the real test
is whether or not improved investment outcomes net of costs are being achieved. An
assessment will be made in due course. NYPF first invested with Border to Coast in
2019, and a track record of at least three years, preferably longer, will be required
before this assessment should be made.

6.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1

Members to note the contents of the report.

GARY FIELDING
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
NYCC
County Hall
Northallerton
10 September 2021

Page 95
OFFICIAL

Appendix 1

North Yorkshire Pension Fund - 2020/21 Budget - Cost of
Running the Pension Fund
Budget
2020/21
£k
EXPENDITURE
Admin Expenses
Finance and Central
Services
Provision of Pensioner
Payroll (ESS)
Pensions Administration
Team
Pension Data
Reconciliation
McCloud
Other Admin Expenses
Oversight and
Governance
Actuarial Fees
Custodian &
Performance
Monitoring Fees
Consultants Fees
Pooling Project Costs
Pooling Operational
Charge
Other O & G Expenses
Investment Fees
Investment
Management
Base Fee invoiced
Performance Fees
invoiced
Investment Fees
deducted from Fund

TOTAL

Outturn
2020/21
£k

Variance
£k

430

415

(15)

140

138

(2)

1,090

1,059

(31)

50
0
270
1,980

60
0
244
1,916

10
0
(26)
(64)

40

21

(19)

50
290
70

70
273
143

20
(17)
73

600
100
1,150

711
63
1,281

111
(37)
131

2,200

2,812

612

2,000

2,406

406

22,760
26,960

23,080
28,298

320
1,338

30,090

31,495

1,405

Page 96
OFFICIAL

Appendix 2

North Yorkshire Pension Fund - 2021/22 Budget - Cost of
Running the Pension Fund
Budget
2021/22
£k
EXPENDITURE
Admin Expenses
Finance and Central
Services
Provision of Pensioner
Payroll (ESS)
Pensions Administration
Team
McCloud
Other Admin Expenses
Oversight and
Governance
Actuarial Fees
Custodian &
Performance
Monitoring Fees
Consultants Fees
Pooling Project Costs
Pooling Operational
Charge
Other O & G Expenses
Investment Fees
Investment
Management
Base Fee invoiced
Performance Fees
invoiced
Investment Fees
deducted from Fund

TOTAL

Forecast
2021/22
£k

Variance
£k

440

440

-

90

90

-

1,120
80
510
2,240

1,20
510
2,160

(80)
(80)

20

40

20

50
200
26

50
290
26

90
-

750
100
1,146

877
100
1,383

127
237

2,900

2,900

-

2,820

2,820

-

24,800
30,520

24,800
30,520

-

33,906

34,063

157

Page 97
OFFICIAL

Appendix 3

North Yorkshire Pension Fund Cashflow Forecast
Actual
Cashflow
2020/2021
£k

Forecast
Cashflow
2021/2022
£k

Forecast
Cashflow
2022/2023
£k

(95,937)
(25,625)
(121,562)

(101,310)
(27,230)
(128,540)

(106,980)
(28,750)
(135,730)

(7,992)
(387)
(8,379)

(8,000)
(380)
(8,380)

(8,000)
(380)
(8,380)

(1,916)
(1,281)
(3,197)

(2,160)
(1,383)
(3,543)

(2,220)
(1,420)
(3,640)

(133,138)

(140,463)

(147,750)

SCHEME RECEIPTS
Employer and Employee Contributions
Transfers in (from other schemes)

133,082
10,575

137,070
8,000

141,180
8,000

TOTAL RECEIPTS

143,657

145,070

149,180

10,519

4,607

1,430

(5,219)
4,786

(4,800)
3,000

(4,300)
2,000

(37,135)

(90,000)

-

(37,568)

(91,800)

(2,300)

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) AFTER INVESTMENT

(27,049)

(87,193)

(870)

CASH BALANCE B/F
CASH BALANCE C/F

138,897
111,848

111,848
24,655

24,655
23,785

SCHEME PAYMENTS
Benefits
Pensions
Lump Sums
Payments to and on account of leavers
Transfers out
Refunds to leavers
Operational Expenses
Admin Expenses
Oversight and Governance

TOTAL PAYMENTS

SCHEME SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Fees Invoiced Paid to Fund Managers
Investment Income from Fund Managers
Withdrawals and (Deposits) with Fund
Managers
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT

Page 98
OFFICIAL

Appendix 4

Pooling Costs & Savings - North Yorkshire
2016/17
Actual
£m

Page 99

Company creation
Company shares
Governance
Development/project costs
Total Set up and Operating Costs

0.03
0.03

2017/18
Actual
£m

2018/19
Actual
£m

0.15
0.15

0.24
0.83
0.17
0.20
1.44

Transition Costs

2019/20
Actual
£m

2021/22
Forecast
£m

2022/23
Forecast
£m

2023/24
Forecast
£m

0.19
0.36
0.55

0.35
0.23
0.26
0.84

0.42
1.18
0.60
0.81
3.02

0.30
0.41
0.70

0.30
0.34
0.64

0.30
0.30

0.90

0.01

0.91

0.42

-

-

0.73
0.06
0.47
1.25

1.90
(0.07)
0.63
2.46

0.77
0.68
0.79
2.24

0.51
1.29
0.95
2.75

0.51
1.47
0.95
2.93

0.40
(1.47)

(1.47)
(1.47)

1.11
(0.36)

2.11
1.76

2.64
4.39

NYPF fee savings due to pooling
Border to Coast private markets fee savings
Border to Coast public markets fee savings
Total Fee Savings

0.14

0.34

0.36

0.14

0.34

0.36

0.34
(0.12)
0.16
0.38

Net Position
Cumulative Net Position

0.11
0.11

0.18
0.29

(1.08)
(0.79)

(1.07)
(1.87)

OFFICIAL

2020/21
Actual
£m

Cumulative
to 2020/21
Actual
£m

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 101

Quarterly Funding &
Investment Report
End June 2021

Agenda Item 10

Prepared for: North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Prepared by: Aon
Date: 27 August 2021

For professional clients only

Table of Contents
At a glance…

3

Funding

6

10

Fund performance

16

Market outlook and background

21

Aon’s latest thinking

25

Manager review

29

Further information

32

Page 102

Asset allocation

OFFICIAL

Page 103

At a glance…
A high level summary of your investments and funding

OFFICIAL

At a glance…

4

Funding
Over the quarter, the funding level has improved by c.6%, and the surplus has
increased by c.£220m, primarily due to higher returns on assets relative to the
expectation. The funding level remains significantly above the funding level at
the 2019 valuation.

Asset Allocation and Implementation

Key actions
1.

Page 104

A number of short/medium term changes to the asset allocation have been
considered by the Committee in light of the recently agreed long-term investment
strategy which will take some time to implement.
Performance
Total Fund performance is strong and ahead of composite benchmark over the
quarter, 1 year and 3 year periods to 30 June 2021.

Market Background and Investment Outlook
Improving economic data over the quarter in most countries and global vaccination roll-outs
provided continued optimism over economic recovery.
Inflation rates have moved higher in the major economies. Current inflation levels are being
driven by rising production costs across supply chains. Importantly, economic forecasters are
near-unanimous that these are temporary supply-demand imbalances and that inflation will fall
back in 2022.

Bonds are, as ever, still big news. After a strong run up early in the year, yields have fallen
steadily, badly confounding consensus views.
The equity risk premium versus bonds is supportive for equities, but the problem is unrealistic
expectations on the economy and interest rates. Markets have moved up a long way and
though peril is not imminent, equity markets cannot be easily trusted with new money today.
OFFICIAL

The Committee to
consider strategic
allocation and rebalancing
ranges to Baillie Gifford
LTGG, BCPP Global
Alpha and BCPP UK
equities – see separate
report.

5

Key Stats

£4,783m

Funding level

▲

P1

This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
Assets increased by £1,208m since
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.
last valuation

▲

P2

130%

Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
Funding increased by 16% since
‘Shapes & Callouts’.
2019 valuation

114% at 2019 valuation

Current Assets Expected Return
(10 year p.a.)

Long-term Strategy Expected Return
(10 year p.a.)

+5.3%

+5.6%

Page 105

£3,575m at 2019 valuation

▼

P4

The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion positions too. Add
0.3% decrease since 2019
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.
Valuation

-

P5

If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
No change since 2019 Valuation
snap your dashboard tiles around.
5.6% at 2019 valuation

Current Assets Value at Risk (1 Year
1 in 20)

Long-term Strategy Assets Value at
Risk (1 Year 1 in 20)

£1,056m

£966m

Some tiles, especially chart ones, will
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
menu) before you can edit the content.

+14.3% pa ▲

P8

For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.

‘Small’ (1x1) tiles are shown and tagged
with their grid position (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
so you can insert them with precision.

Discount rate

4.0%

▼
P6

Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with

0.2%
decrease tiles.
since There
2019 are white ‘Blank’
dashboard
Valuation
tiles if you need them.

Estimated Total Employer cost

14.0%

P9

Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
Estimated Total Employer cost
your new chart.
decreased by 4.6% since 2019 valuation
18.6% at 2019 valuation

OFFICIAL

P3

4.2% at 2019 valuation

5.6 % at 2019 valuation

P7

Return on Assets Since 2019
Valuation

▲

Assets

Page 106

Funding
A review of your funding position and contributions

OFFICIAL

Funding position – ongoing funding target
Funding level

Comments

Surplus

130.4%

▲

P1

This slide is for building dashboards
the DashBuilder
tiles on Templafy.
atusing
end June
2021
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.
Up from 124.7% at end March 2021 and
remains up from 114.4% at 31 March 2019

7

£1,115.9m ▲
P2

Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
‘Shapes
& Callouts’.
Up
from £893.4m
at end March 2021 and
at end June 2021

The funding level has improved, and the surplus
has increased, primarily due to higher returns on
assets
relative
the are
expectation.
‘Small’
(1x1)totiles
shown and tagged

P3

with their grid position (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
so you can insert them with precision.

remains up from £449.8m at 31 March 2019

Page 107

Change to funding level since valuation at 31 March 2019

P4
The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion positions too. Add
130%
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.

P5

P6

If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
snap your dashboard tiles around.

Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with
dashboard tiles. There are white ‘Blank’
tiles if you need them.

P8

P9

120%

P7

110%

Some tiles, especially chart ones, will
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
menu) before you can edit the content.
100%
31 Mar 2019

30 Jun 2019

30 Sep 2019

For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.
31 Dec 2019

31 Mar 2020

30 Jun 2020

OFFICIAL

30 Sep 2020

Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart.
31 Dec 2020

31 Mar 2021

30 Jun 2021

Analysis – ongoing funding target

8

Reason for change since 31 March 2019 – Asset Attribution
Comments
£6,000M

P1

This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

£5,000M

P2
Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
(£236.1M)
‘Shapes & Callouts’.

£4,000M

P3

Since the valuation the
surplus has increased by
‘Small’ (1x1) tiles are
shown and tagged
£666.1M. This has been
with their grid position
(e.g. driven
P1, P2,
primarily
by etc)
an
so you can insert them
with
precision.
increase in asset values.

£800.3M
£293.8M

£349.5M

Page 108

£3,000M

£2,000M

£3,575.2M
at 31 Mar 2019

Interest

P4

Contributions

Out-performance Benefit Payments

£4,782.7M

P5
at 30 Jun 2021

The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
If you change your mind, just insert new
show the insertion positions too. Add
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
Reason
for ifchange
since
Attribution
Grey Lines
you don’t
want 31
lineMarch
gaps. 2019 – Liability
snap your
dashboard tiles around.

P6
Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with
dashboard tiles. There are white ‘Blank’
tiles if you need them.

£6,000M

£5,000M

P7

£4,000M

Some tiles, especially chart ones, will
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
£3,000M
£305.7M
menu) before you can edit the content.
£2,000M

£3,125.4M
at 31 Mar 2019

Interest

P8
£180.2M
For charts,
click on the (ungrouped)
(£236.1M)
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.

£291.6M

Accruals

Change in
assumptions

Benefit Payments

OFFICIAL

P9
Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart.

£3,666.8M
at 30 Jun 2021

Aggregate Employer contributions – ongoing
funding target

▲

14.0%

P1

This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

22.3%

P2

Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
‘Shapes & Callouts’.

at end June 2021

Down from 16.4% at end March 2021 and
down from 18.6% at 31 March 2019.

Same as 22.3% at end March 2021 but up
from 20.2% 31 March 2019

Page 109

at end June 2021

P4
The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion positions too. Add
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.

Comments

Employer cost of accrual

▲
▼

Total employer contribution rate

9

The cost of accrual is unchanged since the last
quarter but is higher than at the 2019 valuation
due to the fall in net discount rate.

P3

‘Small’ (1x1) tiles are shown and tagged
with their
(e.g.
P1, P2, etc)
However,
thegrid
totalposition
aggregate
employer
so you can
insert
them
withthe
precision.
contribution
rate
remains
below
2019

valuation figure due to the improvement in the
funding level. This has reduced further since the
last quarter due to a further improvement in
funding level.

P5

P6

If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
snap your dashboard tiles around.

Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with
dashboard tiles. There are white ‘Blank’
tiles if you need them.

Notes
Cost of accrual includes allowance for McCloud/cost management costs in line
with the overall allowance in the 2019 valuation of 0.9% of pay.

The total employer contribution rate quoted above is based on the average
total employer contribution ratesP7
across the Fund. Individual employer
P8
contributions
can bechart
veryones,
different
figure
the Fund
Some tiles, especially
will to the average
For charts,
clickacross
on the (ungrouped)
shown
depending
on their own characteristics,
membership
and
need toabove
be Ungrouped
(see ‘Arrange’
PPT chart placeholder.
Use profile
the ‘Resize
funding
target.
employer contributions
will button
next be
reviewed
at
menu) before
youThe
canindividual
edit the content.
for PowerPoint’
in Chart
Control.
the triennial valuation at 31 March 2022.

OFFICIAL

P9
Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart.

Page 110

Asset allocation
A review of your strategic asset allocation

OFFICIAL

Asset allocation – Q2 2021

11

30 June 2021
Asset Group

Manager
Valuation (£m)

Current allocation

Long-term
strategy

Difference

Rebalancing
Range

2,887.1

60.4%

50.0%

+10.4%

TBC

179.7

3.8%

TBC

BCPP Global Equity

1,294.0

27.1%

TBC

Baillie Gifford LTGG

868.0

18.1%

TBC

Dodge & Cox

281.1

5.8%

-

Veritas

261.9

5.5%

-

Fidelity

2.4

0.1%

-

339.5

7.1%

0.0%

+7.1%

TBC

Newton Real Return

174.5

3.6%

Leadenhall Remote Risk

58.4

1.2%

Leadenhall Diversified

55.3

1.2%

Leadenhall Nat Cat

51.3

1.1%

291.2

6.1%

7.5%

-1.4%

TBC

Hermes

36.0

0.8%

L&G

74.5

1.6%

Threadneedle

180.7

3.8%

Equities
BCPP UK equity

Page 111

Absolute Return

Property

Source: BNYM, Aon. Note: Numbers may not sum due to rounding.

OFFICIAL

Possible
action

Asset allocation – Q2 2021 (cont’d)

12

30 June 2021
Asset Group

Manager
Valuation (£m)

Current allocation

Long-term
strategy

Difference

Rebalancing
Range

14.5

0.3%

10.0%

-9.7%

TBC

BCPP Infrastructure 1A

10.5

0.2%

BCPP Infrastructure 1B

4.0

0.1%

94.0

2.0%

5.0%

-3.0%

TBC

BCPP Private Credit

9.6

0.2%

Arcmont

42.2

0.9%

Pemira

42.1

0.9%

198.3

4.1%

5.0%

-0.9%

TBC

198.3

4.1%

197.5

4.1%

7.5%

-3.4%

TBC

197.5

4.1%

682.0

14.3%

15.0%

-0.7%

TBC

M&G

356.4

7.5%

LGIM Equity Protection
(inc collateral)

177.3

3.7%

BCPP Index Linked Bonds

148.3

3.1%

Infrastructure

Private Credit

Page 112

Non-Investment
Grade Credit
PIMCO
Investment
Grade Credit
BCPP Investment Grade
Credit
Gilts

Source: BNYM, Aon. Note: Numbers may not sum due to rounding.

OFFICIAL

Possible
action

Asset allocation – Q2 2021 (cont’d)

13

30 June 2021
Asset Group

Manager
Valuation (£m)

Current allocation

Long-term
strategy

Difference

Rebalancing
Range

78.7

1.6%

0.0%

+1.6%

TBC

Internal Cash

28.4

0.6%

Treasury Cash

50.3

1.1%

4,782.7

100.0%

Cash

Total
Source: BNYM, Aon. Note: Numbers may not sum due to rounding.

Page 113
OFFICIAL

100.0%

Possible
action

Strategy implementation update
A number of changes to asset allocation were considered by the Committee in light of the recently agreed investment
strategy as part of a separate report at the June Pension Fund Committee meeting.
Decisions taken:

 An investment in Border to Coast’s listed alternatives fund agreed in principle
 Terminate the investment with Veritas:

Page 114

‒ Reinvest the proceeds in Border to Coast’s corporate bond fund up to the target weighting of 7.5%
‒ Reinvest the balance of proceeds into PIMCO’s diversified income fund

 Allow the remaining equity protection to expire in July 2021
 Terminate the conditional currency hedging arrangement with LGIM
 Agreement given to invest cash in excess of 0.5% of the value of the Fund into PIMCO’s diversified income fund
 The mandate with M&G be terminated and the proceeds reinvested into Border to Coast’s Index Linked Bonds fund
 The proposed strategic benchmark allocations for the equity managers be noted, with a decision to be made once
further consideration of the style balance has be undertaken.

OFFICIAL

14

15

Transitions and cashflows
The following rebalancing activities took place over the quarter:

 £80m was invested in the Border to Coast’s corporate bond fund.
 Border to Coast made eight Infrastructure capital calls in the quarter totalling £3.0m and six Private Credit capital
calls totalling £4.4m.

 £30m was disinvested from Veritas.
 £50m was disinvested from Treasury Cash fund along from the cash proceeds from Veritas to cover the new Border
to Coast investment and capital calls made above in the quarter.

Page 115
OFFICIAL

Page 116

Fund performance
A review of your investment performance

OFFICIAL

Total Fund performance – Snapshot

17

Fund performance & benchmark

Quarterly (relative)

P1

P2

This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
16.4
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
‘Shapes & Callouts’.
10.3

11.1

7.3

6.0

+1.5%

▲

P3

‘Small’ (1x1) tiles are shown and tagged
with their grid position (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
The Fund outperformed benchmark
so you can insert them with precision.
returning 6.0% vs 4.5% over the
quarter.

4.5

Page 117

Q2 2021

1 Yr

P4Assets
The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion
positions too. Add
Relative
performance
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.

3 year (relative)

3 Yr (p.a.)

P5

Benchmark

If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
snap your dashboard tiles around.

+3.8%

▲

P6

Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with
dashboard tiles. There are white ‘Blank’
Over 3 years the Fund has
tiles if you need them.
outperformed the benchmark
returning 11.1% vs 7.3%.

Relative Return (%)
6.1

Comments
3.8

P7
Some tiles,1.5
especially chart ones, will
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
menu) before you can edit the content.
Q2 2021

P8

For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.
1 Yr

3 Yr (p.a.)

Source: BNYM, Aon

OFFICIAL

P9

Total Fund performance is ahead of composite
benchmark over the quarter, 1 year and 3 year
Use Chart
Control
‘Copy’ and Forward
periods
to 30 June
2021.

Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart.

Manager performance – Quarter Snapshot
Relative performance

Absolute performance
Baillie Gifford LTGG
Dodge & Cox

Baillie Gifford LTGG

14.1

P1

7.1
6.7

Page 118

Permira
Need bar charts

4.4

M&G

4.4

M&G

Threadneedle

4.3

Threadneedle

BCPP UK Equity

3.9

BCPP UK Equity

3.9

Hermes

3.0
2.8
2.4

BCPP Credit Fund

2.0

Arcmont

1.7

Leadenhall Remote Risk

0.8

Leadenhall Diversified

0.2

Leadenhall Nat Cat

P70.1

BCPP Private Credit
-1.9
Some tiles,
especially chart ones,
will
-7.5‘Arrange’
Infrastructure
1A
needBCPP
to be
Ungrouped
(see
menu)
before
you can edit-8.0
the content.
LGIM Equity
Protection
(Inc. collateral)

Need bar charts

0.1

Permira

2.9
-0.1
0.5
-1.7

P5

0.1

L&G
If you change your mind, just insert new
PIMCO
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’
to
snap your dashboard tiles Newton
around.
Real Return
BCPP Credit Fund

0.3

Arcmont

0.2
0.8

Leadenhall Diversified

0.2

Leadenhall Nat Cat

0.1

P8

BCPP Private Credit

-2.9

Source: BNYM, Managers, Aon

OFFICIAL

P9

Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart. -

For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
BCPP Infrastructure 1A
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
LGIM Equity Protection (Inc. collateral)
for PowerPoint’
button in Chart Control.
BCPP Infrastructure 1B

P6

-0.8
Be sure to cover
all the grey boxes with
-0.3 There are white ‘Blank’
dashboard tiles.
tiles if you need them.2.4

Leadenhall Remote Risk

BCPP Infrastructure 1B -11.2

P3

‘Small’ (1x1) -0.3
tiles are shown and tagged
with their grid-0.7position (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
so you can insert them with precision.

BCPP Index Linked Gilts Fund

4.8

L&G tiles (e.g. 2x3)
The previews for ‘big’
show the insertion
positions too. Add
PIMCO
Grey Lines
if you don’t want line gaps.
Newton Real Return

0.4

Insert dashboard-style tilesBCPP
from
a big
Global
Equity
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
Veritas
‘Shapes & Callouts’.

BCPP Index Linked Gilts Fund

P4

6.8

P2
Dodge & Cox

7.8

This slide
isGlobal
for building
dashboards
BCPP
Equity
using the DashBuilder
tiles
on Templafy.
Veritas
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

Hermes

18

-10.4

-14.1

Manager performance – Longer term
1 Year (%)

19

3 Years (% p.a.)

Since inception

Perf

B'mark

Rel

Perf

B'mark

Rel

Perf

B'mark

Rel

31.0

21.5

+9.5

-

-

-

6.8

4.5

+2.3

BCPP Global Equity

30.8

25.1

+5.7

-

-

-

16.7

17.0

-0.3

Baillie Gifford LTGG

45.4

25.0

+20.4

35.1

13.3

+21.6

19.5

10.1

+9.4

Dodge & Cox

37.5

25.1

+12.4

10.5

13.4

-2.9

10.0

12.3

-2.3

18.6

25.1

-6.5

13.0

13.4

-0.4

12.3

12.3

0.0

13.2

0.1

+13.1

7.7

0.4

+7.3

4.1

0.4

+3.7

Leadenhall Remote Risk

5.2

0.0

+5.2

3.3

0.4

+2.9

3.2

0.4

+2.8

Leadenhall Diversified

2.0

0.0

+2.0

0.9

0.4

+0.5

1.0

0.4

+0.6

Leadenhall Nat Cat

-4.4

0.0

-4.4

-2.4

0.4

-2.8

-2.1

0.4

-2.5

Hermes

7.6

8.5

-0.9

3.8

3.3

+0.5

7.5

5.6

+1.9

L&G

7.3

8.5

-1.2

2.5

3.0

-0.5

6.5

5.5

+1.0

Threadneedle

8.3

8.5

-0.2

2.8

3.0

-0.2

7.7

5.4

+2.3

Equity
UK Equity
BCPP UK Equity

Global Equity

Page 119

Veritas
Absolute Return
Diversified Growth
Newton Real Return
Insurance-Linked

Property

Source: BNYM, Managers, Aon

OFFICIAL

Manager performance – Longer term (cont’d)
1 Year (%)

20

3 Years (% p.a.)

Since inception

Perf

B'mark

Rel

Perf

B'mark

Rel

Perf

B'mark

Rel

BCPP Private Credit

-3.3

4.1

-7.4

--

-

-

-7.0

4.1

-11.1

Arcmont

6.7

6.0

+0.7

5.8

6.0

-0.2

6.8

6.0

+0.8

Permira

11.6

6.0

+5.6

6.4

6.0

+0.4

8.4

6.0

+2.4

-

-

-

-

-

-

2.2

0.2

+2.0

-

-

-

-

-

-

4.2

3.6

+0.6

-5.6

-6.3

+0.7

6.0

5.9

+0.1

8.5

8.0

+0.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.6

-2.1

+2.7

16.4

10.3

+6.1

11.1

7.3

+3.8

8.4

8.1

+0.3

Illiquid credit

Investment grade credit
BCPP Investment Grade Credit

Page 120

Non-investment grade credit

PIMCO
Gilts
M&G
BCPP Index Linked Bonds
Total
Source: BNYM, Managers, Aon

OFFICIAL

Page 121

Market outlook and
background
Aon’s views on the market outlook and snapshot of
investment markets and key economic data

OFFICIAL

Market – Background Q2 2021

22

Page 122

Source: FactSet, MSCI (Equities, Property), iBoxx (Corporate Bonds), FTSE (Gilts)

Equities
Global equities continued to perform well over
the quarter. The MSCI AC World index posted a
7.2% return in local terms and a 7.4% return in
sterling terms.
US equities performed the best, returning 8.9%
over the quarter in local currency terms. The
labour market continued to improve, with the US
unemployment rate falling to 5.8% in May. This
was the first time the US unemployment rate has
fallen below 6% since the start of the pandemic.
Meanwhile, Core personal consumption
expenditure (PCE), the Fed's preferred inflation
measure, continued to break records as it
recorded the largest year-on-year jump in three
decades, with the index rising 3.4% in May.

Bonds

Gilts

UK investment grade credit spreads continued to
contract as credit markets performed well, the
return on the iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Index rose
by 1.7% over Q2, driven by falling government
bond yields.

Bond yields fell over the quarter, most markedly in
the US, as the US Federal Reserve (Fed) held its
target range for interest rates unchanged at 00.25% but brought forward projections for rate
rises to 2023. The Bank of England unanimously
kept its base rate unchanged at 0.1% amid fears of
rising inflation. The Monetary Policy Committee
also upgraded both UK inflation and growth
forecasts.
The FTSE All Stocks Gilts Index and the FTSE All
Stocks Index-Linked Gilts Index returned 1.7% and
3.6%, respectively, as gilt yields followed US
treasury yields lower.

OFFICIAL

Market – Background 12 month

23

Page 123

Source: FactSet, MSCI (Equities, Property), iBoxx (Corporate Bonds), FTSE (Gilts)

Equities

Bonds

Gilts

US equities posted the strongest return over the
year, helped by their high exposure to large
technology companies. The US Senate approved
a $1.9tn US economic relief package soon after
Democrat Joe Biden was sworn in as US
President in January 2021, which fed market
expectations of stronger US growth and inflation.

Credit markets benefited from risk-on investor
sentiment over the year, with credit spreads
continuing to contract to ever tighter levels. UK
investment-grade credit spreads (the difference
between corporate and government bond yields),
based on the iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt Index, fell
by 53bps to 101bps.

The pandemic, Brexit uncertainty and increased
expectations of a BOE rate cut to negative levels caused
UK gilt yields to fall to extreme lows in summer 2020.
However, yields started to edge up across maturities in
Q3 as global risk sentiment improved and inflation
expectations gathered pace. In Q1 2021, gilt yields rose
sharply, driven by optimism in the light of several
vaccine discoveries, further fuelled by the US stimulus
package. In Q2 2021, UK nominal government bond
yields fell across most maturities as variant virus risks,
and worries over global fiscal and monetary stimulus
peaking surfaced.

UK equity gains were limited in the second half of
2020 as the UK economy struggled with a high
virus death rate and Brexit worries. However,
agreement on a Brexit deal with the EU and an
impressive vaccination program resulted in better
returns over the first half of 2021.
OFFICIAL

24

Investment Outlook
 Bonds are, as ever, still big news. After a strong run up early in the year, yields have fallen steadily, badly confounding
consensus views.

 The Covid-19 delta variant’s high transmissibility puts full economic reopening in jeopardy. Effective vaccines make
2020- style shutdowns less likely but consumer hesitation and business disruption are risks.

 The Bank of England will find it very difficult to tighten its monetary stance any time soon. The risks of premature
tightening are too high.

Page 124

 Our view that the run-up in gilt yields early this year would not be sustained has been borne out. Yield curves have
retreated but show an anticipation of some modest rises in yields over the next few years.

 We are downgrading high yield credit, after a blistering performance and valuations at multi-decade highs. Lowest rated
issues have done best. This trend is unlikely to continue ahead even though a big shake-down may be avoided.
Investment grade credit is on better ground.

 We address the often-asked ESG performance reward question. It is more difficult than it looks to have a ‘quantitative’
answer, but we argue that this does not negate the ESG investing case.

 The equity risk premium versus bonds is supportive for equities, but the problem is unrealistic expectations on the
economy and interest rates. Markets have moved up a long way and though peril is not imminent, equity markets
cannot be easily trusted with new money today.

 Diversifiers are hardly going to be the rage after a twelve year bull market, but this is exactly what makes this a good
time to appraise portfolio buffers. We take a subset of hedge fund strategies as an example of how diversification
works, quietly doing what they are supposed to.

OFFICIAL

Page 125

Aon’s latest thinking
Our latest investment ideas for you

OFFICIAL

Diversifying equity portfolios…
… are markets wanting too much?

Page 126

Our conviction in equities as a driver of returns remains.
However, passive, market cap equity investments currently
have a high concentration of stocks, with just 5 stocks
making up around 14% of the MSCI World Index. Such high
levels of concentration combined with construction
methodology based on historical performance can lead to
enhanced risks in a changing investment environment.
Many clients have benefitted from strong performance of
technology stocks such as Apple and Amazon, among
others, but now is a good time to re-assess the risks that
large allocations to such companies pose to your
investment strategy.

OFFICIAL

26

The dilemma for the Bank of England…
… Is there an inflation problem?

Page 127

Inflation rates have moved higher in the major economies;
suspicions lurk that governments will try to inflate their way
out of huge deficits and that central banks will let them.
Current inflation levels are being driven by rising production
costs across supply chains, particularly in manufacturing
industries, because the retooling of the global economy is
rapid following last year’s depressed output levels.
Importantly, economic forecasters are near-unanimous that
these are temporary supply-demand imbalances and that
inflation will fall back in 2022.

There is an anomaly in the UK over inflation pricing given
the RPI reform and this provides more support for some
underweighting on inflation hedging given currently high
hedging costs, but any such action requires careful
management. We do not think that the risk of much higher
inflation beyond the near-term is large enough to merit large
portfolio shifts.

OFFICIAL

27

Green gilts…

28

… what’s happening?

Page 128

As part of a raft of climate initiatives to help achieve net
zero emissions by 2050, in the Spring Budget the
government confirmed that the summer of 2021 would see
the UK issue its first green gilt, with a further issuance
planned for later in the year. Green gilts are similar
economically to gilts, with the proceeds being used to
achieve projects with positive environmental objectives.
Since 2019, UK pension scheme trustees have had to
demonstrate how they consider environmental, social and
governance factors in their decision making. Trustees may
wish to consider whether this extends to investing in green
gilts within their LDI portfolio by having a strategic
allocation.

“Green gilts”
These are similar economically to gilts but with the proceeds being explicitly used to achieve projects with a
positive environmental objective, such as renewable energy, green buildings, clean transportation, water
management, biodiversity conservation, sustainable land use and climate change.
OFFICIAL

Page 129

Manager review
Aon ratings and understanding manager performance

OFFICIAL

30

Baillie Gifford - LTGG
Scheme performance & benchmark

Buy

P145.4

P2

This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

Insert dashboard-style
tiles from a big
35.1
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
‘Shapes & Callouts’.
25.0

14.1

Page 130

7.3

Q2 2021

P4

Assets

The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion
positions too. Add
Performance
comments
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.

Long Term Global Growth outperformed in Q2
2021, leaving the strategy broadly in line with its
benchmark year to date. After the exceptional
performance in 2020, the value / cyclicals rally
and fears of resurgent inflation took their toll on
LTGG's portfolio of growth stocks in Q1 but
latterly, this rally stalled and growth-orientated
businesses returned to favour.

P7

Some tiles, especially chart ones, will

The main positive performance contributors over
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
the period included Moderna and BioNTech
menu) before
canvaccine
edit thesales)
content.
(momentum
fromyou
COVID
and
NVIDIA (benefiting from solid demand for its
graphics processing in gaming, artificial
intelligence, self-driving cars, genomics etc.)

1 Yr

3 Yr (p.a.)

Benchmark

P5

If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. Or use the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
snap your dashboard tiles around.
Detractors from performance centred on the
continuation of Chinese government intervention
in specific markets. The main negative impact
was on TAL Education, but the share prices of
Pinduoduo (online food shopping) and Tencent
(broad online services platform) were also
notably weak. The strategy is overweight to
China. While the negative sentiment has
continued into Q3, the LTGG team believes it
For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
can shape its long term exposure to avoid those
PPT chart
Use the ‘Resize
businesses
most placeholder.
vulnerable to government
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.
intervention.

P8

New and notable
There is no change to our Buy recommendation.

Source: BNY Mellon, data for periods longer than 12 months are annualised.

OFFICIAL

‘Small’ (1x1) tiles are shown and tagged
with their grid position (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
Ratings
detail
so you can insert them with precision.
ODD:
Business:
Staff:
Process:

13.3

P3

Reviewed: August 2021

A1 pass





Risk:
Perf:
Terms:
ESG:




Integrated

Key info

P6

Be sure to cover all the grey boxes with
dashboard tiles. There are white ‘Blank’
Vehicle:
Gifford
Long Term Global
tiles if Baillie
you need
them.
Appointed: 29 September 2006
Growth (+3% over 5-10yrs)

Mandate: Global Unconstrained Equities
Benchmark: FTSE All World Index from 31
March 2008
Target: To outperform the benchmark by 3%
p.a. over rolling three-year periods.

P9

Fee scale: Base fee of 0.30% plus performance
Chart
Control ‘Copy’more
andthan
Forward
feeUse
of 8%
on outperformance
the
Pitch “Paste
neatly insert
benchmark
(up to&aReplace”
maximum to
outperformance
of your
5%) for
thechart.
period since inception.
new

31

LGIM Equity Protection

P1
This slide is for building dashboards
using the DashBuilder tiles on Templafy.
This 3x3 grid forms the basic layout.

P2
Insert dashboard-style tiles from a big
selection in the DashBuilder folder in
‘Shapes & Callouts’.

Page 131

P4
The previews for ‘big’ tiles (e.g. 2x3)
show the insertion positions too. Add
Grey Lines if you don’t want line gaps.

P5
If you change your mind, just insert new
tiles. and
Or use
the Forward Pitch ‘Grid’ to
New
notable
snap your dashboard tiles around.
In Q1 2021 Baillie Gifford announced that
James Anderson will be retiring as a Partner of
the firm in April 2022. As previously announced
Mark Urquhart, who co-founded the LTGG
strategy with Mr. Anderson in 2003/04, became
head of the team from June 2020.

P7
Some tiles, especially chart ones, will
need to be Ungrouped (see ‘Arrange’
menu) before you can edit the content.

Source: LGIM

P8
For charts, click on the (ungrouped)
PPT chart placeholder. Use the ‘Resize
for PowerPoint’ button in Chart Control.

OFFICIAL

P3
Key info
‘Small’
(1x1) tiles are shown and tagged
with
their
Expiry: 1grid
Julyposition
2021 (e.g. P1, P2, etc)
so you can insert them with precision.

Current status: Upper Review Trigger was
triggered based off of the 9 November 2020
closing index level (1,819.84).
The Fund paid for the downside protection by
giving up returns beyond a certain level.
Specifically, this is at a level where markets are
c.8% above from where we put the protection on
in 2020.

P6

BeThe
sure
to cover
allare
theperforming
grey boxes
with
equity
options
in line
with
dashboard
tiles.
are the
white
‘Blank’
expectations.
In There
aggregate,
value
of the
equity
options
tiles
if you
needdecreased
them. as equity markets
continued to rise over the quarter.
Action: The Committee let the options expire on
1 July 2021.

P9
Use Chart Control ‘Copy’ and Forward
Pitch “Paste & Replace” to neatly insert
your new chart.

Page 132

Further information
Key reference information about your scheme

OFFICIAL

Reference – Manager fees

33

Manger

Fees

BCPP – UK Equity

0.31% on the first £1.2bn.

BCPP – Global Equity

0.34% (assuming AUM of £5bn)

Baillie Gifford – LTGG

Base fee of 0.30% plus performance fee of 8% on outperformance more
than the benchmark (up to a maximum outperformance of 5%) for the period
since inception

Dodge & Cox – Global Equity

0.6% for all assets

Page 133

Veritas – Global Equity

0.51% for all assets

Newton – Real Return Fund

0.65% p.a.

Hermes – Property Unit Trust

Base Fee of 0.4% of NAV Performance fee of 17.5%, calculated on
outperformance on a 3-year annualised basis, capped at 0.4% p.a. Overall
fee is capped at 0.8% p.a.

Legal & General – Managed Property Fund

First £2.5m 0.70%; Next £2.5m 0.65%; Thereafter 0.60%

Threadneedle – Property Fund

Base Fee of 0.75% of NAV

Leadenhall – Insurance Linked Securities

Remote: Base fee of 0.4%; Diversified: Base fee of 1%; Nat Cat: Base fees
of 0.9% p.a. and 10% performance fee over a hurdle of 1-month UK
Treasury Bill rate +2%

M&G – Liability Matching Bonds

First £25m 0.25%; Next £25m 0.20%; Next £200m 0.15%; Thereafter 0.13%

OFFICIAL

Reference – Manager fees

34

Fees

Arcmont – Private Debt

1.0% for < EUR 100m

Permira – Private Debt

0.9% for <EUR 50m

PIMCO – Diversified Income

Standard fee 0.69% with a 0.27% rebate. Net 0.42% p.a.

BCPP – Investment Grade Credit

0.09% p.a. (estimated by BCPP)

BCPP – Infrastructure Series 1A, 1B

c.1.0% p.a. (estimated by BCPP)

BCPP – Private Credit 1A/B

c.0.75% - 1.5% p.a. with performance fees of 10%-20% depending on
underlying strategy (estimated by BCPP).

Page 134

Manger

OFFICIAL

35

Method
The funding update has been prepared in accordance with the framework below.
 This funding update is consistent with the calculations for the formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019. The assumptions used have
been modified only insofar as is necessary to maintain consistency with the approach set out in the latest Funding Strategy Statement,
reflecting the change in the effective date and in relevant market conditions.

 The funding update is projected from the results of the formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019 and is therefore approximate.
Since the update is not based on up-to-date membership data, it becomes more approximate the longer the period of time that has
elapsed since the last actuarial valuation.



Page 135

The funding update takes account of the following over the period since the last formal actuarial valuation:
‒ Cashflows into and out of the Fund estimated based on the 2019 valuation results;
‒ Actual price inflation and its impact on benefit increases.
 Demographic experience since the last formal actuarial valuation has been assumed to be in line with the assumptions set out in the
2019 Valuation Report.

 This update is designed to give a broad picture of the direction of funding changes since the actuarial valuation but does not have the
same level of reliability as, and therefore does not replace the need for, formal actuarial valuations.

 It does not reflect any changes to assumptions which would be made if a full actuarial valuation were to be carried out to reflect, for
example, changes to the investment strategy or economic outlook.

 For the purpose of this funding update, we have used an un-audited value of the assets as at 30 June 2021 provided by the
Administering Authority

 The whole of fund total employer contribution rates shown in this funding update allow for a recovery period ending 31 March 2041 and
allow for any surplus in excess of 110% to be recovered as set out in the Funding Strategy Statement

 The assumptions used in this funding update are as follows:
Discount rate

Pay growth

Pension increases

31 March 2019

4.20%

3.35%

2.10%

31 March 2021

4.00%

3.45%

2.20%

30 June 2021

4.00%

3.45%

2.20%

OFFICIAL

Risk/Return Assumptions
•

36

The table below sets out the asset and liability return assumptions over 10 years, together with the asset
allocation and exposures used. These are based on Aon's Capital Market assumptions as at 30 June
2021.

Expected Return
(10 year median % p.a.)

Expected Volatility
(10 year % p.a.)

6.5

19.6

Property

5.5

12.6

Infrastructure

7.7

15.8

Illiquid credit

4.0

5.5

Investment grade credit

1.9

8.1

3.2

9.3

- Long term allocation (High Yield Credit)

3.3

10.0

Absolute Return

3.7

6.1

Gilts

0.5

7.3

Cash

0.6

1.0

High level asset class
Equities

Page 136

Non-investment grade credit
- Current allocation (PIMCO)

Note: all statistics are 10 year median expected returns/volatility of returns.
OFFICIAL

Correlation Table

37

Liquid inv.
Absolute
grade
Infrastructure Property
return
credit

Current
Long term
nonnoninvestment investment
grade credit grade credit

High level
asset class

Equities

Government
Bonds

Equities

100%

-10%

6%

75%

64%

39%

28%

56%

54%

-3%

100%

54%

11%

-4%

-3%

4%

-1%

-4%

33%

100%

32%

4%

6%

63%

39%

33%

37%

100%

54%

25%

37%

59%

52%

20%

100%

19%

13%

24%

21%

0%

100%

24%

24%

27%

4%

100%

61%

63%

21%

100%

87%

10%

100%

4%

Government Bonds
Liquid inv. grade credit

Page 137

Absolute return

Infrastructure
Property
Private Credit

Current non-investment grade
credit
Long term non-investment grade
credit

Private
Credit

Cash

100%

Cash

OFFICIAL

Data and assumptions



Page 138













38

Date of calculation

30 June 2021

Number of simulations

5000

Time horizon

10 years

Asset value

£ 4,782,728,665

Illiquid Growth is made up of a blend of 37.5% EU and 62.5% US Infrastructure in line with BCPP’s
mandate.
Illiquid Credit modelled as combination of Senior Direct Lending (for Arcmont and Permira) and Whole
Property Debt (for BCPP).
Gilts are modelled as a 90% long-duration index-linked gilts and 10% long-duration fixed-interest gilts.
Property is modelled as UK Property.
Liquid IG Credit modelled as UK corporate bonds (A-rated with average duration of 10 years)
Liquid Non-IG Credit modelled as Broad multi asset credit for the Current allocation (PIMCO) and as
high yield credit for the long term allocation.
Absolute Return is modelled as 50% Newton RRF modelled as Capital Preservation DGF, and 50%
Leadenhall Insurance Linked Securities modelled as a blend of Aggressive, Conservative and Moderate
ILS.
The Fund has an allocation to Equities which make up 50% of the long term allocation.
For modelling purposes (and for consistency with the approach taken by the Actuary) we do not allow
for any outperformance from active management (alpha).
We have not allowed for the impact of equity protection on the risk and return of the portfolio
Equities have been modelled using region splits in line with the long term allocation:
Passive UK Equity

10%

Passive Global Equity (including
Emerging Markets)

90%

OFFICIAL

Key assumptions of the model (1)
The purpose of the model is to consider and monitor the return and risk characteristics of the current and
long term investment strategy of the Scheme.
–The analysis considers the expected return of the Scheme’s investment strategy and the 1-in-20
downside 5th percentile Value at Risk implied by the strategy.
–These metrics are considered as at the stated quarter-end.

Page 139

Investment risk is included in the model outputs but this is not the only risk that the Scheme faces; other
risks include covenant risk, longevity risk, timing of member options, basis risks and operational risks.
Investment risk has been calculated on an asset only basis.

OFFICIAL

Key assumptions of the model (2)

Page 140

The calculation of portfolio risk is approximate;
– The calculation considers (5000 stochastic) simulations of returns over a single year of the Scheme’s
investment strategy.
– The simulations are constructed using Aon Solution’s Asset Model – the details and assumptions of
which are outlined in this appendix.
– The calculation does not take into account any cashflows payable over the year; if cashflows are
expected to be material the result is likely to be different.
– Risks are attributed into the categories outlined in the chart only; the investment strategy may be
exposed to further risk categories not shown.
– The calculation does not take into account longevity risk (i.e. liability values increasing due to members
living longer than assumed).
– Owing to these approximations, a more detailed ALM study is likely to result in a different result to the
VaR calculation.
– Other portfolios with different risk and return characteristics may be available to the Scheme along the
journey to full funding.

OFFICIAL

41

TAS compliance
This document has been prepared in accordance with the framework below.
This document, and the work relating to it, complies with
‘Technical Actuarial Standard 100: Principles for Technical
Actuarial Work’ (‘TAS 100’).

This presentation should be read in conjunction with:

The compliance is on the basis that North Yorkshire County
Council is the addressee and the only user and that the
update and projections in this investment report and
funding update are for information only and do not contain
the information you would need to make a decision on the
contributions payable or the investment strategy. If you
intend to make any decisions after reviewing this
presentation, please let me know and I will consider what
further information I need to provide to help you make those
decisions.

 The latest Funding Strategy Statement

 The report on the most recent actuarial valuation of the
North Yorkshire Pension Fund dated 30 March 2020

Page 141

If you require further copies of any of these documents,
please let me know.

The presentation has been prepared under the terms of the
agreement between the North Yorkshire County Council
and Aon Solutions UK Limited on the understanding that it
is solely for the benefit of the addressee.

OFFICIAL

Third party disclaimer – 1 of 3

42

IPD

BLOOMBERG® is a trademark and service mark of Bloomberg Finance L.P. and its
affiliates (collectively "Bloomberg"). BARCLAYS® is a trademark and service mark
of Barclays Bank Plc (collectively with its affiliates, "Barclays"), used under license.
Bloomberg or Bloomberg's licensors, including Barclays, own all proprietary rights in
the Bloomberg Barclays Indices. Neither Bloomberg nor Barclays approves or
endorses this material, or guarantees the accuracy or completeness of any
information herein, or makes any warranty, express or implied, as to the results to
be obtained therefrom and, to the maximum extent allowed by law, neither shall
have any liability or responsibility for injury or damages arising in connection
therewith.

IPD data was used for benchmarking purposes, but the fund performance was not
calculated by IPD.

Page 142

Bloomberg

FTSE Russell
Source: London Stock Exchange Group plc and its group undertakings (collectively,
the “LSE Group”). © LSE Group 2020. FTSE Russell is a trading name of certain of
the LSE Group companies. “FTSE®” “Russell®”, “FTSE Russell®”, “MTS®”,
“FTSE4Good®”, “ICB®”, “Mergent®, The Yield Book®,” are trade marks of the
relevant LSE Group companies and are used by any other LSE Group company
under license. All rights in the FTSE Russell indexes or data vest in the relevant
LSE Group company which owns the index or the data. Neither LSE Group nor its
licensors accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the indexes or data and
no party may rely on any indexes or data contained in this communication. No
further distribution of data from the LSE Group is permitted without the relevant LSE
Group company’s express written consent. The LSE Group does not promote,
sponsor or endorse the content of this communication.

IHS Markit (iBoxx)
Neither Markit, its Affiliates nor any third party data provider makes any warranty,
express or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness or timeliness of the data
contained herewith nor as to the results to be obtained by recipients of the data.
Neither Markit, its Affiliates nor any data provider shall in any way be liable to any
recipient of the data for any inaccuracies, errors or omissions in the Markit data,
regardless of cause, or for any damages (whether direct or indirect) resulting there
from.
Opinions, estimates and projections in this report do not reflect the opinions of
Markit Indices and its Affiliates. Markit has no obligation to update, modify or amend
this report or to otherwise notify a reader thereof in the event that any matter stated
herein, or any opinion, projection, forecast or estimate set forth herein, changes or
subsequently becomes inaccurate.
Without limiting the foregoing, Markit, its Affiliates, or any third party data provider
shall have no liability whatsoever to you, whether in contract (including under an
indemnity), in tort (including negligence), under a warranty, under statute or
otherwise, in respect of any loss or damage suffered by you as a result of or in
connection with any opinions, recommendations, forecasts, judgments, or any other
conclusions, or any course of action determined, by you or any third party, whether
or not based on the content, information or materials contained herein.
Copyright © 2020, Markit Indices Limited.

Hedge Fund Research
The Hedge Fund Research indices used are being used under license from Hedge
Fund Research, Inc., which does not approve of or endorse the contents of this
report.

OFFICIAL

Third party disclaimer – 2 of 3

43

Credit Suisse

Although Aon's information providers, including without limitation, MSCI ESG
Research LLC and its affiliates (the "ESG Parties"), obtain information from sources
they consider reliable, none of the ESG Parties warrants or guarantees the
originality, accuracy and/or completeness of any data herein. None of the ESG
Parties makes any express or implied warranties of any kind, and the ESG Parties
hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose, with respect to any data herein. None of the ESG Parties shall
have any liability for any errors or omissions in connection with any data herein.
Further, without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall any of the ESG
Parties have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or
any other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such
damages.

The CS indices are the exclusive property of and currently sponsored by CS as
Index Creator which has contracted with the relevant Index Calculation Agent to
maintain and calculate the CS indices. Neither the Index Creator nor the relevant
Index Calculation Agent has any obligation to take the needs of any person into
consideration in composing, determining or calculating the CS Indices (or causing
the CS Indices to be calculated). In addition, neither the Index Creator nor the Index
Calculation Agent makes any warranty or representation whatsoever, express or
implied, as to the results to be obtained from the use of the CS Indices and/or the
level at which any of the CS Indices stands at any particular time on any particular
day or otherwise, and neither the Index Creator nor the relevant Index Calculation
Agent shall be liable, whether in negligence or otherwise, to any person for any
errors or omissions in the Index or in the calculation of the Index or under any
obligation to advise any person of any errors or omissions therein.

Page 143

MSCI ESG Research

MSCI Equity Indices
The MSCI information may only be used for your internal use, may not be
reproduced or redisseminated in any form and may not be used as a basis for or a
component of any financial instruments or products or indices. None of the MSCI
information is intended to constitute investment advice or a recommendation to
make (or refrain from making) any kind of investment decision and may not be
relied on as such. Historical data and analysis should not be taken as an indication
or guarantee of any future performance analysis, forecast or prediction. The MSCI
information is provided on an “as is” basis and the user of this information assumes
the entire risk of any use made of this information. MSCI, each of its affiliates and
each other person involved in or related to compiling, computing or creating any
MSCI information (collectively, the “MSCI Parties”) expressly disclaims all
warranties (including, without limitation, any warranties of originality, accuracy,
completeness, timeliness, non-infringement, merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose) with respect to this information. Without limiting any of the
foregoing, in no event shall any MSCI Party have any liability for any direct, indirect,
special, incidental, punitive, consequential (including, without limitation, lost profits)
or any other damages. (www.msci.com)

European Money Markets Institute
The Euribor benchmark is created by the European Money Markets Institute
a.i.s.b.l. (EMMI). Euribor® is a registered trademark of EMMI. A licensing
agreement with EMMI is mandatory for all commercial use of the registered
trademark Euribor®. This report is not authorised by, licensed by or affiliated in any
way with EMMI. EMMI declines all responsibility for the information within this
report, including without limitation the completeness or the accuracy of the Euribor
benchmark data.

OFFICIAL

Third party disclaimer – 3 of 3

44

J.P. Morgan

New York Federal Reserve

Information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but J.P. Morgan
does not warrant its completeness or accuracy. The index level data is used with
permission. The index level data may not be copied, used, or distributed without
J.P. Morgan's prior written approval. Copyright 2021, JPMorgan Chase & Co. All
rights reserved.

Subject to New York Fed Terms of Use for Select Rate Data.

SONIA

Page 144

SONIA data is licensed 'as is' and the Information Provider and/or Licensor
excludes all representations, warranties, obligations and liabilities in relation to the
Information to the maximum extent permitted by law.
The Information Provider and/or Licensor are not liable for any errors or omissions
in the Information and shall not be liable for any loss, injury or damage of any kind
caused by its use. The Information Provider does not guarantee the continued
supply of the Information.

BofA (Ice Data Indices)
Source Ice Data Indices, llc (“Ice Data”), is used with permission. Ice® is a
registered trademark of ice data or its affiliates and Bofa® is a registered trademark
of Bank of America corporation licensed by Bank of America Corporation and its
affiliates (“BOFA") and may not be used without BOFA's prior written approval. Ice
data, its affiliates and their respective third party suppliers disclaim any and all
warranties and representations, express and/or implied, including any warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use, including the indices, index
data and any data included in, related to, or derived therefrom. Neither v.6 071320
ice data, its affiliates nor their respective third party suppliers shall be subject to any
damages or liability with respect to the adequacy, accuracy, timeliness or
completeness of the indices or the index data or any component thereof, and the
indices and index data and all components thereof are provided on an “as is” basis
and your use is at your own risk. Ice data, its affiliates and their respective third
party suppliers do not sponsor, endorse, or recommend Aon, or any of its products
or services.

OFFICIAL

Page 145

Disclaimer:
This document and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide
express prior written consent, no part of this document should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this document, we
do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this document.
Notwithstanding the level of skill and care used in conducting due diligence into any organisation that is the subject of a rating in this document, it is not always
possible to detect the negligence, fraud, or other misconduct of the organisation being assessed or any weaknesses in that organisation's systems and controls
or operations.
This document and any due diligence conducted is based upon information available to us at the date of this document and takes no account of subsequent
developments. In preparing this document we may have relied upon data supplied to us by third parties (including those that are the subject of due diligence)
and therefore no warranty or guarantee of accuracy or completeness is provided. We cannot be held accountable for any error, omission or misrepresentation of
any data provided to us by third parties (including those that are the subject of due diligence).
This document is not intended by us to form a basis of any decision by any third party to do or omit to do anything.
Any opinions or assumptions in this document have been derived by us through a blend of economic theory, historical analysis and/or other sources. Any opinion
or assumption may contain elements of subjective judgement and are not intended to imply, nor should be interpreted as conveying, any form of guarantee or
assurance by us of any future performance. Views are derived from our research process and it should be noted in particular that we can not research legal,
regulatory, administrative or accounting procedures and accordingly make no warranty and accept no responsibility for consequences arising from relying on this
document in this regard.
Calculations may be derived from our proprietary models in use at that time. Models may be based on historical analysis of data and other methodologies and
we may have incorporated their subjective judgement to complement such data as is available. It should be noted that models may change over time and they
should not be relied upon to capture future uncertainty or events.
Aon Solutions UK Limited's Delegated Consulting Services (DCS) in the UK are managed by Aon Investments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, which is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Aon plc (NYSE:AON) is a leading global professional services firm providing a broad range of risk, retirement and health solutions. Our
50,000 colleagues in 120 countries empower results for clients by using proprietary data and analytics to deliver insights that reduce
volatility and improve performance.
Copyright © 2021 Aon Solutions UK Limited. All rights reserved. aon.com
Aon Solutions UK Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810
Registered office: The Aon Centre | The Leadenhall Building | 122 Leadenhall Street | London | EC3V 4AN
This document and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that they are solely for the benefit of the addressee(s).
Unless we provide express prior written consent no part of this document should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing
this document, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this document. In this context,
“we” includes any Aon Scheme Actuary appointed by you.
To protect the confidential and proprietary information included in this document, it may not be disclosed or provided to any third parties without the prior written
consent of Aon Solutions UK Limited.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
Minutes of the meeting of the Pension Board held on Thursday 8th July 2021 via Microsoft
Teams commencing at 10am.
Present:Members of the Board
David Portlock (Independent Chairman).
Employer Representatives:
Councillor Ann Hook (City of York Council) and Louise Branford-White (Hambleton District
Council)
Scheme Members:
David Houlgate (Unison), Simon Purcell (Unison) and Gordon Gresty
Observer:
Sam Thompson (Hambleton District Council) – potential Scheme Member representative
County Council Officers:
Qingzi Bu, Phillippa Cockerill, Gary Fielding, Steve Loach, Nick Morgan, Ian Morton and Jo
Foster-Wade.

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book

285

Exclusion of the Public and Press
Resolved –
That on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006,
the public and press were excluded from the meeting during consideration of Agenda
item 8(b) – Confidential minutes of the Pension Fund Committee held on 4th June 2021

286

Chairman’s Welcome and Introductions
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the formal, live broadcast, virtual meeting of the
Pension Board. Members and officers introduced themselves for the benefit of the
broadcast.

Page 147
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/1

He announced that under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’
Delegation Scheme in the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has
power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the
Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of the Local
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority
and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which
allowed for committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at
its meeting on 5 May 2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings would
continue, with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer
under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers
and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant
Committee Members. This approach would be reviewed by full Council at its July
meeting
287

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted by Emma Barbery (Askham Bryan College) and
David Hawkins (York College) (Reserve Employer Representative).

288

Vacancy for Scheme Member Representative
It was noted that Sam Thompson (Hambleton DC) was attending today’s meeting with
a view to submitting an application for the vacant Scheme Member Representative
position.
Resolved That the issue highlighted be noted.

289(a) Minutes
Resolved That the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2021, having been printed and
circulated, be taken as read and confirmed as a correct record and the Chairman would
sign these at a convenient time;

289(b) Progress on Issues Raised by the Board
Details had been outlined in relation to the Scheme Member representative vacancy
(above).
The outcome of the Hymans Robertson report on the future governance of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) had now been submitted to MHCLG, and their
response was awaited.
A discussion relating to the Pension Fund Committee’s (PFC) skills audit took place at
the recent PFC meeting. A training programme was to be developed, on specific,
relevant issues, potentially utilising the training opportunities offered by Hymans
Robertson, for both the PFC and Pension Board Members. Members welcomed this
approach.

Page 148
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/2

In respect of consideration given as to whether a breach should be reported to the
Pensions Regulator, regarding late issue of Pension Saving Statements, it was stated
that further details were yet to be received back from HMRC.
The reports on Cyber Security would be presented to the Pension Board as soon as
they were available with no indication, as yet, when this would be.
In relation to the comparison of data from investments and administration costs pre
and post pooling, it was noted that this would commence when meaningful data
became available, which would require an appropriate length of time. It was
emphasised that account would also need to be taken of the changes to the Investment
Strategy which had taken place during the transfer to pooling arrangements, which
would also affect the position of investments.
The issue of the continuation of remote meetings and the return of face-to-face
meetings would be considered by the Full County Council at its July Meeting.
The other issues were included on the agenda and would be updated during
consideration of those items.
Resolved That the report be noted and any further action highlighted be undertaken accordingly.

290.

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

291.

Public Questions or Statements
There were no public questions or statements.

292.

Treasurer of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund – Annual Discussion
The Treasurer of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund, Gary Fielding, held his Annual
Discussion with the Pension Board. Initially, he highlighted the following issues:






The previous year had been dominated by the impact of COVID 19, but had
also resulted in an unexpected, highly successful year for the Fund, in terms of
investments.
At the end of June 2021 the value of the Fund was £4.5b, which was 4% above
the benchmark. The funding level was now 125% in comparison to it being
114% at the end of March 2019.
Assumptions for the Fund going forward were based on continued good returns
from investments, through the success of the Investment Strategy, with equities
being a key part of this.
A great deal of work has been put in by the PFC over the years to move the
funding position from 35% to its current position, and every effort is being made
to retain that. Many meetings and workshops have been undertaken by PFC
Members to develop the new Investment Strategy with a view to retaining
current funding levels through de-risking.
The importance of the PFC to the Fund, and ensuring that Members had a high
level of knowledge in relation to the Fund and the LGPS, were emphasised.

Page 149
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/3











The recent meeting of the PFC agreed the Investment Strategy, going forward,
and also approved the suite of Governance Documents that are reviewed on
an ongoing basis.
A large number of administration issues have been ongoing during the year,
which had seen the administration extremely busy throughout the year, but they
had coped admirably. Amongst the issues were:
- A new administration system
- Increase in Academies joining the Fund/transfers of contracts/SubSectors/Policy amendments/employer compliance
- Increases in the requirements of the various Regulatory Bodies
- McCloud
- Pensions’ reconciliation
- Annual benefits Statements and all the usual monitoring and compliance
work.
The PFC had recently signed off a revised Responsible Investments’ Policy,
but this would continue to be monitored and reviewed, going forward.
Carbon impacts were a major concern currently, and whilst the Fund would be
looking to invest in “green” investments/infrastructure, it had to be ensured that
these were really “green” and were a good investment. A cautious approach
would ensure that the correct balance was achieved.
In terms of Local Government Reorganisation, whichever proposal was
chosen, this would not affect the NYPF as the Government had indicated that
they would determine which Council would be the Administering Authority, and
the NYPF and PFC would continue in the same format.
The 2022 Tri-ennial valuation was getting nearer with Government guidance
awaited on how pooling will be accounted for in this.
Following the initial presentation a discussion was undertaken with Board
Members. The issues and points raised are highlighted below:-





A Member asked whether the new Investment Strategy still had too much
exposure to equities and was, therefore, still relatively high risk. In response
the Treasurer stated that this issue had been the subject of significant
discussion amongst Members of the PFC, with differing views. As a result of
the revisions to the Investment Strategy exposure to equities, over the previous
3-4 years, have been moved from 65% to 50%, significantly de-risking
investments. The aim of the Strategy was to ensure that good returns on
investments were maintained whilst seeking to retain the funding level
obtained. He considered that the balance of the new Strategy felt right, and
should this provide an opportunity to increase the value of the Fund that could
provide the possibility of reducing contributions from employers, which would
be of great benefit. A member raised concerns regarding suggestions that
employers could be given a contributions “holiday” when the value of the Fund
was above 115%. The Treasurer stated that this could undertaken by way of a
reduction in contributions, as payment holidays would be implemented, when
funding levels were high, however, employers would be informed that any
reduction in contributions could be reversed should funding levels drop.
It was asked how Members of the PFC were provided with advice to make
decisions on investment matters, and whether there were different views
provided. In response the Treasurer stated that advice was provided by the
Investment Consultants, the Independent Investment Advisor and NYPF
Officers, which provided a variety of views, conflicting on occasions, which
provided a robust challenge to made to investment recommendations. The
process was welcomed by Members and ensured that a necessary level of
challenge was provided in respect of those decisions. The Chairman echoed

Page 150
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/4









the issues set out by the Treasurer in respect of the challenge and differing
views demonstrated by PFC Members and advisors.
A Member asked how the relationship with the Pool impacted on the Investment
Strategy. The Treasurer explained that although the Strategy was a standalone document, which was pertinent to the aspirations of the NYPF, there had
to be some relationship to the investment opportunities offered by the Pool. He
noted that should the Pool not offer an investment opportunity required by the
Fund’s Strategy, the Fund could invest outside the Pool, for example the
current investment with Baillie Gifford, however, in the main, the NYPF would
seek appropriate investment vehicles within the Pool.
A Member noted that, originally, it was suggested that pooling had been
introduced to allow the Government to have access to the LGPS accrued
finances for infrastructure schemes, and he wondered whether this was still the
case. In response the Treasurer stated that this had not taken place due to the
liability that would be placed on the Government in using LGPS funds in this
way. In terms of future projects it was unlikely that the Government would use
funding directly for infrastructure schemes, but they were influencing pools to
invest in these schemes, and, should such schemes be appropriate and
generate the required levels of returns, pools would no doubt be investing in
these projects. In terms of the NYPF it would be ensured that any such
investments complied with the Investment Strategy. It was noted that use of
the pool to explore investments in green infrastructure was beneficial as the
combined funds from the participating Pension Funds ensured that this was far
more achievable and cost effective.
A Member asked whether the benefits of cost savings for the Fund, from the
pooling arrangements, were beginning to materialise. In response the
Treasurer stated that the costs position was a mixed picture and emphasised
that the main role of the PFC was to oversee the performance of investments.
Previously high fees were paid for good performance from investments, which
was warranted as these brought a good return to the Fund, however, these
fees had been reduced by participation in the pool as the combined funding
helped to reduce these costs. The savings on Fund Managers were
appreciated but it had to be ensured that the Fund’s investments were
performing appropriately, and that continued to be monitored. The Treasurer
noted that BCPP also used internal Fund Managers for some of the
investments which had also reduced costs. Members asked whether pooling
was saving money for the LGPS as had been suggested when this was
introduced. The Treasurer again stated that Fund Manager fees had been
reduced, and it was expected that, overall, economies of scale would see all
costs reduced, however, pooling was still in its infancy, and it would take time
for the cost saving benefits to be seen, following the initial setting up costs.
The Chairman, recognising the intensity of the work carried out by the NYPF in
the previous year, asked if there were sufficient staffing resources, going
forward, to cope with the ever increasing workload. The Treasurer stated that
it was thought when pooling was introduced that the burden of work for the
administration team would lessen, however, the opposite had proved to be the
case with more pressure from the Regulatory Bodies, a large number of
investigatory projects and the introduction of new systems. Currently there was
no concerns that the service would be overwhelmed, with some recruitment
having taken place and the new systems beginning to bed in. The service
remained very busy and the Treasurer would continue to monitor the situation
to ensure that it was coping effectively and more resources would be provided
should that be required. The Chairman considered that, going forward, the
Regulatory onus on the Fund would become increasingly stringent and
challenging, which would increase workloads. A member raised concerns that

Page 151
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/5

the intensity of work would remain high and this would have an impact on
workloads and lead to difficulties in meeting timescales for pensioners. The
Treasurer acknowledged this position, stating that the burden of regulations
was likely to increase, as all Pension Funds were being exposed to the extra
regulations, even though, in his opinion, much of this was not required for the
LGPS.
Resolved –
That the Treasurer of the NYPF be thanked for his attendance at the Pension Board,
and the details provided be noted and welcomed.

293(a) Minutes and Confidential Minutes of Pension Fund Committee meeting held on
4h June 2021
The Minutes from the meeting were provided for Members’ information. The Chairman
noted that the majority of issues had been covered in the discussion with the Treasurer
earlier in the meeting. Members raised no further issues in respect of the Minutes.
There was no discussion of the confidential Minutes, therefore, the meeting did not
move into private session.
Resolved That the Minutes of the PFC held on 4 June 2021 be noted.
293(b) Pension Fund Committee - update on Meeting held on 2nd July 2021
The Chairman noted that the Minutes from the meeting were not yet available,
however, the issues discussed at that meeting would be considered later on the
agenda at this meeting, therefore, discussions would be deferred to that item.
Resolved –
That this be noted.
(The Chairman agreed to take the following item at this stage to allow the Treasurer
of the NYPF to consider the discussion of the Board.)
294

Risk Register review, Governance Documents review and draft NYPF
Statement of Final Accounts
The report provided Pension Board members with the opportunity to review the risk
register, suite of governance documents of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund
(NYPF) and details of the NYPF draft Statement of Final Accounts.
It was noted that the PFC had recently considered the Governance Documents and
had approved alterations, where appropriate. Details of the documents were provided
to Board Members, with track-changes in place, providing an opportunity to
determine any further changes to the documents before they were altered. The
documents would continue to be reviewed during the year and brought back to the
PFC and PB for further consideration.
The Risk management reports were also provided for comment and the draft
Statement of Final Accounts was provided for information.

Page 152
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/6

During a discussion of the report and appended documents the following issues were
highlighted:






The draft Statement of Final Accounts would be approved by the County
Council’s Audit Committee in September 2021.
A Member noted that three of the risks in the Risk Register were currently
graded as “red” and two others has increased levels of risk. Another Member
drew attention to the “red” categorisation of Resources, noting the discussion
held in relation to this earlier in the meeting, and emphasising that it was
important that this was shown as a risk. The Treasurer agreed emphasising
that it was important that the NYPF was open and honest around the risks
faced.
A member noted that the Responsible Investments Policy would continue to be
reviewed and asked whether it would be brought to the Board following any
subsequent reviews. In response it was stated that, unless confidential, all the
papers from the PFC were shared with Board Members, therefore the Policy
would be provided to the Board when revised.
It was stated that the Business Plan appendix indicated actions for the initial
few years, then had no definitive actions for the final year, and it was asked
whether this would be completed, going forward. In response it was stated that
the Business Plan would have details added as time progressed as it would be
adapted to take account of issues arising and any matters that may have been
subject to delay.

Resolved –
That the Risk Register, Governance Documents and draft NYPF Statement of Final
Accounts be noted.
295

Review of Terms of Reference
Members were provided with an opportunity to review the Board’s Terms of Reference.
It was noted that although an annual opportunity was provided to review the Terms of
Reference, due to the need to include issues relating to the provision of remote
meetings and the possible escalation of matters, a review had taken place in Autumn
2020, with the necessary amendments made.
In relation to remote meetings it was asked whether the ability to hold such meetings
should be retained in the Terms of Reference. The Chairman confirmed this to be the
case as it would offer flexibility for the organisation of meetings should the necessity
for a remote meeting arise.
Resolved –
That the current Terms of Reference, as set out in the appendix to the report, be reaffirmed.

296

Draft Annual Report
Members considered the draft Annual Report of the Pension Board for 2020/21, and
were requested to suggest any amendments, before this was submitted to full
County Council, as Administering Authority to the NYPF, for approval. The
Annual Report would also be submitted to the Pension Fund Committee and
Executive prior to submission for County Council approval

Page 153
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/7

It was noted that, following approval by County Council, the Annual Report would be
published on the NYPF website.
It was noted that some figures for inclusion in the report were still to be provided and
had been highlighted in red.
Members suggested some alterations, including:


Inclusion of the reviewed Terms of Reference
Inclusion of details of the informal meeting held in January

Resolved That the draft Annual Report of the Pension Board 2020/21 be approved, subject to
the amendments outlined, and taken through the appropriate process before it is
submitted to full County Council for approval and publication.
297.

Pension Administration
The Pension Administration Manger, Phillippa Cockerill, provided Members with an
update on key initiatives undertaken by the Administration Team of the NYPF. The
report included, as an Appendix, the report that was provided to the PFC at their June
2021 meeting.
The following issues were highlighted:

PFC Report
The PFC report from their June 2021 meeting was provided as an Appendix.



Workload
The Administration Team had seen a large increase in the workload since the
beginning of the year.



Annual Benefits Statements (ABS)
The process for the 2021 issuing of the ABS had now commenced and a
with one outstanding employer file. The deadline for submission
was 30 April 2021. Every effort was being made to complete the process on
time.



Integrated Payroll and development of systems
The Integrated Payroll was now being operated and was expected to be more
efficient. This was part of the administration systems project to align ways of
working to promote efficiency and effectiveness, which included the supply of
data on a monthly basis via the Employer Portal.



Performance Indicators

Page 154
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/8

It was noted that performance statistics were currently down on required
levels due to the volume of work. This was expected to improve with the
introduction of the new systems. It was noted that other Funds were
experiencing similar issues.


Payment delays
Issues with AVC providers were causing payment delays which also affected
the performance statistics for the Team.
During a discussion of the report the following issues and points were raised:







It was noted that the McCloud judgement had resulted in a external provider
being recruited to obtain the necessary data from employers, with this required
by March 2023. It was stated that the timescales would be difficult to achieve
with further guidance on this awaited from the LGA. It was emphasised that it
would be difficult to determine the overall cost of this as there were too many
variable factors to estimate this at this stage.
The Chairman noted that there had been no new breaches reported since the
previous report to the Board and stated that the Breach reported at the April
meeting, which had been recommended to not report to the Pensions Regulator
by the Board, had that course of action agreed by the PFC.
It was asked how challenging it would be to integrate the larger employers with
the Employer Portal. It was emphasised that this was a significant piece of work
which would be time consuming. It was also noted that changes to processes
and practices also required time to become established, although there were
no fundamental issues currently for the Administration Team.
It was noted that the AVC provider, Prudential, had been requested to provide
appropriate figures to the NYPF within a 45 day timeframe.

Resolved -

298.

(i)

That the contents of the report be noted;

(ii)

That the contents of the Breaches Log be noted.

Internal Audit Reports
Audit Manager, Ian Morton, provided the Pension Board with an update on Internal
Audit activity.
The report highlighted the Audit Plan for 2020/21, previously approved by the Pension
Board, as follows: Income and Investments Audits were underway with the final reports nearing
completion.
 The Expenditure Audit had been completed and a copy was appended to the
report – the Audit indicated substantial assurance with no major actions
required.
 Two outstanding actions from the 2019/20 audits were detailed in Appendix 1
to the report and the reasons for their non-completion outlined.
 Veritau had recently taken on the Internal Auditing role for two further
authorities, and it was expected that comparison of audits would be beneficial
to other Authorities.

Page 155
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/9

The following issues were raised during a discussion of the report:




A Member asked whether there would be other audits undertaken in respect of
the NYPF as the report indicated that the issues audited were usually the same,
year on year. In response it was stated other audits would be considered, with
a Governance audit undertaken previously, and planning for next year’s audits
would take account of any suggestions.
It was requested that additional details be provided in future reports when the
implementation of actions had been delayed. It was stated that this would be
taken account of for subsequent reports.
It was expected that the final two audit reports would be available for the
October meeting of the Board.

Resolved That the report be noted.
299.

Dispute Cases and Exercise of Discretions - Annual update
Members considered details of the cases received via the Internal Dispute Resolution
Procedure (IDRP) and those cases referred to the Pensions Ombudsman in the
scheme year to 31 March 2021.
The following issues were highlighted:



There were two IDRP cases received in the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021. Both of these related to ill health early retirement appeals against the
relevant employers. Details were provided in an appendix to the report.
There were two cases received from the Pensions Ombudsman in the period
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. A summary of each case and the outcomes
were provided in an appendix to the report.
Employer discretions were exercised throughout the year such as for flexible
retirements, deadlines for transferring in, assessing employee contribution
bands, etc.

Members discussed the report and the following issue was highlighted:

A Member asked about the reference to the West Yorkshire Pensions Authority
in the IDRP cases. It was stated that, in response, that they had been used as
an independent adjudicator to review the cases.

Resolved That the report be noted.
300.

Training
Members considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and
Democratic Services) providing an update on Pension Board Member training.
It was noted that the report providing details of training events attended, and activities
undertaken by Pension Board Members was not now published as part of the report
but did appear on the Meeting’s web page and this was up to date.

Page 156
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/10

It was noted that Hymans Robertson package of on-line training relevant to the LGPS
was to be utilised for both PFC and PB Members. Members would be advised how to
access the training in due course. Members should advise the Clerk when they had
undertaken relevant training to allow the training record to be updated
Resolved -

301.

(i)

That the report be noted

(ii)

that Members be advised on how to access the Hymans Robertson
online training package.

Work Plan
Members considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and
Democratic Services) detailing the areas of planned work of the Pension Board for
the coming year and providing meeting dates for the Pension Board until April 2022.
Resolved (i)

That the Work Plan, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be noted.

(ii)

That the dates of ordinary meetings as detailed in the report be noted as
follows:Thursdays at 10 am
2021/22
7th October 2021
13th January 2022
7th April 2022

302.

Other business
Louise Branford-White
The Chairman noted that this would be the last meeting of Louise Branford-White, who
had been a Member of the Board since its introduction in 2015, as she was leaving her
current post, and would be ineligible to be a Board member in her new role. He thanked
her for her service to the Pension Board and her valuable contributions to meetings
and the work of the Board. This was echoed by other Members and officers of the
Pension Board.
It was noted that Louise, as part of her role with the Board, had fed back issues to the
Section 151 officers group, from the Pension Board. Nick Morgan had attended today’s
meeting as an observer, and would act in this role on a temporary basis until a
permanent solution could be found.

Resolved -

Page 157
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/11

That the issues highlighted be noted and Louise Branford –White be formally thanked
for her service to the Pension Board.

The meeting concluded at 12.10pm.
SL

Page 158
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 8 July 2021/12

NORTH YORKSHIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT FOR PERIOD 1 APRIL 2020 TO 31 MARCH 2021
Background
In June 2014 the Government published a consultation “The Local Government Pension
Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2014: draft Regulations on scheme governance”.
These Regulations were essentially a crystallisation of the governance arrangements
framework set out in the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.
The Regulations required Administering Authorities to each establish a Local Pension
Board by 1 April 2015, being a formal body constituted by North Yorkshire County
Council (the Administering Authority for the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF)), and
the Board to be operational by 1 August 2015.
The Terms of Reference for the Pension Board were drafted in February 2015 to comply
with the draft Regulations and guidance, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of
the Pension Fund Committee and the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic
Services). The document was approved by the Council on 18 February 2015.
The Pension Board was established and its membership developed, and it held its first
meeting on 30th July 2015.
In April 2016, the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) was established as a statutory
body encouraging best practice, increasing transparency and co-ordinating technical
and statutory issues at a national level. Alongside this the role of the Pensions’
Regulator had been extended to cover public sector schemes, and guidance has been
introduced in the form of the Regulator’s Code of Practice 14, which includes the
reporting of statutory and regulatory breaches, for example the late payment of
contributions and the issue of Annual Benefit Statements after the statutory deadline.
Role
The role of the local Pension Board is defined by sections 5(1) and 5(2) of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013 as follows:
1. To assist the Council as Administering Authority in its role as Scheme Manager
to:
 secure compliance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
regulations and any other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the LGPS;
 secure compliance with the requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS
by the Pensions Regulator;
 secure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the
LGPS for the Pension Fund
 assist in such other matters as the LGPS regulations may specify
2. To provide the Scheme Manager with such information as it requires to ensure
that any member of the Pension Board or person to be appointed to the Pension
Board does not have a conflict of interest

Page 159
OFFICIAL

It is not the role of the Pension Board to be involved in the day to day running of the
NYPF.
The operation of the Pension Board is open and transparent, its meetings are open to
the public and all required details relating to the Pension Board, including minutes of
meetings, are on the North Yorkshire County Council website, together with recordings
of the virtual, formal meetings, as these were broadcast live –
https://edemocracy.northyorks.gov.uk/
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings

Membership of the Board
The Board consists of 9 members, 4 scheme member representatives, 4 employer
representatives and an independent chair. The current Membership is as follows:PORTLOCK, David

Chairman - Independent Member (Nonvoting)

BAKER, Bob (County Councillor)

Employer Representative – North Yorkshire
County Council

HOOK, Ann (Councillor)

Employer Representative – City of York
Council

BARBERY, Emma

Employer Representative – Askham Bryan
College

BRANFORD-WHITE, Louise

Employer Representative – Hambleton District
Council

HAWKINS, David

Employer Representative Co-opted Member,
non-voting – York College

HOULGATE, David

Scheme Member Representative - UNISON

PURCELL, Simon

Scheme Member Representative - UNISON

VACANCY

Scheme Member Representative

GRESTY, Gordon

Scheme Member Representative – Retired
Members

There have been no changes to the Membership of the Board during 2020/21.
Action is currently being taken to fill the vacant Scheme Member representative position
indicated.

Page 160
OFFICIAL

COVID 19
The restrictions brought about by the COVID 19 pandemic had an effect the work of the
Pension Board during the 2020/21 Council year, with an impact on meetings initially,
resulting in the April meeting being cancelled and the July meeting being an informal,
virtual Meeting. Alterations to the Terms of Reference (detailed below) allowed virtual,
formal meetings to take place in October 2020, January 2021 and April 2021.
Terms of Reference
A copy of the Board’s Terms of Reference is attached at Appendix 1. The Terms of
Reference, agreed by the Administering Authority in February 2015, are reviewed at
least annually, and were reviewed at the Meeting of the Board held on 29th October 2020
where it was agreed to include the following items in the Terms of Reference and Remit
of the Board:



The Pension Board will undertake formal meetings remotely, through an
appropriate media platform, and subject to the relevant live broadcast
requirements, when circumstances arise that prevent physical meetings from
taking place. The Meetings should be wholly remote or physical and should
not be undertaken in a hybrid manner.
Where a matter of serious concern arises regarding compliance or a potential
breach of the regulations, the Pension Board must inform the Scheme
Manager immediately, and may escalate reporting to the Monitoring Officer,
to the National Scheme Advisory Board and the Pensions Regulator if
considered necessary and appropriate.

The remainder of the Terms of Reference were unchanged.
Attendance at Meetings
Meetings of the Board would normally take place 4 times a year and are well attended
but were affected by the COVID 19 restrictions during 2020/21 (see above).
Attendance at meetings was as follows:9th April 2020 – Meeting cancelled due to COVID 19 restrictions
9th July 2020 – Informal, virtual meeting. Louise Branford-White absent. All other
Members in attendance.
29th October 2020 – Formal, virtual meeting – Simon Purcell absent. All other Members
in attendance.
14th January 2021 – Formal, virtual meeting – County Councillor Bob Baker and Simon
Purcell absent. All other Members in attendance.
Attendance at Pension Fund Committee
The Chair of the Board is an ex-officio, non-voting, Member of the Pension Fund
Committee. Each ordinary Meeting of the Pension Fund Committee has an agenda item
that provides an opportunity for the Chair of the Board to present feedback and the
minutes of the previous meeting of the Board are submitted for information. The minutes
of the Pension Fund Committee are also submitted to the Pension Board and, again, the
Chairman provides feedback.

Page 161
OFFICIAL

Members of the Pension Board attend meetings of the Pension Fund Committee to
observe proceedings when available.
Issues Considered
The following have been considered by the Pension Board over the year:




















NYPF Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
External Audit Report on the NYPF for the year ended 31 March 2020
Risk Register
Internal Audit reports
LGPS Pooling arrangements
Investment Strategy Statement
Investment Strategy Review
Publication of Pension Board Annual Report
Pension Administration – including Breaches Log, Annual Benefit Statements,
Data Quality, etc.
Pensions Regulator developments – including a consultation on Governance and
Admin Risks in Public Service Pension Schemes
Employer and Administering Authority discretions
Governance Documents Review
Board Evaluation and Skills Matrix questionnaires
Feedback from training courses attended
Management, administration and governance process and procedure
Review of the Terms of Reference
Receiving feedback from the Border to Coast Pensions’ Partnership (BCPP)
Meetings between representatives of the Pension Boards with partner Funds in
the BCPP
Budget, accounts and Business Plan – including cash-flow position
Annual Review of Dispute Cases and Exercise of Discretions

Details in relation to the discussions on these issues can be found in the minutes for the
meetings which are available on the North Yorkshire County Council website –
http://democracy.northyorks.gov.uk/committees.aspx?commid=91
The formal, virtual meetings were live broadcasted to allow the public to watch and
participate. Recordings of the meetings can be found through the link below:www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings

The LGPS Pooling arrangements have been a major issue of consideration for the
Pension Board. The NYPF has committed to joining the Border to Coast Pensions Pool,
along with 11 other LGPS. The pool began operating in July 2018 and the Pension
Board has been committed to scrutinising the governance arrangements for the pool.
This work is ongoing.

Page 162
OFFICIAL

Data Quality
In line with the requirement introduced by the Pensions Regulator, to include each fund’s
data score in the annual return with effect from 2019, NYPF have submitted the
following scores:
Year

Conditional Data Score

2018
2019
2020

Common Data Score

85.26%
93.52%
96.97%

93.47%
94.37%
95.97%

Common data is that set of data that is defined as necessary and applicable to all
members of all schemes. This data is that required to identify scheme members. For
example, surname, date of birth, national insurance number, address, etc. There are 10
data items listed by the Pensions Regulator as being classed as common data.
Conditional data is that set of data that is defined as additional detailed data required for
the administration of a pension scheme. This data is dependent on scheme type,
structure and system design. For example, employer, salary history, contributions,
transfer in details, etc.
A suite of reports have been developed to enable the identification of data errors and
calculation of the annual data score. These reports will form the basis of targeted data
cleansing work.
A data improvement plan has been created to ensure quality and scores improve from
year to year. Part of this plan is the ongoing rolling schedule of data quality checking and
cleansing.
Conflicts of Interest
The Board adopted a Conflicts of Interest Policy, attached as Appendix 2, at its
inaugural meeting on 30th July 2015 and this is reviewed annually. The requirement to
declare Conflicts of Interest is an item on every agenda for Board meetings. No conflicts
were identified nor disclosed in the period to 31 March 2021.
Skills and Development Activities
Board Members have undertaken a comprehensive range of training and development
opportunities, as required by the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. An evaluation of
skills and experience has been undertaken and is being evaluated to identify possible
training requirements and areas where skills and knowledge need development.
Discussions have taken place, with the Pension Fund Committee, in relation to the
requirement for Pension Fund Committee Members to undertake appropriate training
and development in future, with a training policy having now being adopted. Members of
the Committee have undertaken an evaluation of their skills, and the publication of the
results of that are awaited, to enable a joint training plan to be developed for both the
Committee and the Board.

Page 163
OFFICIAL

The Board adopted a Training Policy, attached as Appendix 3, at its inaugural meeting
on 30th July 2015.
Details of the training and development undertaken by Board Members are provided in
Appendix 4.
Programme of Work
The Board has developed a programme of work which is reviewed and updated at every
meeting of the Board. Details of the programme of work are provided in Appendix 5.

Pension Board Costs for 2020/21 and Budget for 2021/22
The Board’s costs/budget for 2020/21 were as follows:
Costs

Budget

Chair’s Allowance

£3071

£3000

Travel

£

0

£1500

Skills development

£ 880

£5000

Total

£3951

£9500

The Board’s budget for 2021/22 is as follows:
Chair’s Allowance

£3100

Travel

£1500

Skills development

£5000

Total

£9600

The above costs are borne by the Pension Fund.

In addition to the expenditure detailed above, the Board receives assistance and support
from the Council’s Legal & Democratic Services and Pension Fund Officers. An estimate
of the cost and value of this assistance and support has not been calculated.
Pension Board self-assessment
The Board’s terms of reference and guidance from the Pension Regulator’s Code of
Practice 14 require that the Board undertakes a review of its effectiveness and the
knowledge and skills of Board members.
In relation to this, questionnaires have previously been circulated to Board Members to
provide an evaluation of skills and experience. Details have been fed back into the
Board accordingly and an appropriate joint training plan with members of the Pension
Fund Committee will be developed. Consideration is currently being given to the
provision of a dedicated training package to encompass both bodies.

Page 164
OFFICIAL

Equality Impact Review
An Equality Impact Review is not required as there are no relevant decisions to be
taken.

David Portlock
Independent Chair of the Local Pension Board - September 2021

Page 165
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 167

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175

This page is intentionally left blank

